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SENATOR DEBORAH ORTIZ:  . . . as well as the Senate Environmental Quality Committee.  Senator Lowenthal, who’s the chair of that committee, will be joining us.  We have members of our Health Committee who are good enough to stay here, as well as who are members of the Environmental Quality Committee.

I will go ahead and make some opening comments.  I’ll extend the opportunity to my colleagues to do so as well.  But let me just start out today’s hearing by thanking everyone for attending.


I believe this is a hearing that is important as a first step to understanding a somewhat unique situation here in California—but right in our backyard.  Asbestos, as we know, has been very well studied as a human carcinogen, particularly in an industrial or workplace setting.  What we are facing here today is a new issue:  whether or not naturally occurring asbestos poses a health hazard, and if so, whether or not government—local as well as state—is prepared to handle that.  This really gives an opportunity for all of us to hear from various levels of government—federal as well as state and local—as to the data that has been presented thus far.


As we’re well aware, the issue surrounding naturally occurring asbestos in California had become more prominent in recent weeks and days, with the release of new data from the U.S. EPA and their health counterpart, the federal Agency for Toxic Substances Disease Registry, which is akin to our counterpart in California, the Department of Toxics and Substance Control.


While the data released focuses on issues in El Dorado County, this is an issue that has statewide implications.  Naturally occurring asbestos is present in many of California’s fifty-eight counties.  The aim of today’s hearing is to explore this issue and learn from the experience in El Dorado County and use what we learn to craft state policy that ensures that public health is thoroughly protected.  To that end, I introduced a bill earlier this year—SB 655—which creates a task force of federal, state, and local agencies to develop a comprehensive statewide course of action for California.

With that, I will extend the opportunity to my colleagues:  Senator Cox, who represents this area of the state, and hopefully, my co-chair, Senator Lowenthal, when he joins us, and any other members of the committee.


Welcome—to the public.


Senator Cox?


SENATOR DAVE COX:  Madam Chair, may I thank the chairs—Senator Ortiz and Senator Lowenthal, when he arrives.  This clearly, Madam Chair and Members, is a very important issue.  It’s an important issue for my constituents—the constituents of the First Senate District—and specifically as it relates to the constituents of El Dorado County.  


But let me say, Madam Chair—as you pointed out, and I want to reemphasize, this is a statewide issue.  I may not very gracefully, if you will, open this map up and drop it down on the other side of the dais, but the people in the audience can see that, in fact, what we have is that we have a State of California map that has been prepared by an agency within the state, going back as far as—I believe this is a map of 2000.  Natural-occurring asbestos actually occurs in 48 of the 58 counties in the State of California.


Now, I understand, Madam Chair—and you can now take that down if you want.  I just wanted everyone to see that that map had been prepared, and it was prepared some time ago by the Geology and Mining Agency of the State of California.  I think it’s important, Madam Chair, that we acknowledge the issue but that we not unnecessarily cause panic in the communities.  I’m very much concerned that that is precisely what has occurred and which, in fact, may occur even more so in those communities.

I’m hopeful that this hearing and future efforts will look at natural-occurring asbestos as a statewide issue and consider opportunities for the federal, state, and local governments to work together.  It would seem that the state and the federal governments may be able to assist the local communities with information and resources.  

Madam Chair and Members, I think it’s also important that this committee and that the Legislature, the Administration, and the federal government recognize that local governments are the appropriate entities to consider and implement mitigation measures.  And I will tell you that for the last twenty years, El Dorado County has, in fact, been working—and specifically in more recent years—to, in fact, take care of any potential danger relative to natural-occurring asbestos.  


And certainly, I want to personally thank today the individuals that are present.  I look forward to hearing their testimony.  And Madam Chair, I assure you that I have a significant number of questions to the witnesses who will be appearing today.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Wonderful.  Thank you for that.  I appreciate that.


We are now joined by our co-chair of the joint hearing.  Senator Lowenthal—welcome.


SENATOR ALAN LOWENTHAL:  Good afternoon, and thank you, Senator Ortiz.  I want to express my appreciation to you, as chair of the Senate Committee on Health, for organizing today’s hearing on a topic that’s deserving of more widespread attention.  


Despite the fact that naturally occurring asbestos has been well known for many years, we’ve yet to devise decisive policies for addressing such health hazards.  But asbestos is not unique.  There are other naturally occurring threats, including radon in our homes and arsenic in our waters, and we’ve learned over the years to negotiate these natural hazards by carefully planning our built environment.  The threats from nature, whether radon, asbestos, or arsenic, underscore the need to maintain CEQA as a basic procedure for protecting the health of our communities.

As noted in the memorandum from the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research included in today’s briefing materials, the CEQA process provides an opportunity for lead agencies to identify potential hazards and to investigate ways to avoid, control, or otherwise mitigate the impacts of naturally occurring asbestos.  


In addition, CEQA gives lead agencies the authority to require mitigation measures as a condition of the approval of a proposed project.  This isn’t to say that CEQA is the sole answer to the problems posed by naturally occurring asbestos.  However, the example of naturally occurring asbestos should serve as a clear reminder that many of the basic protections for California’s environment that were designed as part of the CEQA process also serve as the basis for protecting the health of our children and their communities in current times.


I look forward to hearing from the many witnesses who have taken time to travel to Sacramento today.  And I thank you again, Madam Chair, for your participation in today’s hearing.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Senator Lowenthal.


Are there other opening comments from other committee members?


Okay, I appreciate that.  We’re here to learn.


Let’s have the individuals on the first panel come forward.  Let me welcome them.  We have Dr. Michael Lipsett, who is the chief of the Exposure Assessment Section of the Environmental Health Investigations Branch of our state Department of Health Services.  As well as Melanie Marty, PhD; chief, Air Toxicology and Epidemiology Section, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment.

With that, welcome; and we look forward to your shedding some light on this issue.


DR. MICHAEL LIPSETT:  Thank you, Senator Ortiz, and members of the committee.  I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you today.


I’m a physician-epidemiologist with the Environmental Health Investigations Branch of the Department of Health Services.  And I’m also an associate clinical professor at UCSF School of Medicine.  Though I don’t do research on asbestos, I have reviewed many of the epidemiologic studies involving environmental exposures to asbestos.  I’m also a member of the American Thoracic Society Committee, which will revise that organization’s position paper on the health effects of certain kinds of asbestos.  Several years ago I worked with the U.S. EPA to organize an international conference on asbestos in Oakland, in part to provide both state agency staff and members of the public with an opportunity to interact with some of the world’s experts on asbestos health effects.


In the spirit of brevity, I’d like to present my conclusions first.  In occupational settings, asbestos exposure causes lung cancer and mesothelioma, an otherwise rare and almost universally fatal lining of the chest wall and abdomen.  Such exposures have also caused other chest diseases, including asbestosis, which is a debilitating scarring of the lung that can cause respiratory failure and death.  In general, asbestos-induced cancer and asbestosis require prolonged high-level exposures.  However, there are instances in which brief, but intense, exposures appear to cause mesothelioma.

In a number of studies conducted in other countries with naturally occurring or unprocessed asbestos, environmental exposures have been consistently linked with elevated rates of mesothelioma.  Many researchers believe that certain types of long, thin, needle-like asbestos fibers, called amphiboles, are substantially more effective in causing cancer—at least in environmental settings—than the more commonly found chrysotile asbestos.  Studies of asbestos fibers in human lungs indicate that nonoccupational exposures to naturally occurring asbestos can, in some circumstances, result in the accumulation of fibers that are equivalent to those found in asbestos workers.  


So, in the context of these observations, residential development in areas where there are large surface deposits of asbestos raises important issues of public health.


Those are my conclusions.  I hope I have a few more minutes to actually go through the text.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Please do.  It would be helpful to know what your sources are.  Go ahead.


DR. LIPSETT:  So, asbestos is a generic name for several types of fibrous forms of silicate minerals that are extremely durable and heat-resistant.  High-pressure geologic processes associated with faulting of the Earth’s crust can result in the formation of asbestos, which explains why it has been identified in most of California’s fault-line counties.  There are two principal families of asbestos:  serpentine and amphibole.  The sole member of the serpentine family is chrysotile asbestos, which is the predominant kind found throughout California and the rest of North America.  The other family, the amphiboles, contain several members, including crocidolite, amosite, and the fibrous forms of tremolite and actinolite.  The amphiboles have large numbers of these long, needle-shape fibers that are extremely durable biologically.  In nature, amphiboles are found mixed in with, or adjacent to, serpentine or chrysotile deposits, and both chrysotile and the amphiboles can occur in a variety of rocks and in soils derived from asbestos-containing rocks.

When asbestos fibers become airborne, they can be inhaled deep into the lung.  While some are cleared by normal physiologic processes, many fibers remain in the lung tissue forever.  Inhaled asbestos fibers can migrate from the lung to the pleura, which is the lining of the chest wall, and they can be transported to other organs as well.  Asbestos fibers have even been reported to cross the placenta and have been identified in the tissues of stillborn fetuses.  


In occupational settings, chrysotile asbestos and several of the amphiboles have been associated with all of the diseases I mentioned earlier.  The disease that has been the most well investigated in relation to naturally occurring asbestos is mesothelioma, though such exposures have also been linked with lung cancer.  Many researchers consider the amphiboles, including tremolite, to be substantially more effective than chrysotile in causing mesothelioma.  And while prolonged periods of high exposures appear to be generally necessary for the induction of asbestos-induced cancers and asbestosis, there have been a number of case reports in the medical literature, indicating that very brief, but intense, periods of exposure from one day to several months can result in the development of mesothelioma many days later.  


Exposures to naturally occurring asbestos can be both occupational—for example, among individuals who grade or level land for construction—and nonoccupational.  In studies conducted in other countries, markedly elevated risks of mesothelioma have been reported, ranging up to several hundred-fold above (quote/unquote) “normal” background levels in areas in which there were large quantities of naturally occurring asbestos.  In these studies, many cases involved individuals who were exposed to tremolite, which we used to make whitewash that was applied to residential interiors and exteriors.  However, some cases occurred in areas where asbestos-containing whitewash was not used.  In these instances, exposures were not well characterized but may have been due to the presence of asbestos in road servicing and in disturbances of asbestos-contaminated soil.

Pure asbestos contains trillions of fibers per gram.  Therefore, even in soils containing relatively small percentages of asbestos, potentially high levels of exposure may occur episodically as a consequence of grading and construction, landscaping and gardening, vehicular suspension of road dust, or even children playing in the dirt.


I was also asked to speak briefly about relevant activities of the Department of Health Services.  In 1986, before the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment—for which Dr. Marty works and I worked for a while—before that office was created, the Department of Health Services undertook a risk assessment for airborne asbestos for the Air Resources Board’s Toxic Air Contaminants Program.  However, the focus at that time was on asbestos in ambient urban air, not on naturally occurring asbestos.  Since then, the Department of Health Services has worked with government agencies to reduce exposures for people living near the Atlas and Coalinga Mines, for users of the Bureau of Land Management’s Clear Creek Management Area, and for residents of Alviso where asbestos-laden fill material was unearthed by flooding in the 1980s.  The Department of Health Services has also provided technical information to local health officers related to naturally occurring asbestos, and several years ago the California Cancer Registry—which is run through the Department of Health Services’ Cancer Control Branch—conducted a brief analysis of mesothelioma incidents in selected areas of concern in El Dorado County.  This analysis was recently updated.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me interrupt you.


DR. LIPSETT:  I have two sentences left.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, let me ask you about the cancer research data that looked at El Dorado.  Do we have that data available?  I know they protect names, but is that information a separate study that we can look at?


DR. LIPSETT:  I think it was made publicly available back in around 1999, which was the original one; and then, it was recently updated, which I saw only in the form of email correspondence, but I think it was in response to a request from ATSDR.  So, I believe it’s publicly available, but I don’t have a copy with me.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Would you mind continuing, but if you can, give us the conclusions of that.  I may have interrupted you before you finished.  Is there any illuminating information?


DR. LIPSETT:  You mean with the update?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  On that El Dorado cancer/tumor registry data.


DR. LIPSETT:  Well, my understanding from this update was that they use the 2000 Census data rather than the 1990 data, which was used previously, and as a result, they predicted a larger number of mesotheliomas would occur.  The actually observed number, according to their records, was consistent with the number that was predicted.  That means it was not in excess of what they would have predicted based on just the population distribution.


SENATOR COX:  And what was the number, sir?


DR. LIPSETT:  I don’t want to quote the number . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We do have somebody that’s holding up the study.  Let’s allow him to finish, and maybe, perhaps, we can get a copy of that, if the sergeants wouldn’t mind getting a copy of that, the handout, and then we’ll be able to address it more directly.


DR. LIPSETT:  Basically, my understanding is that from that update, that there was not an excess of mesothelioma above what would have been expected based on the occurrence of mesothelioma in the rest of the Sacramento Cancer Registry region, which, I don’t know, that’s not an area in which I work, so I’m not that familiar with how much the Sacramento region encompasses in this.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s see if we can, in a future hearing, get somebody from the Cancer Registry, either in a hearing or maybe meet with you and us outside of this hearing, if they’re not here.


SENATOR COX:  [Inaudible.]

SENATOR ORTIZ:  He’s referencing it, but it’s not his area of expertise.  It appears to be that it doesn’t appear there’s a lot.  So, we’ll get more detail, I think.  It’s not his area.  He is not with the Cancer Registry.


DR. LIPSETT:  Let me finish here, and then I’ll address one dimension of what Senator Cox is concerned about.

In summary, from studies conducted in other areas, there is reason for concern about health risks from exposures to asbestos, particularly the amphiboles, and other speakers will address the difficulties in attempting to quantify these risks.

And thanks for your attention.  That’s all I wanted to say.


But with respect to the Cancer Registry’s analysis of mesothelioma, I personally don’t think that one would expect to find substantial numbers of mesothelioma in El Dorado County or the area that they were looking at; in part because of the latency period.  That is, the time between first exposure and when these things actually develop can be decades, and often for environmental exposures, as has occurred in other countries, the people may be exposed beginning at birth and you may not see these mesotheliomas appearing until people are in their thirties, forties, and fifties. 


So, considering that throughout a lot of areas where there’s been substantial residential development in the past couple of decades, one would not necessarily—even assuming that there might be some causal relationship there—one would not necessarily expect to see substantial numbers of these cases for decades now.


So, from that standpoint, I think it’s useful that the Cancer Registry can do these kinds of studies, but I wouldn’t necessarily predict to see much of anything as a result of those.


I don’t know if that helps you or not.



SENATOR COX:  But the matter is, Madam Chair, that the county’s been occupied with someone there in significant numbers since 1850.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, the 1990 Cancer Registry data would only give you a snapshot of persons possibly first exposed in the 1960s.


DR. LIPSETT:  No, not necessarily.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Or earlier.


DR. LIPSETT:  I think it would be better—actually, as Mr. Cox was suggesting.  I didn’t do the study.  It’d be better to talk to the people who actually did it to get quantitative data from them.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ll do that.


SENATOR COX:  I have a question for this gentleman.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


SENATOR COX:  Let me just ask you, sir—do you know of any studies in the U.S. where there is a linkage between low-level, intermittent exposure to asbestos with increased risk of mesothelioma?


DR. LIPSETT:  Of any published studies in the United States?


SENATOR COX:  Yes—with low-level, intermittent exposure.


DR. LIPSETT:  My understanding is—and I’m not intimately familiar with a lot of the unpublished data from Libby, Montana . . . 


SENATOR COX:  Let me stop you right there.  You’re not asserting that El Dorado County and Libby, Montana look anything alike.


DR. LIPSETT:  No.  If you’re asking if there are any studies that have been done in the United States that I’m aware of that look at environmental exposures . . . 


SENATOR COX:  Low-level.


DR. LIPSETT:  They’re low-level relative to occupational studies, but the studies that have been undertaken have generally been in areas around the Mediterranean where there’s a lot of faulting of the Earth’s crust, like there is in California and in New Caledonia.


SENATOR COX:  But you don’t know of any studies that have been done.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  New Caledonia has a study.


DR. LIPSETT:  Well, not in the United States, except for the studies around Libby.  But there are others that have been done that are related to people who live in neighborhoods of asbestos factories, but that’s not what you’re asking.


SENATOR COX:  No.  Let me just go one additional question.  You’re not trying to compare El Dorado, in the natural-occurring asbestos in El Dorado County, with Libby, Montana.  I want to get that perfectly clear today as to your professional opinion.  I’m not looking for your personal opinion; I’m looking for your professional opinion.


DR. LIPSETT:  I will have to tell you that I know generally what happened in the Libby situation, but I have not studied it in any detail.  The nature of the exposures there, where you had a mine and you had a factory, is different from El Dorado, if that’s what you’re asking.


SENATOR COX:  So, your statement, then, is that this is not the same as Libby, Montana.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think he has said he can’t state either way.


DR. LIPSETT:  It’s a different situation, but nonetheless, from what I understand, throughout the western slope of the Sierras, the geology is such that there are areas—not most of it—but there are some areas that do contain substantial quantities of amphibole asbestos.  In fact, there is a study that was done—it was an animal study—using some tremolite asbestos from Calaveras County, not El Dorado.  It was an animal study done in Scotland where they compared tremolite asbestos from six different parts of the world:  from the Sierras, from, I think, Scotland, Korea, a couple of other places.  The tremolite that was taken from Jamestown was the most carcinogenic in that particular study.


So, while—that’s right—Libby is not akin(?) to El Dorado or the western slope of the Sierras, nonetheless, there is this asbestos there that is the kind that one should have some concern about having exposures to.

SENATOR COX:  All right.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  We have another witness.  I do have questions, but I’m going to hold off, if you wouldn’t mind staying.


Welcome.


DR. MELANIE MARTY:  Thank you.  Good afternoon, Senator Ortiz and Members of the Health and Environmental Committees.  

My name is Melanie Marty.  I’m a toxicologist and I’m currently chief of the Air Toxicology and Epidemiology Section in the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment.  We are part of Cal/EPA and are the department devoted to assessing the health risks of exposures to chemicals in our environment.  That’s our primary responsibility.


I was asked to talk to you today about OEHHA’s role with regard to naturally occurring asbestos—an assessment of health impacts from exposure.


OEHHA provides health effects assessments of pollutants for use in several state regulatory programs, including the Air Resources Board’s Toxic Air Contaminant Program.  OEHHA conducts the health effects assessments that ARB then uses to identify substances as toxic air contaminants.


Asbestos was identified as a toxic air contaminant in 1986, and the designation was based on the health effects that you just heard described by Dr. Lipsett, including asbestosis, lung cancer, and mesothelioma in workers.  When asbestos was designated as a toxic air contaminant, the major concern was ubiquitous presence of asbestos in urban air, and this was primarily because of its use in brake lining and a whole bunch of other products, including construction materials.  


The health effects assessment performed by OEHHA, when we were actually in the Department of Health Services, reviewed available studies of workers exposed to asbestos in a number of industrial settings, and the industrial settings include mining and milling, textile and other products manufacturing, and so on.  We evaluated the relationship between the extent of exposure to asbestos and then subsequent development of asbestos-related disease in the workers, with a focus on the cancers that are induced by asbestos.  We developed what we call a Cancer Potency Factor, which gives you a handle on the potency of a compound as a carcinogen, to use in our assessments of cancer risk from exposure to asbestos in ambient air.  Now, the workers in these studies were exposed to mixed forms of asbestos that ranged from almost purely chrysotile to the form that’s most used in building materials and brake linings to predominantly amphibole.  Both types of asbestos are found in the Sierra foothills.

In 1986, the Air Resources Board had measures of average concentrations to which urban populations were routinely exposed in outdoor ambient air, and the ARB used those measurements in conjunction with our asbestos Cancer Potency Factor that we developed from the worker studies to estimate health risk that Californians faced from exposure to asbestos in ambient air.  

OEHHA has followed the scientific literature on asbestos over the years, since 1986, and there is no question that asbestos is a human carcinogen.  I don’t think anybody would argue that.  Studies of workers have provided most of the available information that we have to assess risks.  However, as Michael noted, there are relatively recent studies that describe mesothelioma and people exposed as a result of the presence of amphibole asbestos in the soil in their communities:  in Greece, Turkey, New Caledonia, and China.  Many, but not all, of these mesotheliomas in these populations were related to the use of the amphibole-containing soil in the community in various ways.  And Dr. Lipsett mentioned one way that it was used.


Unfortunately, the measurements of individuals’ exposures in these studies are inadequate for use in developing estimates of risk that Californians may face from naturally occurring asbestos.  However, these studies heighten concern about environmental exposures to asbestos.  


I’d like to make a couple of comments on the difficulties of assessing risk from exposure to naturally occurring asbestos present in the soil.  As was the case in 1986, the typical approach for assessing risk from an airborne carcinogen is to use a long-term, average concentration to which you’re routinely exposed in the calculation in estimating risk.  In the case of naturally occurring asbestos in the soil, the exposures of concern are primarily episodic.  In other words, they are short-term exposures to relatively high levels of asbestos occurring from activities that release the soil-borne fibers into the air; for example, while riding a mountain bike, driving down a road, digging in the dirt, gardening and so on.  It becomes more difficult, then, to determine an average air concentration to use in the typical risk assessment paradigm.  However, we believe that episodic exposures to asbestos are important, particularly in view of the long-time asbestos fibers remain in the body.  Unlike many other hazardous substances, the asbestos fibers are not readily eliminated.  So, a short-term exposure translates to a chronic dose.


While it’s obvious that the episodic exposures contribute to elevated exposure and risks for asbestos-related diseases, it’s quite difficult to actually quantify those risks with a lot of certainty.

I’d also like to point out that there is general concern among most scientists about exposing children to any carcinogen.  Children breathe more on a body-weight basis, and in an equivalent setting, they have a higher dose than an adult.  Cancer has a long latency between exposure to the carcinogen and manifestation of the disease.  When exposure occurs during childhood, as opposed to starting at adulthood, the children are actually at a higher risk from developing cancer—because they’re going to live longer and the disease will be allowed to manifest—than an adult receiving the same exposure.


OEHHA has worked with both the ARB and the Department of Toxic Substances Control to try to estimate risk from episodic exposures related to serpentine rock, which has been used extensively, or at least in the past, for surfacing unpaved roads, and serpentine rock, as Michael mentioned, contains asbestos.

Studies have been conducted—more than one—which measured asbestos fibers in the air after vehicles drove down these roads that were overlain with serpentine rock.  We estimated the health risks by making assumptions about how much time each day these elevated exposures might occur.  Any way one cuts the data, it’s clear that the exposures are elevated, particularly very close to these roads, and that the . . . [portion of text missing on tape] . . . elevated.

In closing, the presence of asbestos fibers in soil in California can pose elevated risks of cancer.  This is above the background risk.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m sorry—would you repeat that?


DR. MARTY:  The presence of asbestos fibers in soil in California can pose elevated risks of cancer above background risk when the fibers are released into the air from activities that disturb the soil.  Construction activities, driving on these roads I mentioned that were unpaved but surfaced with asbestos-containing rock, other activities, including doing sports, or anything that you’re doing to disturb the soil and bring the fibers into the air elevates the concentration of those fibers and thus elevates exposure.  These episodic exposures are important, and they increase the risk of asbestos-induced cancers to a level that is of regulatory concern.


That’s all I have.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for your testimony.  I have a few questions, but I’m sure Senator Cox does, and I’ll allow him to weigh in first.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you very much for your testimony.

I listened very carefully to what you said, by the way, but I also have a document, “Guidelines for Geological Investigation of Naturally Occurring Asbestos in California,” put out in 2002 by the Resources Agency, Mary D. Nichols, Secretary of Resources.  By the way, if you’re having difficultly sleeping, it’s a very interesting document to try to read.  But let me just quote a paragraph from it and see whether or not you agree with this.


It says, “While the process by which the asbestos minerals cause lung cancer have been studied, no general consensus has been reached by the medical community regarding the exact mechanism or combination of mechanisms by which these materials cause these diseases.”


Would that be your conclusion as well?


 DR. MARTY:  Yes, I think it’s fair to say that we’d be fooling ourselves if we said we knew the exact mechanism for the cause of cancer from asbestos or many other carcinogens.  That’s not to say that they don’t induce cancer.  We know that pretty well.

SENATOR COX:  It also goes on to say that there’s not a general consensus among the medical community about the potency of different fiber sizes, the relative potency of different asbestos species, and potential health effects of cleavage fragments versus fibers.


So, having said all of that, can you tell me what the risk in one million is in the urban setting of cancer from asbestos-related pollutants?

DR. MARTY:  Well, the concentrations that I am aware of that were measured back in the late ’70s had approximately a 1 in 10,000 risk associated with it.  You have to understand that these are relative estimates.  You can’t pinpoint it.


SENATOR COX:  Is it safe for me to conclude that the studies show that there is a greater concentration in the urban areas than in the rural areas?

DR. MARTY:  You know, I don’t think we can say that right now.  The Air Board does not routinely measure for asbestos in ambient air because of decreases of uses of asbestos.  The whole idea was to get it out of the ambient air.  So, I think that, certainly, the exposures have come down.  I don’t know if I could make a comparison without looking at some more data between, for example, El Dorado County or San Francisco.

SENATOR COX:  I’ll tell you what.  I know you’re going to sit through this meeting.  I have, in fact, a significant amount of data.  I just can’t find that statistic this very second but I will.


DR. MARTY:  It’s a good question for the Air Resources Board.  Those are the guys that do all the measuring.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  We are going to hear from ARB, but I hope that you will stick around, and when Senator Cox finds the questions he wants to raise, if they’re appropriate, to be raised to you or anyone, certainly, I hope that you’ll stick around for the hearing to be able to lend some insight.


Senator Cox, is that . . .?


SENATOR COX:  I’m looking for that quote.  I must tell you, I was reading it on the way to sleep the other night, Madam Chair.  That’s the reason I’m having the problem of finding it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask a few questions, as Senator Cox is looking for his information.

Let me just go back and have you help us define the two major types of naturally occurring asbestos.  What are the two categories again?


DR. LIPSETT:  There’s the serpentine family whose sole member is chrysotile asbestos.  And then, there are the amphiboles.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Which is the tremolite.


DR. LIPSETT:  Tremolite occurs in both fibrous and nonfibrous forms.  So, that includes the fibrous form of tremolite and actinolite, crocidolite.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Hold on.  Actinolite is a fibrous or a non?


DR. LIPSETT:  Well, actinolite also has a fibrous form, and then, there are others like crocidolite and amosite and anthophyllite.  There are a variety of these things.  I’d be happy to provide them.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s helpful.  And, of course, the type in question here today where we’re focusing is the amphiboles in the El Dorado region, or do they also include some of those serpentine?


DR. LIPSETT:  Well, serpentine is the state rock . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I understand.  Isn’t that interesting?


DR. LIPSETT:  . . . having been so declared, I think, by the Legislature about a half-century ago.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s consistent with the foothills and certainly our gold miners—the ’49ers.


DR. LIPSETT:  Yes.  Most of the asbestos that’s found throughout the state is the chrysotile form, but it is often mixed in with amphiboles, and then, there are also areas where amphiboles may occur, like in clear veins, in distinct veins, adjacent to these others.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, in El Dorado County, what is the primary source of naturally occurring asbestos?

DR. LIPSETT:  The primary type of asbestos that you’re going to find throughout California is chrysotile.  But, from the standpoint of the risks related to mesothelioma, for example, the amphiboles are generally considered by virtually all researchers to be more potent in causing cancer.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think this is a question for Dr. Marty.  The episodic—and just so that we understand.  I mean, this is a new area of research, and there is relatively little data on naturally occurring, certainly in this country and certainly in California.  What we’re trying to do is sort through the episodic exposure in naturally occurring asbestos, and that episodic exposure includes activities such as construction, cycling, digging, playing sports, and driving.  I mean, that is the difficulty of trying to translate an absence of a lot of data into a risk assessment model.


So, just so that I understand, there have been studies done on this more passive type of exposure—well, less of an industrial or work setting exposure—but they have been done in other countries:  Greece, Turkey, New Caledonia, and China.  Are there any U.S. studies of naturally occurring episodic exposure thus far?  You may have said but if you could reiterate or highlight where those studies are or how large they are, whether we can use those as guidelines.

DR. MARTY:  In terms of published studies, I have to say that I am unaware of any that were done in the United States.  But I can say that you will likely hear from people who are going to testify after me from the federal government about the work they have done in Libby, Montana.  Some of those people were exposed occupationally.  Some of them were what we call “take-home” exposures:  They lived in a house with somebody who worked in the mine.  And others of those folks were exposed in their environment, which, I grant you, was likely very highly contaminated due to that mine.  But other than that area, I’m unaware that anyone has published a study looking specifically at mesothelioma.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate you for triggering that.  We do have a currently under-peer-review study, and it’s in our packet:  “Exposures and Health Effects From Inorganic Agricultural Dusts.”  It’s the abstract of what is now in peer review a study that may or may not address this point.  That’s from Dr. Schenker, who could not join us today, and he was very clear about this being in peer review.  So, it’s not published yet, but hopefully, it’s shortly going to be finalized and published.  We do have an abstract, and we will hear from the U.S. EPA.

I appreciate you distinguishing the Libby, Montana model because I think that’s Senator Cox’s concern, is that the bulk of the Libby, Montana exposure was industrial; it was workplace.  It was not passive or episodic exposure.  However, there’s a subcategory of persons who were exposed that probably fall into that episodic category; although, it’s not a distinct episodic study.  But I think it’s fair to say those who didn’t work but lived in a community in which someone brought it home on their clothes or they drove by a road every day or the children played on a playground adjacent to, or not so adjacent to given air patterns.  So, I think it’s fair to say that although Libby, Montana is not on point—it is, indeed, an industrial occupational exposure model, which we want to be careful not to apply to this new emerging issue—it is fair to say that some of that exposure in that study would indeed fall under the episodic exposure category.

DR. MARTY:  Yes, I think that’s fair to say.  I’d also remind you of something that Dr. Lipsett said a little earlier, in that there are a number of case reports of occupational but very short-term occupational exposures that lead to mesothelioma thirty or forty years down the line.  I wouldn’t say that’s a common thing, but there are definitely multiple case reports where the person’s only known exposure was for like a summer job.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right.  Okay. 


And then, let me also say that there is a discussion about urban versus nonurban exposures.  I think we have studied urban exposure far longer.  We have put measures in place to address it, but we probably have an absence of nonurban exposure level data.  Therefore, one could argue that you’re at greater risk if you’re exposed in an urban setting versus a nonurban setting.  But I think another way of looking at that is, well, nonurban areas are just recently becoming developed.  And I say “recent”—in the last twenty to thirty years—at least in the pace that we have seen in development in nonurban areas.  And secondly, the urban exposure types.  It took us years to gather the data on brake linings and flue linings and insulation in homes.  I mean, it’s that body of evidence that was our first phase of understanding asbestos exposure.  This is a new frontier; it truly is.  The absence of information on nonurban exposure does not suggest. . . . I would be not likely to conclude that therefore there is no risk.  It’s just therefore we don’t have enough data.  So, let me just suggest that.

Let me see, are there questions from other committee members of these two speakers?


Senator Cox, did you . . .?


SENATOR COX:  Well, I found it.  You have this book in front of you, I think.  It’s listed under the ARB.  It talks about a fact sheet.  I just want to be sure that today we get on the record.  You will note to where it says “Asbestos Monitoring at Oak Ridge High School.”  Do you see that?  It doesn’t have a page number, and I apologize.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, under the tab of ARB.  How many pages after the tab, Senator?


SENATOR COX:  About half-way.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  After the green sheet that separates?


SENATOR COX:  It’s right before the green sheet.  It says, “Asbestos Monitoring at Oak Ridge High School.”


Let me just, if I may, point out to you that it talks about the estimated risk in a 10-hour sample.  You see the number six?  You see that?

DR. MARTY:  Yes.


SENATOR COX:  And then, it says 23-hour, and the exposure goes down to three.  Do you see that?  And then, “all samples” was five.  Do you see that part?


DR. MARTY:  Yes.


SENATOR COX:  And then, it says underneath that, in the paragraph following, it says, “The risk assessment methodologies assume that a person is exposed for a lifetime—about 70 years.”  And then it goes on to say that “This should not be interpreted to mean that it is necessary to be exposed to asbestos for 70 years in order to contract asbestos-related cancer.”  It then goes on to say, “Short-term exposures may result in [some] lower risk.  Therefore, the estimated risks are used as a tool for comparison purposes in understanding the relative amount of risk.”  And then it goes on to say, “For example, many local air districts [consider] 10 in a million cancer risk.”  That’s what you were saying, 10 in a million.  Correct?

DR. MARTY:  Correct.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.  Before they look at a hotspot issue.  In this particular situation, we see the numbers 6, 3, and 5, which certainly doesn’t even come up to the hotspot number, which, generally speaking, is the measuring stick for declaring it some sort of problem.

Then it goes on to say—and this was the number that I was looking for, by the way—it says, “To put risk numbers into perspective, the estimated potential cancer risk from air toxics on a statewide average is about 750 chances in a million.”  I point that out to you only because I think it’s important that as we have this hearing we continue to recognize that to the extent that you create confusion and unnecessary alarm in a community does a disservice to the state and to that particular community, and that’s the reason I want to point that data out to you, when you make broad generalizations about what will transpire because of natural-occurring asbestos.


DR. MARTY:  Can I make a comment, Senator?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Certainly.  Go ahead.  I was happy to clarify that it wasn’t your study, but you go ahead and do whatever you think is appropriate to respond to that.


DR. MARTY:  I think that you’re making a good point; that you do need to put risk in perspective.  It’s a lot easier for somebody like me to do that than somebody who’s not in the risk assessment business.  That’s for sure.  I also would like to point out that these samples were ambient monitors that were put out to look at the general background levels around that area.  So, that’s important to note; these were not reflective of episodic exposures, which is the exposures that we think are important and that we’re concerned about.  So, controlling those exposures is important.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox, do you have further questions or comments?

SENATOR COX:  Not of these two, thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me just reiterate because one is ARB—and we are going to hear from them.  I think it is very important that we be very careful, as we’re pursuing and understanding this new world, of an absence of substantive data, or at least a huge body of evidence that is dealing with episodic, almost passive but background exposure.  Ambient is more background.  We go through this debate, and Senator Kuehl and I went through this on background exposure to low-level radioactive waste.  I mean, it is very important to understand that this ARB ambient study—excuse me.  This study reflected ambient exposure.  At least my sense is, if we’re going to look at this more closely—and we saw some of the episodic measurements that are done by U.S. EPA, where you are actually looking at a person digging in a garden or a person, particularly children, close to the ground, playing sports on a regular basis in which the soil is disrupted.  

Episodic is a more concentrated, realistic, day-to-day, I think—the reality of many families who live in this area—way to measure potential risk or no risk.  And this study by ARB suggests a low level of risk but doesn’t suggest no risk.  Let me be clear here.  There is some risk that is suggested even with this model, and we’ll hear from ARB to explain that.  But it is very different than what should be, in my mind, an appropriate way of measuring, which would be the episodic exposure levels.  That means you’re cycling up there on an unpaved road, you’re digging in a garden in which you didn’t know whether or not. . . . you may live in an area in which none of these veins occur, quite frankly.  Or you are driving every day on a road or cycling every day on a road or you’re playing sports.  I mean, episodic exposure is significant, and it is not without risk.  We simply don’t know how episodic is a risk in this area, and that needs to be very clear.  But this study here does not reflect the kind of study I think needs to be done in order to determine whether there’s a risk or no risk. 

So, I think it’s important that we understand the study.  We’re going to hear from the ARB, but there is a difference between the kind of testing that I think would be more reflective of either saying to this community there’s no risk or there is a risk, and I think we have yet to embark upon that kind of extensive study.  Hopefully, we’ve gotten a little bit of it with the U.S. EPA study, and we’ll hear from them.


With that, unless there are other questions, thank you so much.  And if you want to stick around, certainly I think there’ll be questions that are raised with the other speakers.  But thank you.  You’ll be available to Senator Cox or any other member of the committee if we want to get a little fuller understanding of what you presented today?


DR. MARTY:  Absolutely.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, and I appreciate that.


Let me now invite the next panel to come forward.  And the next panel will be addressing the issue of the data on asbestos levels and risk collected from El Dorado County, or from the El Dorado area, and we have Mr. Daniel Meer, branch chief of the U.S. EPA, Region 9.  Welcome.  And we have Mr. John Wheeler, who is a senior toxicologist, Agency for Toxic Substances Disease Registry, which is the counterpart to our DTSC.  Is that fair to say?  Department of Toxic Substances Control.  Or OEHHA?

UNIDENTIFIED:  Sort of like OEHHA.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  A combination of both.  Thank you.


Mr. Meer, I think you’re first.  


MR. DANIEL MEER:  Thank you, Madam Chair, members of the committee.  My name is Daniel Meer.  I’m a branch chief with the United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), Region 9, in San Francisco.  Thank you for the opportunity to testify today.


I’d like to take you briefly and briskly through some slides that I presented last Friday night to the El Dorado Hills community.  The point of that presentation was to answer, basically, four questions:  Why did U.S. EPA do the study in El Dorado Hills?  How was the study conducted?  What did we find?  And what do we think it means?


The next slide, please.


Why did we do the study?  Well, it started because some previous work that the El Dorado Union High School District did at Oak Ridge High School, a nearby high school, indicated that disturbance of soil could result in fairly high levels of asbestos fibers in the air.  That peaked our interest, and we had some complaints from the community.  In addition, we were petitioned by a citizen to look at the surrounding area near the high school.


Next slide.


We wanted to look at what we describe as the “Pig Pen Effect,” or the “personal dust cloud,” because in many venues across the country, what we’re seeing is that disturbance of soil creates a personal cloud around the individual doing the activity that results in significantly higher levels of fiber in the breeding zone, and we use the Pig Pen character from Peanuts to illustrate this point.


Next slide, please.


So, what we did was very simple:  We made two measurements.  We put personal monitors on individuals who simulated various activities, such as sports, gardening, observing sports, and other activities, and we measured the level of asbestos in their breathing zone.  And then we took a measurement away from that activity—outside the area of that activity—and then we contrasted those two measurements.  It was very simple.


Next slide, please.


So, here’s an example of some of the testing that we did.  You can see that the individuals are wearing the portable battery pack and pump, and we had samplers that were set at either three feet in height to simulate a child’s breathing zone or five feet in height to simulate an adult breathing zone.  Now, some people say that five feet doesn’t really simulate an average American’s breathing zone; but it simulates my breathing zone, so that was the main thing that I was worried about.  [Laughter.]


Next slide, please.

Again, playing soccer, you can see the battery pack, and it was really pretty straightforward.  We made two measurements.  We measured asbestos levels during the activity.  We measured asbestos levels away from the activity, and we compared them.


Next slide.


This map you can’t really see very clearly, but it is in the materials that we submitted to the committee for the record.  Just to illustrate where we did these studies, it was Jackson Elementary School to the north.  There was a Community Services park.  There was a nature trail between the two.  There was the Rolling Hills Middle School, and then, Silva Valley Elementary School; and on the map, the Oak Ridge High School track and field/football field was also clearly visible.


The next slide shows one of these comparison samplers that I alluded to previously, and these were the samplers that were away from the activity.  So, the idea was that we do an activity, we measure an asbestos level, and we compare it to the levels that were not affected by the activity.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, let me just clarify it.  Would that be an ambient exposure example, this control?


MR. MEER:  Well, I think we have to be very careful about how we describe what this sample represents, and we can get into that in a little more detail because a classic ambient or background level is something that Mr. Scheible from CARB can talk about a little bit more.

This was an eight-hour sample over eleven days in October.  In other words, what we did is we took an average of five, eight-hour samples each of the days in October that we conducted our study.  So, it represents just a snapshot in October.  It does not represent the classic background where you do an annual survey—winter, spring, summer, and fall—twenty-four hours a day, day and night.  That probably would be a useful study to do, but that is not what this represents.


SENATOR COX:  And is it your intention to do a study?


MR. MEER:  It’s not my intention to do such a study.  That would be either the Air Resources Board or the local air quality management districts.


SENATOR COX:  So, you would acknowledge, then, Mr. Meer, that your study is skewed, based upon being completed in October without consideration for the other months of the year.


MR. MEER:  No.  I would say that it’s not skewed.  You have to take it for what it represents, which is eight hours’ worth of data on one day in October.  It does not represent background.  It does not represent the walk-around level.


SENATOR COX:  With all the rain we’ve been having in the last thirty days, you probably wouldn’t get that today, would you?


MR. MEER:  That’s very possible, and that’s why you need an annual, year-long seasonal study to get the true walk-around level.  Now, I will say that if you take the level that we found in that sampler and you crank it into our risk model, you get a risk of 1 in 10,000.

SENATOR COX:  Well, maybe we can talk about how you establish your risk model.


MR. MEER:  I’d be happy to do that, but I agree with you totally that this does not represent the walk-around exposure that people get typically.  In order to do that, you need to do a year-long seasonal study to really get a true value.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  A true background ambient.


MR. MEER:  True background.  Mr. Scheible is in a much better position to speak to that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  We’ll continue.  I know we interrupted your presentation.


MR. MEER:  That’s fine.


Next slide, please.


Just a quick overview of the results.  Again, I think we need to remember that these are limited venues.  We cannot extrapolate these results to other venues.  I think further investigation may be appropriate to see if other venues have results that are consistent with these.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me make sure I understand.  Your studies were focused on schools, trails, and playgrounds.

MR. MEER:  Exactly right.  The Community Services park, the three schools, and the New York Creek Nature Trail.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Appreciate that.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, as he has said that, let me just ask you, how did you identify those property lines specifically?  You confined your studies to school property and a trail.  How did you distinguish those areas?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask, why did you pick those areas?


SENATOR COX:  That’s fine.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Versus other areas.


MR. MEER:  The petitioner requested probably a half dozen or more areas for us to look at.  We tried to narrow it down to places where we would have a mix of native soil and also imported fill material and where children congregate because we were concerned about the exposures to children because of their longer life expectancy and the latency period of these diseases.  We selected schools, frankly, where we could get good cooperation from these school districts in terms of access and where children congregate because that’s what we wanted to focus this on.

SENATOR COX:  You call that activity sampling, do you not?


MR. MEER:  Personal activity-based sampling, yes.


SENATOR COX:  Have you ever done that in any other place in the United States?


MR. MEER:  Yes.  We’ve done it in a number of different places.


SENATOR COX:  Just give me . . . 


MR. MEER:  Klamath Falls, Oregon; Quincy, Michigan; Lowry Air Force Based in Colorado.  I believe in Minnesota there was a site where that was done.  And it’s been done in occupational settings for about a hundred years.


SENATOR COX:  Where there was natural-occurring asbestos?

MR. MEER:  Where there was contamination of soil.  This is the first time that we’ve done it in a purely natural . . . 


SENATOR COX:  So, this was the first time you’ve ever done it with natural-occurring asbestos.


MR. MEER:  That’s right.  The other venues were where, for example, demolition of buildings had asbestos-containing material.


SENATOR COX:  I understand, but this is natural-occurring asbestos.  That’s my question.


MR. MEER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you, Mr. Meer.


MR. MEER:  So, an overview of our results:  Asbestos was observed in virtually all of the air samples and in virtually all of the scenarios.  I think a significant finding is that amphibole—tremolite and actinolite—was the main fiber type found and that there was a clear connection between activity and the measures leveled during the simulations.  We are still getting results in, so this is an incomplete set of results, but we felt that it was enough that we needed to present it to the community.

Next slide, please.


This is just a very narrow snapshot of some of the results, and I just want to point out the way that we compared these results.  This column—and you have materials in front of you with a complete set of these data.  This column represents the personal samples that were measured in each of these scenarios; so the New York Creek Trail—biking, in the Tot Lot at the Community Services park, and then at Rolling Hills Middle School—soccer.  These are the personal exposure levels in fibers per cubic centimeter.  These are the comparison samples.  This is just this number divided by this number.  So, what this means is that when you bike on the New York Trail, you are exposed to 42 times what the comparison sampler showed.  That does not mean—it does not mean—that you are at 42 times greater risk.  This is a very important point.  This study was designed to compare exposures.  It was not designed to calculate risk because of the problems with risk assessment that the previous witnesses alluded to.

I’d be happy to talk to you about that and talk to you about some sort of back-of-the-envelope calculations that we’ve done, but this study was designed to compare exposure.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  And I want to reiterate that.  It’s exposure which has not been equated to risk of disease/cancer.


MR. MEER:  Yes.  One could use these to calculate risk, but we don’t feel that it’s appropriate in many ways because you’re extrapolating to 30-year, 24/7 exposure over a lifetime.  This is the issue that has really troubled the community, is that the risk models are not a good tool right now to evaluate these short-term, intermittent exposures.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask a question.  On this New York Trail biking, this is a mountain bike trail, or is this road-bike exposure?


MR. MEER:  It’s a nature trail that people jog.  They stroll, they pick flowers.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, it’s unpaved.


MR. MEER:  Yes, it’s unpaved.  It’s natural terrain.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Appreciate that.


MR. MEER:  Next slide, please.


So, just some of the factors that increase the risk potential—and again, because the quantification is so difficult, we have to be a lot more qualitative.  The level of fiber in the air, how long the exposure occurs, how often, and the time lapse are four of the main factors.  

And so, what I would say, and what I have said to parents and others who have asked—for example, a child that bikes on the New York Trail five days a week for two hours a day for the months of June, July, August, September, just as an example—it’s a hypothetical—is going to be at higher risk than a child that bikes thirty minutes a week during a damp month such as November or December.  That’s the way, I believe, it’s appropriate to interpret these sorts of results in a qualitative way.  If you reduce exposure by biking thirty minutes a day one time a week versus two hours a day every day during dusty conditions, you will reduce your risk.

Next slide, please.


So, in summary, what we found is that there is a clear correlation between disturbance of surfaces and higher fiber levels in the air.  There may be an increased risk of long-term health effects.  The quantification is very difficult, and we acknowledge that.  We are, in fact, asking an expert panel to look at our data to try to help us understand it better in terms of the long-term risk.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  When will that data be available?


MR. MEER:  The data is available now, but we’re in the process of getting this panel together.  We’re in the process of convening an expert advisory panel outside of EPA to help us understand these data.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And who might be on that panel?


MR. MEER:  We’re asking for internationally recognized experts, and we’ve consulted with the state and with ATSDR, and we’ve asked the public health officials in the county to participate as well in selecting the members.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Wonderful.  We look forward to updates.


MR. MEER:  Absolutely.  Be happy to do that.  


Again, another point we believe is that the community as a whole—this is really a local land-use planning issue.  Local decisions need to be made about what these mean.  I mean, we can try to help explain what they mean, but the next steps are really the local’s need to make some decisions.


Next slide.


What can be done?  Again, reducing exposure reduces risk.  We think that reasonable and appropriate steps can be taken to reduce those exposures.  We can’t reconstruct or change the past exposure, but we can focus future and current actions on prevention, and there are very good tools to do that.  Again, the entire community—state and county government, business leaders, schools, service providers, the public—everybody needs to participate in this.


And that concludes my testimony.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.  I know we have another witness here for testimony.


SENATOR COX:  Can I ask Mr. Meer some questions, if I may?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Certainly.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


Good to see you, Dan.


MR. MEER:  Same.


SENATOR COX:  Let me just ask you—I want to be sure for the record.  Am I correct that the petition was requested by someone who lives outside of El Dorado County?


MR. MEER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR COX:  Let me ask you how the EPA or even the gentleman on your right, how the ATSDR would respond if there were petitions submitted in 44 of the 48 counties that have naturally occurring asbestos?

MR. MEER:  Well, I think we would evaluate them as we evaluate it . . . 


SENATOR COX:  Could you handle 44 or 48 petitions?


MR. MEER:  We could.  We would evaluate them as we evaluated this one.  You know, that issue about 44 counties has been mentioned quite a bit, but we’re not aware of any other area that has the convergence of the rapid development, the earth moving on top of the tremolite deposit that we see in El Dorado Hills.  It may be present in other places, and if it is, I think it would be worth taking a look.  But we’re not aware of all those factors being present in the other 44 counties.


SENATOR COX:  Mr. Meer, are you aware that since 2001 the El Dorado County Board has continually requested the federal EPA to promulgate standards to identify what outdoor asbestos background there is in California and the United States?


MR. MEER:  I’m only aware of a letter that we received in September maybe a year or two ago asking us for help.


SENATOR COX:  There’s a letter written to you on August 21, 2001, and a letter written to you on April 8, 2003.


MR. MEER:  Yes, I’m aware of that.  I’m aware of those letters.


SENATOR COX:  The fact of the matter is, the federal EPA didn’t even bother to acknowledge those letters.  Or did you, in fact, respond and I’m just not aware of that?


MR. MEER:  Oh, I believe we did respond, and I’m sure I could get the response to you.


SENATOR COX:  Do you mind doing that, because it’s my understanding that you did not respond.


You know, there are a significant number of . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s allow you the opportunity to bring that forward.  It’s not a fair question if we haven’t had time to go back over the hundreds of thousands of correspondence.

SENATOR COX:  I appreciate that.  This is a pretty sensitive area.  From that standpoint, if there is a letter, I’d like to have it.


MR. MEER:  Senator, we were delighted to get that letter, actually, because previously, the county had indicated that they weren’t really interested in us coming in and doing anything in the county.


SENATOR COX:  It’s my understanding that the agency, the federal EPA, has been inserting itself in local land-use decision-making processes.  Is that correct?


MR. MEER:  No.  In fact, I think we’d all agree that the federal government is a lousy land-use planner.


SENATOR COX:  Have you ever had any conversations with El Dorado County about local land use?


MR. MEER:  We’ve had discussions, and we’ve always said that these are local decisions that need to be made at the local level.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you, sir.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me thank you for your presentation.  I have a few questions.  I was going to actually hold off until the full panel, so I think I’ll do that.  But let me suggest that I think that if, indeed, there’s a problem, which we can’t determine with any certainty yet that there is, I think there’s a lot of information gathering, but I think it’s going to take local/state/federal participation and cooperation.  The fact that land-use decisions are made at the local level is the reality, but I think we also have to recognize that the U.S. EPA and the Department of Health Services and the appropriate state oversight agencies have a legitimate either health and safety or environmental right to be a participant in those decisions.  But I think the mitigation measures. . . . I mean, we do see precedent in federal law and state law in other areas of environmental concerns with lead exposure as well.  So, there’s a convergence of, indeed, federal, state, and local decision-making processes, but what we need is solid information and data and good science to find out where that appropriate relationship should lie.


Let me hold off on my questions until after the second speaker.


Mr. Wheeler, welcome.  Let me have you introduce yourself to the committee.


MR. JOHN WHEELER:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  On behalf of our agency, I’d like to thank you for inviting us here today.


I’m John Wheeler.  I was the senior scientist on the Oak Ridge High School evaluation.  To my right is Susan Muza.  She’s our regional representative out here in this part of the country.


We were requested by a community member within the El Dorado area to take a look at the Oak Ridge High School and evaluate it for the human health impacts from past and present exposures.  


Next slide, please.


When we do that, we have to take a look at all the environmental data that’s out there that’s usually gathered by other organizations than us, such as EPA or the state—in this case, part of it was gathered by the school board—and evaluate that data.  We looked at indoor air sampling, outdoor air sampling, soil sampling, dust sampling, and some other measurements that we had that were going on through mediation around the school at the time.  

We think that, as Dan stated previously, that the most important type of sampling data that we have is activity-based sampling.  The levels seem to be fairly low when there is no activity going on, but when we look at activities, we begin to see large changes in the amount.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now, can I ask, when you say activity level, is that synonymous with episodic exposure?


MR. WHEELER:  Yes, it would be.  It would be an activity, say, like a football game that was going on or a baseball game that was going on, and it would only go on during that time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


MR. WHEELER:  Next slide, please.


So, then we evaluated the types of behaviors we thought that were going on at the school that would lead to different types of exposures, and most of those behaviors are based upon what your occupation is at the school or what you do at the school.  We came up with this list of groups that you see here:  the coaches, the outdoor maintenance workers, the student athletes, other students, teachers, indoor cleaning staff, parents of athletes, and what we call the “loyal sports spectator”:  someone that would come out to football games, baseball games, soccer games; that kind of thing.  


Next slide, please.


We could then take the amount of time that those people spent in each one of those activities and relate the amount of time that they’re spending out on the soccer field or coaching baseball or whether they’re students indoors all day and relate that to the levels that we found in those environments.  A student that’s inside all day isn’t being exposed to the fibers that are out on the baseball field, but a baseball player would be exposed for two or three hours while he’s playing the game out there.  We take those levels and then we can come up with a combined estimated exposure for that individual.


Now, as you heard earlier, some of the risk models that are out there are not good at doing episodic exposures.  So, what we did in this case was we averaged that exposure over a lifetime.  Now, I don’t mean if you were getting one fiber per cc when you’re playing a game that you would average that over your entire lifetime.  We would divide that to a very small amount of fibers that you would see over your lifetime.  Let’s say you were exposed for one day to some kind of fiber level.  To average that over a week, we’d divide that number by seven.  We’re simply extrapolating that little episodic exposure over your entire lifetime.

When we did that, we found that there were three groups that we were concerned about.  The risk of their exposure seemed to be at a level that we would be concerned.  And those were the coaches, the outdoor maintenance workers, and the student athletes.  We think that that is probably due to the fact that they spend a lot of time outside, and that’s where we found most of the high levels of fibers that were associated with the activity-based sampling that went on outside.

So, what are our conclusions from this work?  The first conclusion is that we have data now that shows what the levels are presently at the school, and we also have the remediation data showing what all was remediated at the school.  We do not think presently at the school that there is a concern.  Exposures at the school at this time . . . 

SENATOR COX:  Say it again.  I’m sorry.


MR. WHEELER:  We don’t think presently at the school that the exposures are of concern.  The exposures have been minimized.  The remediation effort that was at the school was successful, and the levels that we’ve seen in the indoor testing in the classrooms and some of the sampling that went on during the remediation, we don’t think there’s a problem there right now.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s because some remediation measures were put in place.

MR. WHEELER:  That’s correct.  We think those remediation methods needed to be done.


SENATOR COX:  And those remediation methods were to put grass in the outfield on the baseball diamond.  You put grass on the soccer field and the baseball field.  That’s the remediation you’re talking.  Paving certain areas—covering them.


MR. MEER:  Yes.  We did a bunch of paving in the quad areas, for example, and we covered bare spots with filter fabric and then either landscaped or put gravel or other surfaces so that we keep the dust—or the dirt that contains the fibers from being disturbed.  As long as that filter fabric remains covered up, there shouldn’t be any exposure.

MR. WHEELER:  The soccer field right now, the bank that was cut into has been covered with a concrete material.  I think it’s gunite.  And the field itself has a barrier, first of all, a plastic barrier; then it has one foot of fresh fill.  Then there’s a sprinkler system put in place there and then another foot of fill on top of that and a grass surface on top of that.  So, if the sprinkler system ever breaks, you don’t have to dig through the barrier to get it fixed.


SENATOR COX:  Do you think that’s well under control at this point in time?


MR. WHEELER:  Yes, I do.


SENATOR COX:  You don’t think there’s an abnormal risk factor at this particular point in time.


MR. WHEELER:  Not for the students that are currently there.  No, I do not.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask:  When were these remediation measures put in place?  It was after the testing showed some concern.  Or was it before?  Were they in the process?


MR. MEER:  The school did some work, I think it was 2003 and early ’04, and we completed it the summer of ’04, if I’m not mistaken.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You completed the remediation.


MR. MEER:  Completed the remedial work on the campus, yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the measurement was done at what time of the high school?


MR. MEER:  Which measurement?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Where were the exposure levels?

MR. WHEELER:  They were both pre- and post-remediation.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Pre- and post-.


MR. WHEELER:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, pre-remediation and then significant remediation.  I mean, I think doable, obviously.


MR. MEER:  Very doable.  It’s a question of money, but it’s very doable.  I mean, technically it’s very doable.  It’s a resource question.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  I appreciate that because I think Senator Cox’s point is, there are remediation measures in place.  Certainly, there’s a level of confidence regarding the remediation measures at that site appropriate for those three categories that might be at risk.  But it’s important to illustrate that those were not in place and there had to be some data that suggested you might want to go a bit further.


SENATOR COX:  By the way, with respect to El Dorado County, is it your understanding that the county board of supervisors specifically in the unincorporated area have instituted dust remediation control measures?


MR. WHEELER:  Outside of Oak Ridge High School?


SENATOR COX:  Yes sir.


MR. WHEELER:  I don’t know the answer to that question.


SENATOR COX:  Do you know, Mr. Meer?


MR. MEER:  If I’m not mistaken, the county is in the process of revising their dust control measures.  Actually, our Air Division has been providing some comment in helping them develop those.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And we will get an opportunity to hear from the county.


MR. MEER:  I believe they’ve been either proposed or about to be proposed, but I don’t believe they’ve been passed.


SENATOR COX:  So, is it your testimony that you don’t believe they’ve had dust control methods in El Dorado County for the last four to five years?


MR. MEER:  No, they have.  They’re being revised.  I think what we’re suggesting to them is that they need to be more stringent in order to control dust that contains asbestos.  In order to control dust, the rules need to be more stringent.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And I think they’re in the process of upgrading.  We’ll hear from them.


SENATOR COX:  Mr. Meer, I don’t mean to put you on the spot, but have you seen these measures? 


MR. MEER:  I’ve seen a few drafts, but my Air Division colleagues are the ones that have reviewed them.


SENATOR COX:  We’ll ask them that question when they come.


MR. MEER:  No, no.  My U.S. EPA Air Division colleagues are not here today.

SENATOR COX:  Okay.  And I appreciate the fact you’re not speaking for them.  We’ll get it.


MR. MEER:  They’ve reviewed them and they’ve commented on them.  We can supply you with the comment letters.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Maybe you could send those to us as well and we’ll share that with the committee members.


You had not finished your conclusions.  You want to go through those?

MR. WHEELER:  I think we pretty well talked about two and three here.  The exposures to amphibole asbestos in the past were probably high enough that we were concerned about those three groups.  And those groups will have an increased risk of disease.  That does not mean that they’ll get disease.  That means that the risk is increased of possibly getting that disease.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Their exposure level was increased, but we don’t have a risk assessment model to determine what the standards should be to project.

MR. WHEELER:  No, but we looked at that risk based on these lifetime models, and that risk that we found, we think that we can qualitatively say that it’s high enough that we’re concerned about it.


SENATOR COX:  So, let me just be sure then.  The lifetime model is 24 hours a day, seven days a week, for 70 years.


MR. WHEELER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR COX:  And you then, in fact, somehow modified that model to reflect a lower threshold?


MR. WHEELER:  We modified the exposures to reflect that.  Let’s say you were exposed for 24 hours a day for one year, okay?  We would essentially divide that exposure by 70 to extrapolate it to 70 years.  In other words, we’re taking a very little exposure and saying you’re exposed to it over your entire life, rather than taking one big episodic exposure and saying you’re exposed to it for four hours.


SENATOR COX:  Isn’t this a stacking effect, though, by the way?  The longer you’re exposed to it the greater your risk?

MR. WHEELER:  That may be true with lung cancer, but that is probably not true with mesothelioma.  Mesothelioma risk models are what we call exponential models, and they have a large effect of the time from your first exposure.  If you look at the relationship between mesothelioma and a population and the time from their first exposure, that’s most closely correlated to their disease rate.  So, early exposures are very critical.


SENATOR COX:  I had a note here from myself that it was your department, ATSDR, that indicated relative to the ambient air quality that it was significantly higher in the urban areas than even in the rural areas that were undergoing development.


MR. WHEELER:  That may be in our asbestos toxicological profile, and that’s probably from past exposure data that was done in higher density populations like New York City or Houston or someplace where ambient monitoring was done within the city while we were using all these products in commerce.  I think that’s the conclusion we made in the past.  There is still some asbestos in brakes from foreign cars and whatnot, but the asbestos levels in the cities has fallen quite a bit.  I don’t know exactly how much.


SENATOR COX:  All right.  Thank you.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Had you finished your conclusions?


MR. WHEELER:  Yes, the conclusions are finished.  I had some recommendations here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, let me go ahead and have you share those recommendations.


MR. WHEELER:  We think that the school district should carry out an appropriate operations and maintenance plan.  We had a plan that we reviewed from the school district.  We made comments on it, and they made some modifications to it.  The main thing that we were concerned about is making sure that all these efforts that were in place leaves those students nonexposed by going back and measuring over the next couple of years those classrooms to confirm that that is what’s occurred there.


People in the most highly exposed groups should inform their physician.  We think those coaches and those outdoor maintenance workers and the student athletes that were exposed, especially the ones that were exposed greater than ten years ago, may be in the position where disease would begin to show up and that they should notify their physicians when they go in for checkup.  We’ve had several groups here working with the physicians in the Sacramento area and the El Dorado area, informing them on what we know about asbestos and how to ask questions to patients and how to thus diagnose those kinds of problems.


The state should continue to monitor health outcome data.  This came up to you a little while ago on the health statistics review that ATSDR performed with their State Cooperative Agreement.  It’s in our health consultation; the results that you were talking about earlier.  It’s in Appendix C.  I don’t know if you have this document, but I’ve got some extras here.

SENATOR COX:  What’s it look like?  Look like this?


MR. WHEELER:  Yes.  That’s it.  Appendix C; the last page, I believe.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are you referencing the Cancer Registry data?


MR. WHEELER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t believe I have that document.


SENATOR COX:  What page?


MR. WHEELER:  It’s the very last page, or the next to last page.  The last page is blank.  Page 38.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, page 38, Appendix C, Mesothelioma Incidence in Western El Dorado County.  Share with us what’s in here.


MR. WHEELER:  Essentially, the findings of that were that there were 24 cases of mesothelioma in Western El Dorado County from 1988 to the year 2001, and that is not statistically any different than the compare group, which was the Greater Sacramento area.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, that’s within the predictable range of—I don’t know—from moving elsewhere?  Mesothelioma is primarily, if not exclusively, the result of exposure to asbestos.


MR. WHEELER:  I think we can say that it is an exposure to asbestos.  I mean, the reported cases, something like 80 percent of them have a recorded history of asbestos exposure, and the remaining cases, their history is unknown.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, they may have been exposed and they’re not aware of it.


MR. WHEELER:  They may have been exposed or not.  Anytime you see mesothelioma, you have to think asbestos.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All right.  So, you’re saying that the data that the Cancer Registry had gathered is not alarming.


MR. WHEELER:  At this time it’s not alarming; but remember, mesothelioma can take up to 40 years before it’s expressed.  There’s been a large influx of population within the last 5, 10, 15 years in this area.  So, you would not expect to see the people that have recently moved into the area with any disease for . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now, the Cancer Registry has more recent data than ’01.  I would think we’d have ’02 and ’03 data that’s available.  Have we seen the ’02/’03 data?  Not that it’s going to show that much more of a difference.  


Did you request data between ’01 and ’05?


MR. WHEELER:  We requested their most recent data, but we did that in, probably, the end of ’02 or maybe the beginning of ’03.  So, their most recent data may have only been 2001 or 2002.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, let’s make sure we request it for this committee and certainly share with all of the other witnesses.  I don’t know that we’ll see significant bumps again because the growth phase of this area is a little. . . . I mean, yes, the last ten, fifteen years in terms of the rate of growth.  So, that’s the period of time in which it will be difficult to capture the data.


Anything else in your presentation?


MR. WHEELER:  I think the last ones are pretty explanatory, except for number six.  I said homeowners should follow recommendations for minimizing asbestos exposures around the home; certainly, homeowners, renters, anybody else living in the area.  We have several fact sheets on how you can reduce those risks.  We’ve had a lot of people working with community members and whatnot on simple steps you can take to reduce those risks.  I think as Mr. Meer said, the take-home point of that ratio 42 that he showed is that it is the activity that causes the exposure.  And so, you need to be aware of those activities that you’re engaging in.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Which is probably all the activities a family would want to engage in.


MR. WHEELER:  There’s a lot of them, yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox?


SENATOR COX:  One last question.  Go ahead.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The vice chair.


SENATOR LOWENTHAL:  In recommendation number two, it says,            “People in the most highly exposed groups should inform their physician about their potential asbestos exposure for appropriate preventive care and observation for early signs of disease.”

I understand observation for the early signs of the disease.  What do you mean by “appropriate preventive care?”


MR. WHEELER:  There are things that you can do.  Certainly, mesothelioma is a terrible, terrible disease.  After diagnosis, you don’t have long to live.  But some of the other diseases, like the pleural changes that you see, even early stages. . . . I wouldn’t expect asbestosis to be in this community, but lung disease or whatnot.  Maintaining your health is one of the things.  Very good health.  You can get pneumonia shots every year.  You can get flu shots.  Because, if your lungs are compromised, those kinds of things will certainly compromise your health much faster.  Those are the kinds of things that we are recommending.


SENATOR LOWENTHAL:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I have a few questions, but I think Senator Cox has one.


SENATOR COX:  I just wanted to ask Mr. Meer one last question, and that is, you’re also doing some work at the federal EPA in San Benito County.


MR. MEER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR COX:  What’s the nature of that work?


MR. MEER:  There, the Bureau of Land Management manages a piece of land.  It’s called the Clear Creek Management Area.  It’s a large plug of serpentine where there’s been a bunch of mining.


SENATOR COX:  So, it’s actually a mining site.


MR. MEER:  It’s a huge naturally occurring serpentine plug, basically, dotted with mines.  In fact, the Atlas Asbestos Superfund Site Mine is on that serpentine plug.  The Bureau of Land Management for many years has sponsored off-road biking races in certain parts of the Clear Creek Management Area, mainly because it’s devoid of vegetation, because serpentine soils are pretty toxic to most kinds of vegetation.  I mean, talk about activity creating high levels of fiber in the air.  When you start gunning your dirt bike and riding on some of those trails, you get unbelievable clouds of particulates in the air.  We’ve been doing some of the similar type activity-based testing down there.


SENATOR COX:  But that’s a significantly different model than we find in El Dorado County, is it not?


MR. MEER:  Well, certainly, motorcycles on dirt trails is a lot different.  The other thing that’s different is this is primarily chrysotile-bearing soil.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.  Thanks very much.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me now ask a few questions.  I think the example of dirt biking on an unpaved mountain road might not be as extreme but certainly isn’t without risk.  I mean, I don’t want to give us a sense of minimizing, that because you’re not doing dirt biking on unpaved roads, that there’s not potentially or possibly a problem with cycling a mountain bike on an unpaved road or walking on a trail that families engage in.

Let me ask a question regarding the mitigation measures that were put in, in Oak Ridge High School, that were put in, in ’03/’04.


MR. MEER:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  When did students first start attending the high school?  What year?


MR. WHEELER:  It was built in 1980.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, there is a question regarding those students who went to that high school or the coaches that coached or the maintenance workers between ’80 and ’03/’04.


MR. WHEELER:  That was one of the things that I glossed over here, is that we would like to be able to identify populations that are in this area that we think were of a health concern and had a high enough exposure that we might see some kind of disease in them.  We’re looking into the possibility, if we can define that population and find the resources to do this and whatnot, to look at that population and do either a health surveillance kind of program on them or health screening type of program—something along those lines—to see if we see any kind of disease that’s resulted from these low-level exposures that have been going on there.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, if we had coaches that coached there or students that spent four years and graduated in 1985, we’ve got twenty years of possibly some ability to study a student cohort?


MR. WHEELER:  Yes, that’s correct.  I actually had some of those people come up.  Last Saturday we had a public meeting in which we were available to talk to residents.  We had a great turnout.  We had 400-or-so people turn out.  I actually had some of those people come up to me and ask how they could get into a study like that.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes.  And I would think, again, school personnel as well as the maintenance workers would be helpful.  Is there an effort to look at that?  Are you, in fact, going to follow up and try to gather enough individuals and former students to study, and staff?


MR. WHEELER:  Well, those discussions are very preliminary right at the moment.  We need to see what we can identify over there.  We also want to see the data that EPA has recently generated, to see what kind of community exposures went on there, looking at that data and talking with the colleagues back at the office that do this kind of work. We’re in a very preliminary stage, but that is something that we certainly want to look at.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It would be interesting.  I know your study looked only at the high school and the trails and some of that data, but one group that comes to mind, if indeed there’s initial exposure level in construction, et cetera, would be Caltrans employees or, potentially, persons who work in the building industry.  Is there any effort to gather data on who those employees might be that did the initial phase of development out there?  The graders; the people putting up the homes?

MR. WHEELER:  Not yet, but that is a direction we’re thinking about going.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Of course, the notion(?) there is to get a large enough study and a large enough universe of people to study to get results that are reflective.


MR. WHEELER:  Yes, that’s true.  Mesothelioma rates in this country are about one to two per million people per year.  If you don’t have enough population when you do a study, you can come to the wrong conclusions.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, one . . . 


MR. WHEELER:  One to two people out of a million per year get mesothelioma in this country.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Help me understand the figure that was, I think, out of your data.  I don’t know whose source of information it was that suggested a 1 out of 10,000 risk factor for background exposure.  Where did that figure come from?


MR. MEER:  Let me take a crack at that, and then, John is probably a lot more expert at explaining this.  But let me tell you where that number came from.


When we did our study in October—those eleven days in October—as I said, we measured the comparison samplers.  The picture that I showed was a comparison sampler away from the activity.  If you take an average of all of those comparison samplers, we got a .0008 fibers per cubic centimeter level.  The shorthand is three zeroes and an eight, is what you’ll hear the people in the trade talk about.  So, .0008 fibers per cubic centimeter as, not background, but just the comparison outside of the area of exposure.  Again, it represents an average of eleven days in October.  So, we’re not—I’ll say it again, and I’ll say it as many times as I have to—we’re not suggesting that that is the walk-around exposure level.  We’re just suggesting it represents those eleven days in October.  

If you take that number and you plug it into the current EPA risk model for 30 years of exposure—it’s an age-adjusted risk model—30 years of exposure, 24 hours a day, seven days a week, you come up with an excess cancer death of 1 in 10,000.  That’s where the 1 in 10,000 number came from.  It’s a leap of logic to think that those eleven days in October represent 30 years of exposure, 24 hours a day, seven days a week.  But if you use that number, that’s the risk number that you get.  

Now, our risk model does not account for increased toxicity of amphibole.  It does not account for increased toxicity of amphibole, so it may, in fact, be underestimating the risk.  It doesn’t account for the risk from noncancer diseases, such as asbestosis and pleural plaquing.  So, that 1 in 10,000 number, on the one hand, may represent an underestimate because it doesn’t account for amphibole, et cetera, but it also may represent an overestimate because you’re extrapolating to 30 years, 24/7 exposure.

MR. WHEELER:  That’s the same number that we got for the coaches and the outdoor maintenance workers.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  One out of 10,000?


MR. WHEELER:  One out of 10,000.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Which is relatively high when you compare it with all the caveats of using that as a measurement.


MR. MEER:  I should say that that 1 in 10,000 is the top of the EPA risk range that we clean up Superfund sites.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, it may be higher hypothetically/theoretically by an imperfect modeling system, but EPA has never measured . . . 

MR. MEER:  Very imperfect modeling, but it is at the top range of our Superfund risk range.  When my people clean up Superfund sites, we try to clean up between 1 in 10,000 and 1 in a million.  That’s our target.  If you accept all of the caveats that I’ve described, we’re already at the top of the Superfund risk range.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you want to give me more caveats, Mr. Wheeler?  I mean, I think it’s important because we’re going to hear from Senator Cox, but I want to understand this.  Even as a measurement as imperfect as it is with the caveats, how do we take those caveats and gather better models or more information to mitigate those caveats?

MR. WHEELER:  Well, there’s efforts underway right now to better those models, but the problem with that is how you collect the data.  The data’s very expensive to collect to use the better models.  We didn’t have the data that was available here.  EPA is trying to collect that data in this new data set, and hopefully, that will help clarify some of these issues.


Typically, when we say that risk is less than 1 in a million, we don’t worry about it.  When we say it’s greater than 1 in 10,000, we become very concerned.  The area in between 1 in 10,000 and 1 in a million is kind of. . . . everything’s gray.  This is kind of the gray area.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are your two agencies committed to doing long-term longitudinal. . . . I mean, it sounds like you’re here and you’re going to be here for a while to look at this data.  It could be, in fact, a test case for the other counties, whether it’s 8 or 48 counties in California, and certainly elsewhere in the country.  I get a sense that you may, in fact, be in this region for a period of time.


MR. MEER:  Well, we’re here and we’re available to provide technical help to the states and the locals.  We do not have any further assessments for Oak Ridge High School-style remedial actions planned.  I mean, one way to get at this walk-around exposure is to do these long-term studies.  They’re very expensive.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is there only one high school in this area?  Okay.  So, I suspect if there are other high schools that come up, or other schools. . . . well, let me ask.  K through 6/middle schools, are they also incorporating the mitigation measures?


MR. MEER:  Yes.  In fact, the Department of Toxic Substances Control, the state agency . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s right.  For new construction.


MR. MEER:  . . . has a very active and very good schools program, and they are actively involved with Oak Ridge on their operation and maintenance and working with any new schools that are being built. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And is it your understanding that they’re all incorporating the paving, the plastic lining, the one foot of soil fill, the gravel, the landscaping, the sprinklers?


MR. MEER:  I would hope that Dr. Barber could speak to you on that.


MR. WHEELER:  And Dr. Barber’s testifying today, is she not?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I believe so, yes.


Any other comments?  Senator Cox? 


SENATOR COX:  Well, I just want to thank you for being here and for testifying.  You certainly have been cooperative.  I appreciate your coming into the office and briefing us.  I’m not certain I appreciate the fact that you’ve just acknowledged that your models are not the perfection that you wish they were.  I’m concerned about the alarm it causes in our communities when you’re concerned about the modeling.  It’s not comforting. 


MR. MEER:  Yes.  If I could just say, we appreciate the cooperation we’ve received.  We know these are difficult issues.  The science is not perfect, and we acknowledge that.  When Mother Nature is the responsible party, as it were, it creates a very difficult situation for everybody.  But I think if the community and the federal and the state governments all act together, we can manage this problem.


SENATOR COX:  Well, Madam Chair, let me just say to you that I hope it is a situation where we can, in fact, have a relationship where we work together.  I would not like to think that we had the federal government coming to the State of California—specifically, El Dorado County—and stirring up the dust and then going home without assisting us in resolving any problem that might exist, recognizing there are some who would just prefer they go away.  If we have a legitimate problem, we ought to deal with it, but we ought to also recognize the importance of having factual considerations as opposed to just assumptions.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  I appreciate that.  I had some further questions, but we’ve taken enough time.  Hopefully, you’ll stick around for the rest of the hearing.


Thank you so much.  I appreciate your patience. 


The next panel is the residents.  We have five individuals.  Let’s have everybody come forward:  Melissa Vargas, Laurie Lindley-Muender, Chris Anaya, Terry Trent, and Michael Bowker.  If you could come forward on this panel.  

Why’s everybody so shy?  This is not a shy committee.  Whomever the El Dorado County residents are that are going to provide testimony to the committee, come on forward.

Welcome.  We’ll start with Ms. Vargas.  We gave them three minutes each, but I’m sure Senator Cox will want to weigh in.


SENATOR COX:  And Madam Chair, if you could ask each one to identify themselves.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Absolutely.  I’m just trying to figure out if we’re getting the right . . .  

I’m sorry—your name, ma’am?


MS. TONI JOHNSON:  Toni Johnson.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We don’t have you down.


MS. JOHNSON:  I’m a last-minute addition.  Toni Johnson.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Let’s go ahead and have Melissa Vargas go first; Laurie Lindley, second; Chris Anaya, third.  Terry Trent’s not here.  Michael Bowker, fourth; and then Toni Johnson.  Does that cover everybody?  Okay.


Ms. Vargas?


MS. MELISSA VARGAS:  Hi.  My name is Melissa Vargas.  I’m a resident of Garden Valley.  I have a degree in soil and water science from UC Davis.  Thank you for the opportunity to speak at today’s hearing on a subject that affects not only our communities in El Dorado, but communities throughout the State of California.


Before I begin, what I’d like to do is ask you a very quick question, and I want you to think about the answer while I go through the history that our community has faced in the past twenty years.  My question I’d like to ask you is:  What good do all these reports do—studies, findings, and recommendations—from all of the experts when the agencies refuse to enforce their own recommendations and findings?  What good are these reports going to do for us?


It was exactly twenty years ago, in 1985, that a memo was issued from the Mountain County Air Basin to several counties, including El Dorado, that warned them that the asbestos content in serpentine should be banned to protect the public’s health and safety.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m sorry.  What report was that?

MS. VARGAS:  It was a memo issued from the Mountain County Air Basin, and I have a copy of that memo if you’d like me to get it to you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ll make sure the sergeants get that, and we’ll get copies, hopefully, for the Senator and myself.


MS. VARGAS:  The county was issued this memo warning them that they needed to take preventive action to protect the citizens, and the county did nothing.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me interrupt you.  Do you have the memo handy?


MS. VARGAS:  No, I don’t.  I have a member of the community holding the file.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  If somebody wants to identify themselves, then he can go out and get copies for us.  That would be helpful.


MS. VARGAS:  In 1996, Copperopolis residents were high in concentrations of asbestos and serpentine rock.  The Bee publishes a story.  A resident in Garden Valley reads the story and says, Hey, wait a minute.  We’ve got the same kind of material that we just used on our own roads.  We need to have this stuff tested.  They went ahead and tested this material and found 10 to 20 percent asbestos in the rock.  They notified the county.  The county does their own test.  They also find 10 to 20 percent of this material in the roadway.  The resident informs the county that they need to take action.  The air pollution control officer also informs the county that they take action to protect the health and safety of the residents.  The county does nothing.  So, see, there’s a pattern here.


So, the resident notifies U.S. EPA because now we have no local person who’s going to be able to take this issue seriously.  So, what does that do?  That forces the resident to now seek help from another agency.  The resident contacts U.S. EPA.  U.S. EPA contacts the county and says, Hey, you need to do something about this.  The county does nothing.  U.S. EPA comes out in 1987 and paves over the road, declaring the site a Superfund site.


In 1989, the county Department of Transportation issues a memo to the transportation workers that will prohibit the use of serpentine on all county-maintained roads to protect the health and safety of the county workers, but yet does not afford that same protection to the county residents.


In 1990, the ARB adopts an air toxic control measure.  In 1992, my husband and I purchase our property in El Dorado County, in Garden Valley, but prior to us purchasing the property, we contacted the county.  We asked them, What’s going on with this abandoned mine site next door?  What can you tell us about it?

Oh, it’s closed.  It’s abandoned.  You don’t have to worry about it.

Well, that’s when our nightmare began five years later, when the mine owner brought in equipment in the middle of the night and started operating the next day, without any dust mitigation measures.  


So, I contacted the county and asked them, What are you going to do about this?


Well, there’s nothing we can do.  The mine’s vested.  It’s your problem, essentially.


So, where does that leave the public?  Again, now we’re forced with having to go to various agencies to try and help us protect our own health and safety.  The county then tried to adopt a reclamation plan.  We then contacted the agency that’s responsible for enforcing the rules and regulations of mining, and they essentially said, Well, asbestos is not our jurisdiction.  You need to go contact ARB.  So, now we’re having to go through various agencies to try and help protect our health and safety.


Then what happened was we then turned to our legislators to also ask for help, who then form a task group who’s essentially been saying the same thing.  And all these reports have been saying the same thing that were said twenty years ago:  It’s a problem; it’s hazardous to your health; you need to cover it up.  And that report that came out, the legislators then said, It’s not a problem anymore.


So, where are we now?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  When did the Legislature issue a report that said it wasn’t a problem?


MS. VARGAS:  That’s what they told us—it wasn’t a problem.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Who’s the “they?”

MS. VARGAS:  I’m not going to say that out in public right now.  It’s one of our legislators in our district.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


MS. VARGAS:  That should tell you enough.  I’m sorry.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Continue.


MS. VARGAS:  Anyway, where are we now?


SENATOR COX:  Wait a minute, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t think she’s implying you, Senator Cox.


MS. VARGAS:  I’m not implying you at all, Senator. 


SENATOR COX:  Well, of course not; I wasn’t here twenty years ago.  But I don’t understand what the rub is.  You’ve made an allegation that you talked to a legislator and someone didn’t respond the way you wanted them to respond, and you’re reluctant to tell us who that was.  Who is that person?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox, if we want to have a sidebar—if you would like to personally have a sidebar with the witness—I’d ask you to consider that.  I do not want to make her uncomfortable right now.  If you want to have this conversation outside, I’m going to ask you to please respect her discomfort in a public setting to say that.  I’d like to know as well, and perhaps we can discern that outside of a public setting that obviously makes her uncomfortable.  It’s clear she’s not implying you.


SENATOR COX:  Nor you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I’ve never been a representative of . . . 


MS. VARGAS:  No, obviously not.


Where are we now?  I’m sure that you’re interested in trying to figure out where we are now.  


ARB came out and did some air monitoring testing around the site that’s closed; it hasn’t been operating.  Prop. 65 notices were distributed to residents surrounding the site, with it not operating.  So, we went to the State Mining and Geology Board and said, Hey, we have these notices here.  You need to do something to help us, protect us, and they essentially said that You can find Prop. 65 notices in the grocery stores.  It’s not our problem.  They declared it open space and are now relinquishing the authority to the county to properly reclaim the site. 


So, again, twenty years, where are we?  The site still remaining uncovered and exposing to residents.

So, I ask you the same question that I started with.  We continue to chase our tail with this problem and not address the real issue, which is:  Who’s going to enforce and who’s actually going to take action to protect our health and safety and enforce these regulations?  Forming a task group is great, but who’s going to actually take that step and say, Okay, this is what you need to do, and we want to make sure that they do it?


Thank you for your time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate it.  This is an example of which government may not have gotten it right, based on your perspective.  At some point, I think a private conversation with Senator Cox and myself would be helpful.


SENATOR COX:  Let me just ask a couple of other questions.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All right.  Go ahead.


SENATOR COX:  Ma’am, thank you very much for coming to testify.


MS. VARGAS:  Certainly.


SENATOR COX:  Let me ask:  With whom are you employed?


MS. VARGAS:  I’m employed with the California EPA, at the Waste Board.  And I’m here during nonbusiness hours.


SENATOR COX:  That’s not my concern.  I just wanted to know for whom you work.


MS. VARGAS:  The Waste Board.


SENATOR COX:  Waste Board.


MS. VARGAS:  And proud of it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t think that’s relevant.  She has a right to represent her interests in her community.


SENATOR COX:  Of course she does, but to me it’s relevant.


MS. VARGAS:  That’s right.  I’m representing myself and the community.


SENATOR COX:  I have no doubt about that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It may lend some greater expertise, given her background and understanding of the science.  I think that’s a strong point.  But we’ll ask of every witness that comes forward, including those, whether they have outside employment with—and certainly, I’m glad that you’re here.  It sounds like you come from not only a resident perspective but an informed and an educated perspective, with some understanding of the background.  But I appreciate that you’re here representing yourself.

SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, I’m glad she’s here as well.  I just want to know for whom she works.  That’s all.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I think there’s a tone of respecting the witnesses in this committee that I’d ask you to consider.


MS. VARGAS:  But may I add one . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, no.  He’s got further questions.


SENATOR COX:  Is it your pleasure that I do not ask them for who they’re employed with?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, no; not at all.  But I think it’d be best if you ask every witness that comes forward.


SENATOR COX:  Let me then ask:  You are a resident of El Dorado County?


MS. VARGAS:  I am.  I live in Garden Valley.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.  And you still live next to the quarry.


MS. VARGAS:  Yes.


SENATOR COX:  The quarry’s operating or not operating?


MS. VARGAS:  Is not operating.


SENATOR COX:  Not operating.  Is the quarry fenced off or roped off?


MS. VARGAS:  It’s partially fenced off.


SENATOR COX:  Do people get in there and stir up the dust and dirt and all that sort of stuff?


MS. VARGAS:  Well, I don’t think you need to have people stir up the dust, sir.  I think that any kind of major wind event that you have in Sacramento County stirs up the dust, which was pretty evident that when they did the air monitoring around the site that triggered those Prop. 65 notices, the mine was not operating.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Nor actively being __________.


MS. VARGAS:  Exactly.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Further questions for this witness?


SENATOR COX:  That’s it.  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’ll hold off my questions until we hear the rest of the testimony.


MS. VARGAS:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Next witness?


MS. LAURIE LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Ladies and gentlemen of the Senate, fourteen years ago, as I drove through El Dorado Hills . . . 

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Your name, please?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Laurie Lindley-Muender.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you live where?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  El Dorado Hills.  Folsom now.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Yes.


Fourteen years ago, as I drove through El Dorado Hills, it looked so lovely:  gently rolling hills, wildflowers, and there were horses that ran along the boulevard.  It was suburban paradise.  The rural beauty was combined with an excellent school district, and we had just discovered a spacious home overlooking Folsom Lake.  I thought it was a perfect place to raise my son, then three, and my daughter, then one.  The future looked bright to live in this clean, kid-friendly community.  Over the years, we have created long-lasting friendships and have been highly involved in the activities there.  We are connected to El Dorado Hills in a deep way.  After all, this is the center of my teens’ childhood memories.


Over the past year, I have witnessed mountains literally be moved behind my children’s backyard.  The hills have been blasted with dynamite, bulldozed, graded, and rocks crushed, creating clouds of dust.  I consulted the developers early on in the summer because of the tremendous amount of dust that was being released into the home.  I was only offered a free window washing and one bottle of wine.  Well, maybe a bottle a day would have been better.


Also, I expressed my concerns to the county to no avail.  I was told they were (quote) “Watering down,” (unquote).  Well, watered dirt turns into dry dirt in nothing flat in our hot summer days.  That did not stop our (quote/unquote) “dust problem.”  


After three months of dust, I decided to have the house tested for asbestos, since there were huge issues in the community and especially involving the elementary school right directly behind my backyard:  They couldn’t open it.  I chose to educate myself for my children’s sake, rather than sweeping the dust under the rug, so to speak.  My children’s health came before my property values.  I put myself on a limb—and Channel 10, with George Warren—and had the top layer of the backyard tested, and it tested high.  In fact, more than a thousand times higher than acceptable levels.  


My worst fears over the dust from the development were confirmed.  Six inches below the surface were much, much lower.  I felt betrayed and victimized by the county and the developers.  Now I live with the fear and anxiety of asbestos-related disease every single day.  The situation has put tremendous stress on my family.  My situation has been compared to other risks:  hurricanes, tornadoes, and earthquakes.  Well, I believe those are acts of God.  This is an act of a bulldozer.  If tractors caused earthquakes, I’m sure we would find a way to stop them.  However, that is simply not what happened to me and my family.

Developers continue to poison our air by sending asbestos into the air around our home.  They do this without regard for our health but to make a dollar.  I am so disillusioned because I used to have faith that our government would protect us.  I now question who is looking out for our welfare if our officials are incapable of stopping the development that has disrupted the asbestos that was underground and not airborne.


These are the questions I have for the Senate:


Number one:  Why would the County of El Dorado allow the developers to move forward with dynamite and grading two weeks after a geologist discovered an asbestos ________ on the blasting site?


Number two:  Why were we not warned that developers were blasting asbestos fibers into the air while grading the developments around our home?


Why are there no laws in effect that require these developers to take extraordinary measures to prevent the asbestos fibers from going into our homes while our children eat, play, and sleep?  


How can developers with their multimillion-dollar investments avoid notifying us that they found carcinogens on the property they were developing, as required by Proposition 65?


Why hasn’t anyone done anything to stop the developers?  They continue to dynamite and grade when they know they are exposing our children.


Finally, what will this Senate do to assure the health and safety of my family and it’s no longer jeopardized by overzealous developers who are willing to contaminate our community and return to the safety of their homes located outside of El Dorado Hills?


I am concerned about the safety of my family.  We have empirical data on asbestos-related disease, and we know it can take 10 to 50 years to develop.  The vast majority of our development in El Dorado Hills has only occurred in the past 5 to 8 years.  In the Sacramento Bee, Bruce Case, a pathologist and epidemiologist at McGill University, is quoted:  “I have no doubt that persons living in western El Dorado County, if the situation were to remain as it is—with increased development, or even without it—people will die of asbestos-related disease.”

Isn’t it better to err on the side of caution for our community’s sake?  This is the time for action to be taken.  We shouldn’t have to wait until the entire community has been graded and higher levels of asbestos disseminated into our homes and schools before something is done to stem the problem.  Something needs to be done now.  To not know and do nothing is ignorant.  To know and do nothing is criminal.  The proposed Ortiz bill is our first step to a solution to protect our community from this invisible villain.


Thank you for your help in saving our community and my family from future contamination.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for your testimony.  I’m going to hold off just because I want to get through the rest of the panel, but let me extend an opportunity to Senator Cox.


SENATOR COX:  Well, thank you very much for your testimony.  I appreciate your coming today, and I certainly understand that you’re emotional about the issue.  But I do, in fact, want to ask you, just for the record, if I may—you indicated, and you kind of lost me there, you indicated you were a resident of El Dorado Hills but you’re no longer a resident.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Correct.


SENATOR COX:  When did you move?  You moved from El Dorado Hills to Folsom?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Yes.  We bought the house in El Dorado Hills fourteen years ago.  I now live in Folsom.  I am separated from my ex-husband.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, how long ago did you move to Folsom?

MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Did I move?  About three years ago.


SENATOR COX:  So, you moved three years ago.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  I’m mostly worried about my children because they reside in the home.


SENATOR COX:  I understand.  When you were talking about the development going on behind you, this was in El Dorado Hills or in Folsom?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  In El Dorado Hills.


SENATOR COX:  Because I want to be consistent in my questions, tell me who you are employed with.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  I am employed with Rescue School District.  I’m a substitute teacher.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.  You talked about the development, and your contention is that the development, in fact, creates the problem with the natural-occurring asbestos then.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Correct.


SENATOR COX:  In your mind, then, is there any remediation relative to natural-occurring asbestos that could be taken?  For example, the dust mitigation.  Does that solve any of the problem, in your mind?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Well, it was found in my vacuum cleaner, and it’s all through my house.  It’s all over my backyard.


SENATOR COX:  This is in El Dorado Hills.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  In El Dorado Hills, correct; where my kids stay.  It’s difficult to clean up.


SENATOR COX:  I understand.  Thanks very much.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I was going to hold off on my question, and I may come back to you after all the panel, but can you share with the committee, when was your house that you formerly resided in, in El Dorado Hills, when was that house tested?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  The house was tested in October.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Of ’04?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Oh-four, correct.


SENATOR COX:  But, Madam Chair, let me just ask the question again, then.  It’s my understanding that she lived in El Dorado Hills for fourteen years and she’s been in Folsom for three.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  No, I didn’t live in El Dorado Hills for fourteen.  My children do.  Their father lives there.  I’m worried about my children’s health.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you lived there for eleven years with your children.  Three years ago you moved to Folsom.  But nonetheless, less than a year ago you had it tested, even though you don’t reside there.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Because of my children.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right.  You don’t need to have a reason.


SENATOR COX:  No, I understand.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox needs a timeline.  


So, even though you don’t reside there and your children reside there, as of this date, your children have resided in that home for fourteen years.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Yes—fourteen years.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Nine months ago you had the house tested.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Remind me again what the levels of exposure were—what was found.  What was tested?  Your backyard?  Inside your house?  Your vacuum cleaner?  Give us the whole list of what was tested and what those findings were.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  The backyard, the surface dirt in the backyard, right near. . . . they did a 20-foot cliff directly behind the backyard.  It used to be rolling hills.  They did about, I don’t know how many months of dynamite.  So, they tested the surface dirt, and that was 1½ percent asbestos.  Six inches below—I can’t remember exactly—but it was much, much lower.  If I remember, .7, I think, or .07.  It was also detected inside the vacuum cleaner.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Based on the findings, did anyone try to translate that into whether or not that was problematic?  Was there concern enough by your former husband to do anything?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Yes.  Actually, it’s been an anxiety for a lot of the family.  My daughter has a hard time staying there now because she’s worried about it.  My son stays there anyway; it’s where his friends are.  But I did consult Mike Bowker, who’s the author of Fatal Deception, to try to get more information, and I consulted the air quality board—the county.  I consulted numerous experts on the subject—Chris Anaya—trying to find out more information and what I should do.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Has part of the backyard been removed?


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  No, we can’t afford to go and totally mitigate.  A lot like Oak Ridge:  $3 million later.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  I appreciate that.


All right.  Next witness.  Is it Mr. Anaya?


Welcome.


MR. CHRIS ANAYA:  Hello.  Thank you for your time.  My name’s Chris Anaya.  Before you ask, Senator Cox, I’m a professional firefighter.

SENATOR COX:  I think you testified to that the last time you were here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes, at the Health Committee.


SENATOR COX:  I recall that, yes.


MR. ANAYA:  I’m a hazardous materials specialist also; not that that means anything—it really doesn’t—but I have a general idea about the spread of hazardous materials environmentally.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you live where, Mr. Anaya?


MR. ANAYA:  I live in El Dorado Hills.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  For how long have you lived there?


MR. ANAYA:  I’ve lived there for five years but in the county for close to seventeen years.  I have two daughters.  


I got involved, actually, on March 29th of ’98 for the first time when I read the Bee.  I had been representing roughly 200 families in that community, the community of Latrobe, so it struck an interest.  I received a couple of phone calls, so I thought I would investigate what’s going on because, of course, if there’s asbestos in that particular area, I wanted to find out because that’s where my children are.  And other people were curious too.  The paper said it might have been just a dispute between two neighbors that were building a home, so I wanted to go check that out.  

What I learned was, there was a problem.  I called the county.  I called the state Air Board.  Nothing really became of it.  Then I called U.S. EPA and talked to Terry Brubaker, who’s in charge of emergency response.  I asked him to send a team out to evaluate the situation.  He said he would, and about four days later, I received a call from Jan Shane from San Diego, one of his coworkers, saying they will not come out; that’s an El Dorado County responsibility.

I called El Dorado County and pretty much got the runaround.  When I talked to CARB again, they said it’s not their issue.  Because it’s a soil problem, it belongs to DTSC, which is the Department of Toxics.  When I called the Department of Toxics, they said, No, it’s not hazardous in the soil.  It’s only hazardous if it’s in the air, so you have to call CARB.  


This went on for a long time.  CARB finally set up a monitoring plan, I think, in June of ’98, after numerous calls apparently—pressure to do sampling.  They set up monitors in my area—a one-day sampler—and they instructed everybody in the area not to be anywhere near the monitors:  Don’t operate your tractors like you normally do.  Don’t drive your cars like you normally do.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m sorry—who gave that direction?


MR. ANAYA:  The Air Board.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  California Air Resources Board.


MR. ANAYA:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  When they were doing the monitoring.


MR. ANAYA:  And I have an email to support what I’m saying.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The relevance of that is that it would artificially     deflate . . .


MR. ANAYA:  That’s what we thought and that’s what we asked, and they said, No, no, no.  We want to find out what the ambient background level is.  We intend to come back, and we’re going to find out what normal activities are.  Well, just to let you know, for the record, they have never been back since.


SENATOR COX:  They give an explanation, though, as to why:  They wanted to find out what the ambient . . .


MR. ANAYA:  But they had pretty high ambient backgrounds.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, we’re going to hear from CARB today, right?  Okay.


MR. ANAYA:  Some of the staff may not be aware of this.  I was personally involved.  I was representing the community, so I had a one-on-one communication with CARB staff.  I don’t recognize anybody here, the people I spoke to, so they may not even be aware of this.  But I do have emails to support what I’m saying.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  And if you’re comfortable sharing that with us, we’re happy to . . . 


MR. ANAYA:  I can do that.  I don’t have it with me, but I’ll be glad to email it to you.  How about that?

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Absolutely.


MR. ANAYA:  And anything I say, please challenge me, if you wish.  I would be happy to support.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Be careful what you ask for.


MR. ANAYA:  Yes.  Well, I’ll qualify my remarks if I’m not entirely sure.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s okay.  No, go ahead, Mr. Anaya.


MR. ANAYA:  Just speaking to some people that the problem may exist, particularly in two spots that I was concerned with—one in Latrobe and one spot behind Oak Ridge High School—I became concerned because my daughters went to Silva Valley next door to the high school.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What years did they go to school there?


MR. ANAYA:  Oh, my goodness; I have no idea.  I think I pulled them out in 2000.


SENATOR COX:  Ms. Vargas, is your daughter. . . . are you two related?


MR. ANAYA:  No, we’re not related.


MS. VARGAS:  We’re not married or related in any way.


SENATOR COX:  Oh, okay.  Sorry.


MR. ANAYA:  She doesn’t like me.  [Laughter.]

Anyway, what happened?  I tried to get the Air Board; I pressed the Air Board.  They promised to come back.  In March of 1999 they came back—and I have the date here somewhere—at my request and they set up their monitors, but prior to doing that, they notified the developer they were coming.  The day before they set up their monitors, we went to size up the area and there were about four water trucks that had been shipped in—never seen before, that many water trucks at just a few-acre site.  Usually, you may see one water for a ten- or fifteen-acre site.  I was surprised, and I looked towards the manager from CARB and I said, Why did you call and warn them that you were doing the test?  We want to see what’s happening here.  


He said, Well, Chris, I consider us like the CHP.


I said, Well, what do you mean by that?


He said, Well, you know how CHP parks the car on the highway and everybody slows down?  All we care about is that the law is complied with.  We don’t really want to know what the disturbance is creating; what kind of exposures people are having.  And this construction had been going on for months.  Well, I believe over a month prior to them finally setting up their monitors.  There was so much dust in the air that I actually had grit in my mouth when I went to pick up my girls at school.  You could taste the dirt.  I had no idea what was in the soil or the air, but I do recall that particular area being what we call a “hotspot.” 


Anyway—I’ve got one minute, I guess.


I tell you, I just got the runaround.  Any questions?  There’s too much history.  I have literally over 4,000 documents of correspondence, as of last year.  I don’t know what it is up to now.  There’s just too much history.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you still live in the area.


MR. ANAYA:  Yes.  I moved from that area to protect my children, and I was surprised that nothing had been done.  I was angry when I found out that the American Lung Association was told not to show up to school to do sampling.  They offered some free sampling at the schools, and they received a certified letter they were not welcome on campus; they are not to take any soil samples.  A certified letter also went to the lab, telling them, You are not to test any soils that were sampled from the high school, and that’s when I became concerned.  I took samples myself.  I didn’t know what I was looking for.  I just scooped up some dirt; sent it in to have it tested.  Actually, I gave it to the American Lung Association because they didn’t want to go on campus.  I did it.  They sent it to the lab, and it turned out to be, roughly, between .1 to .3, which equates to—actually, 1 percent to 3 percent—which equates to 100 to 300 billion fibers per gram of soil.


SENATOR COX:  And you did this when?


MR. ANAYA:  I picked up the samples the 11th of February ’03. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I believe we saw someone from the Lung Association earlier.  Is Mr. Knepprath here?  Anyone from the Lung Association?


MR. ANAYA:  I want to—if I could, please?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Please.

MR. ANAYA:  When a county employee found out that I was the one that collected the sample, I was told the next time I’m seen on campus to collect samples, I would be probably thrown in jail.  I could not imagine how they could pull that off.  As I explained to this person, I said, If I walk on this campus and I decide to scrap the dirt off my shoes and have it sampled—to pick my daughter up—how could you possibly put me in jail for that?  Apparently, that’s what the attorney had planned, the school’s attorney.  They said the samples were collected illegally.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now, when were you told this?


MR. ANAYA:  This was in March of ’03.


SENATOR COX:  And they collected the samples in 11/03.


MR. ANAYA:  No.  


SENATOR COX:  That’s just what you said.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  February of ’03.


MR. ANAYA:  February 11th is the date.


SENATOR COX:  February 11th when?


MR. ANAYA:  Oh-three.  

Anyway, I don’t know, it’s just so frustrating for me because I don’t know what this stuff means any more than you folks.  But I did find out—and I need to tell you this—that some of the material that’s on campus was shipped in from quarries.  And this is what I mentioned last time that I can’t understand:  The law allows contaminated material to be shipped to schools for use as play material.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I know you’ve shared that information with us in the past.  Can we independently verify that?


MR. ANAYA:  I can give you results from DTSC.  They can verify it.  They’re here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think it’s appropriate for us to make an inquiry of the school district in writing and ask whether, in fact, that is where they gathered their sources of fill.  So, you’re saying that that was on the paving or on the ground?


MR. ANAYA:  I guess maybe I’d sum it up that this is not a naturally occurring problem that we’re talking about today—and I keep hearing that term.  By the way, W. R. Grace sent out a warning to their customers.

SENATOR COX:  Wait a minute.  This isn’t a W. R. Grace situation.


MR. ANAYA:  Sir, I understand that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox, let’s allow the witness to speak.  You can editorialize after his testimony.  I’m going to allow you that, but let’s allow him to finish his testimony.  Please?

MR. ANAYA:  I guess my point is, their warning went out saying, We have trace amounts of naturally occurring asbestos in our product, the vermiculite.  Because it’s naturally occurring doesn’t really mean anything.  It’s meaningless to me, the term “naturally occurring.”  When you get a bulldozer and you change it—take off the top of a hillside—and call it mining, or you take the bulldozer and you take off the top of the hill and you call it building a road, to me they’re the same.  You’re getting material and you’re disturbing it and you’re distributing it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  I’m going to hold off on my comments and questions until Senator Cox.  I know we have other witnesses, but let me go ahead and have Senator Cox.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, I don’t have any questions of this gentlemen.  I do have a request of Ms. Lindsey-Muender.  By the way, you quoted some data, that you’d done some testing.  I’m wondering if you would provide us with the data that you received and the methodology that was used.


MS. LINDLEY-MUENDER:  Oh, sure.  I actually sent a large packet to Ms. Machi.

SENATOR COX:  I’d certainly like to look at it.  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is it in the senators’ packet?  We’ll share that with Senator Cox, and if there’s an opportunity, for him to follow up on questions.  Thank you.


Thank you, Mr. Anaya.  I’m going to hold off on my questions as well until we get through the testimony.


Next witness with testimony?  Michael Bowker.  


UNIDENTIFIED:  [Inaudible.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t think Pam’s on our list.  

UNIDENTIFIED:  [Inaudible.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Let me allow Pam. . . . I don’t have your last name.  Welcome.  I apologize.  I’ve got too much paper here.


MS. PAMELA MORGAN:  My name is Pamela Morgan.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Welcome, Ms. Morgan.  I appreciate it.


MS. MORGAN:  They asked me to come in and talk today because I have asbestos-related disease.  Up until a couple of months ago, my little sister was a resident of El Dorado Hills.  She’s pregnant and has two children.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And how long had—or has she lived there?


MS. MORGAN:  Two years.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And she’s no longer living there?


MS. MORGAN:  No longer.  They moved.  This is just a little too personal.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you live where?


MS. MORGAN:  I live in Davis.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Share with us your story.


MS. MORGAN:  I was exposed to asbestos in the 1960s.  My whole family was exposed from the 1950s to the 1960s, about forty years ago.  My father was a pipe fitter in a shipyard when I was born.  He would come home with the dust on his clothing and pick up his children—there are eight children—and also bring home his clothing for my mother to launder.  My mother, Selena, she died in 1986.  She had mesothelioma.  It was actually very quick.  She had some experimental surgery and it was unsuccessful.  


I have always had problems, but they just kept getting worse.  And then, about four years ago, I found out that I also have. . . . I don’t have mesothelioma, thank God.  I have asbestos-related disease, and my older brother also has it.  I was only exposed for four years, and I’m sure that it was not a very heavy exposure.  But when looking at my x-rays, my doctors have told me that I look like a ninety-year-old man who worked. . . . that was my career.  I’m guessing, and they’re guessing, it’s because I was so young when I was exposed.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I know it’s a little impolite to ask a woman her age, but you said you were exposed for four years.  How old were you in that four-year range of exposure?


MS. MORGAN:  It was from birth to four.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Appreciate that.  And your brother also has asbestos-related disease?


MS. MORGAN:  Yes, he does.  He has an enlarged heart, and he has plaquing and ___________.  My father also had the disease.  He recently died.  He died, I believe it was about two years ago, after quite a bit of suffering:  heart failure and all kinds of problems.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  And did he die of mesothelioma or asbestos-related disease?


MS. MORGAN:  He died from complications.  It was a lot of things.  But that was obviously a big factor.  


Up until very recently, my problems were a lot worse because I was having pleurisy about every four to six weeks, and then I had some surgery.  Some really great doctors.  They removed a lot of the plaquing, and it helped a lot.  Now I get it about every six to eight weeks.  It’s really disrupted my life.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What do they do when they do the surgery?


MS. MORGAN:  They remove the plaquing from the lining of my lungs.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  How do they do that, though?


MS. MORGAN:  It’s very new technology.  They used a robot and went in and scraped.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do they go in through your throat, or do they go in through your chest cavity?


MS. MORGAN:  Through my back.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And they literally scrape your lungs.


MS. MORGAN:  Yes.  And remove some of the lining.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you undergo this every six months?


MS. MORGAN:  Well, the pleurisy, I continue to get it.  They don’t know why.  They say it’s just . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s respiratory related.


MS. MORGAN:  Yes.  I continue to get that and other things—lots of other problems—but that’s probably the worst one so far.  It’s kind of an everyday thing.  I guess what I’m here for is I just hope that this won’t become any else’s story, if I can help in any way sharing that.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate that.  Can I ask where your father was—the naval shipyard?


MS. MORGAN:  Portsmouth.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  In New Hampshire.


MS. MORGAN:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Was your home near the naval shipyard, or did he bring it home on his clothes?  Or did they speculate that it was . . . 


MS. MORGAN:  Yes.  They speculate that it was on his clothing.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you have one other brother that’s exposed.  How about your younger sister?  Was she not born when you guys resided there?


MS. MORGAN:  She was exposed for about nine months.  It’s a great fear, obviously, but she doesn’t show any signs of it yet.  There’s eight children, so of the eight, only two of us so far.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And are the other children older or younger?


MS. MORGAN:  My brother, the one who shows the disease, he is the oldest.  And then, I’m third to youngest.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, there were older siblings that were also exposed in that four-year window of time?


MS. MORGAN:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are they being monitored?


MS. MORGAN:  They are being monitored.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And they thus far haven’t indicated any . . .


MS. MORGAN:  Yes.  They do have theories on . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Genetic predisposition to exposure.


MS. MORGAN:  That, and the laundry room where my mother laundered the clothes was in the basement.  My brother used to sleep in the basement a lot because we had games down there; dart board and things like that.  I was born at that time, so I was too young to leave upstairs.  She remembered taking me down with her to do the laundry.  Plus, my dad was picking me up a lot.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I appreciate your story.  Again, we’re going to be very cautious about whether that translates into this, but I think it’s really important; and I know it was hard for you to come here, so I appreciate that.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair?  And I thank the lady for her testimony.  You live in Davis now?


MS. MORGAN:  Yes, I do.


SENATOR COX:  Who employs you?


MS. MORGAN:  UC Davis.


SENATOR COX:  University of California at Davis.  Okay.  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now we have Mr. Bowker.  Welcome.


MR. MICHAEL BOWKER:  Thank you, Senator.  I appreciate this opportunity, and I thank Rachel for helping to put this together.  I wish Senator Lowenthal was here.  I’d thank him for his support of CEQA.


I’ve lived in El Dorado County for twenty-six years.  My first job was with the Mountain Democrat newspaper.  I covered the board of supervisors, among other things.  Since that time, I’ve worked for myself.  I should settle that question right off.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What is your business?


MR. BOWKER:  I’m a writer.  I’m a freelance writer.  I’ve written hundreds of health and science articles for publications ranging from the Los Angeles Times to the New York Times. I’ve written a number of books, including Fatal Deception, which was the first book to tell the story of the asbestos contamination in Libby.  Last year, Senator Reid from Nevada asked me to come to Washington and brief members of Congress on asbestos issues.  I did so.  It took four 10-hour days to get through it.  A week later he asked me to come back and give an hour’s presentation to half of the U.S. Senate.  I did that, and I gave another presentation to 100 staff members there.


When the book came out, I got emails and letters and phone calls from hundreds of people around the world who contacted me, most of them in Pam’s situation, where they didn’t know where to go; they didn’t know who to turn to.  They needed answers to their questions.  That prompted me to get involved with a nonprofit organization called the Asbestos Victims Organization.  That keeps me in constant contact with doctors and scientists and victims all over the world on a daily basis.  I also represent a coalition of victims groups representing tens of thousands of victims.  


Now, Fatal Deception also chronicled the history of death and deception perpetrated on the American public by the asbestos industry, and if you’ll bear with me for a minute, I want to give you a perspective that you probably haven’t had before.  

If you doubt the veracity of this deception, I’d ask you if you believe that asbestos has been banned in the United States.  It has not been.  It’s still a legal ingredient in more than 3,000 common products, and we use more than 250,000 tons of it in products in the last ten years, and its use is increasing.  The U.S. and Canada are the only industrialized countries in the world that have not banned its use.  Europe twenty years ago found alternatives for every use.


I bring up this national perspective because without it, it’s impossible to understand what’s happening in El Dorado Hills.  As most of you know, EPA came in and gave their findings in El Dorado Hills.  However, they weren’t able to give us a risk assessment model to determine what to do with this information.  That leaves us in a squabble.  The people who represent the developers and the builders are going, Don’t panic, everybody.  We don’t even know how much problem this causes.  Other people are very concerned because we don’t have this risk assessment model.  Consider that 75 years ago the insurance companies sent letters to the asbestos companies, saying, We’re not going to cover you anymore because we are convinced that you are knowingly poisoning your workers and your consumers.  Seventy-five years ago, and there’s no risk assessment model today.


I’m giving you this information because you talk about cooperating with the federal government—there is a resistive element there.  Right now we’ve got five federal bureaucracies that have five different levels of what they consider safe.  This is not just negligent; this is near-criminal neglect because between 10 and 40 thousand Americans die every year from asbestos diseases.  I’m talking primarily now about occupational asbestos; not natural-occurring asbestos.


Well, I had an old journalism professor who told me once, If you want to find the truth, follow the money.  When it comes to asbestos, he’s right.  We sit here; we’ve talked all day about the minute aspects of the science, when, in truth, the controversies surrounding asbestos have always been decided by politics and economics.  And you need to understand the economics on the federal level.  There have been more than 700,000 lawsuits filed by asbestos victims nationwide against the giant conglomerates that bought these asbestos companies because the asbestos companies were profitable.  The companies now being sued include Viacom, General Electric, Ford, Sears, CBS, 3M, Dow Chemical, Halliburton, and hundreds of other companies you’ve heard of.  These companies—for example, Viacom’s looking at 117,000 lawsuits; each one of which can run into the millions of dollars.  These huge corporations fear these lawsuits because they’re going to lose most of them.  Okay?  What the corporations have responded with is a bailout bill in Congress that lets them off the hook and will make it illegal for any asbestos victim, including anybody that might get sick in El Dorado County, from seeking justice through the court system.  There is an amendment in this bill that actually names El Dorado Hills, by the way.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me just clarify because it expressly, at this point, excludes naturally occurring asbestos, is my understanding.


MR. BOWKER:  Senator Feinstein has included an amendment that specifically names El Dorado Hills.  Now, I don’t want to get into that right now.  You can check it out for yourself.  But from a victim’s standpoint, from a representative of victims around the country, both this bill and the amendment are disastrous.  These corporations stand to make more than $500 billion if this legislation is passed.  The victims will lose their rights.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now, why do you say 500 billion?  Because that’s the potential liability to all of the collective pending litigation?


MR. BOWKER:  And that’s very conservative.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But it’s based on the litigation figure, that 500 billion.


MR. BOWKER:  Yes, and it is very approximate.  It’s very approximate.  It could be much higher.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All right.  I just wanted a clarification of where that figure came from.


MR. BOWKER:  The reason the federal government has dragged its feet for decades and decades at creating a risk assessment model isn’t because it can’t be done; it’s because the asbestos industry—it has so much clout and so much at stake—has successfully fought against it.  

Now, with this bill pending in Congress, you’re going to find it very, very difficult to get real serious federal help in this situation.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask you to. . . . let’s come back . . .


MR. BOWKER:  Absolutely.  I’m done with this.  But, my final part in this is that I would hope, regardless of how you feel about what’s going on in El Dorado Hills, because there is a continuum of what people think . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, no, that is the topic before the committee.


MR. BOWKER:  Right.  But I would hope that we can all get together and put pressure on the federal government to come up with this risk assessment model.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re before the Senate Health Committee, and I would like you to address what is before us in terms of your understanding of . . . 


MR. BOWKER:  Let me address some of the information that’s been given.  There’s a great focus on mesothelioma and asbestosis.  My experience in writing the book, which took two years, and my experience with the nonprofit agency which has carried me almost another three years into this, from what I’ve determined—and Dr. Whitehouse from Libby gave me this preliminary information—is that mesothelioma amounts to about 5 percent of all asbestos-related diseases.  The focus seems to be on mesothelioma because that’s what the attorneys can prove in court.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes, causation.


MR. BOWKER:  Exactly.  Asbestosis is about 30 percent.  Lung cancer is a great portion of the other; except, stomach cancer is approximately 20 percent.  It also has a direct causal relationship to kidney, esophagus, rectal, colon, and other cancers.  It also causes right-side heart failure.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  What’s the percentage of the kidney, rectal—what were the others?


MR. BOWKER:  Those are much smaller.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Could you go through that list for me, please?


MR. BOWKER:  Kidney, esophagus, rectal, colon, and other cancers.  This is all contained in my book.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I’m not going to buy your book [laughter], but if you gave me a copy . . .


MR. BOWKER:  I did give you a copy.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  I’ll have to report that.


MR. BOWKER:  But if you did buy it, all of the proceeds go to the nonprofit organization.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s important.  

You know, I ask you about those other affiliated cancers—and I know litigation-wise it’s hard to prove causation—but I ask that because I was sharing with my staff as a sidebar that one of the early theories in terms of ovarian cancer was a potential link because of talc powder at one point containing asbestos.


MR. BOWKER:  It still does.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That, to me, was of concern because I’ve done a lot of work in ovarian cancer research.  I know there was a concern there, even though it’s kind of minor statistically and hard to prove.  So, I know that there’s all those other affiliated but hard to prove in a litigation setting a linkage and causation.  


Did you get through your . . . 


MR. BOWKER:  I will wrap it up quickly.  Some of the things that need to be done in El Dorado Hills, it seems to me that a very logical step is to do some testing in the houses and in the yards.  However, we’ve got a real problem there.  People are fearful that they will lose their home values if they find it there.  That’s one of the big problems I would like to see state government take on, with local governments’ help.  We need to be able to assure these people that their homes don’t have asbestos in them without losing the home value.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right.  That’s a big problem.


MR. BOWKER:  That’s something that we should take on right away.


There are some real challenges to any kind of design around the development when you’re trying to determine:  How are we going to develop without causing a lot of asbestos exposure?  Certainly, we should look immediately to what they’ve done in Fairfax, Virginia.  One of the problems is that fibers—and a lot of which you’ll hear the county talk about is their dust emission, which is important—but fibers also migrate by the billions in water.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m going to ask you to conclude your comments.  We’ve got other speakers and another panel, and I’m actually supposed to be on the road to Oakland.  I’m late right now, so.


MR. BOWKER:  Well, I could see that coming two hours ago.


People ask me all the time, given my experience in asbestos, whether I’m going to move out of El Dorado County because of this.  I tell them maybe.  It depends on whether the county, the state, and the federal government prove by their actions that they’re going to take this health threat seriously.  It’s too late to sweep it under the rug, and personally, I do want to say that I believe that we can solve this problem.  I think we can rebuild confidence that El Dorado County is still a great place to live.  I’m certainly choosing to live there.  But we can only do it by putting people’s health first.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Thank you for that.  I don’t know if I’m going to have time for questions now, but I think it’s more important for the public to hear your testimony, so thank you.


We have our final witness on this panel, and that’s Toni Johnson.  Welcome.


MS. TONI JOHNSON:  Thank you.  My name’s Toni Johnson.  I live in El Dorado County.  I work at the phone company—SBC.  

I noticed when I was going through this book at the back of the room, there is a picture of my house in the very last section, on page 410.  We moved to El Dorado County about fourteen years ago, and we’ve spent the last nine dealing with major problems because there’s a quarry located near our home—that you can see in that picture.  It is a serpentine quarry, and it is still active.  Let me make that very clear.  It’s still crushing serpentine rock.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now, is that different than the quarry that’s next to Ms. Vargas’s home?


MS. JOHNSON:  Same type of quarry.  Serpentine.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Not the same one, though.


MS. JOHNSON:  No, not the same one.


Some of the problems that we have come across—the first one we became aware of was in about 1996.  We found out that the quarry had been operating without having a reclamation plan or financial assurance in place to clean up the mess when the quarry’s done operating.  The county didn’t seem to be really concerned about that.  They hadn’t done, really, anything other than write a few letters to try and correct that.


So, we took this concern to the state level.  We went to the State Mining and Geology Board, who eventually removed regulatory authority from the county.  They have been pursuing enforcement at this quarry since.  They’re tied up in court.  The most current action that they’ve taken—in December of 2004, they wrote a letter notifying the county that there is an immediate danger to human health and safety because—if you can see in the picture—there’s a large stockpile located on the quarry floor.  There’s a creek that runs right along the bottom of that stockpile.  These asbestos fibers are washing out of the pile into Weber Creek, down the American River, and into the Folsom Lake water supply.  So, I made some follow-up letters and calls to the county to see what was being done, and basically nothing.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m sorry, you contacted who?  The county and . . .? 


MS. JOHNSON:  The county.  The letter was addressed to Peter Maurer at the County Planning Department.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And when was that letter sent?


MS. JOHNSON:  It was sent in December of 2004.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Has there been a response to you at all?


MS. JOHNSON:  When I called and finally got him on the phone, he said, basically, they weren’t doing anything.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the other correspondence or contact you’ve had with the regulatory agency was with . . .?


MS. JOHNSON:  The State Mining and Geology Board.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And what was their response?


MS. JOHNSON:  That was done over a course of several years.  I made the initial contact.  I believe it was in November of ’96.  That seems about right.  They became involved with the issue and started looking at other quarries in the county that had problems and eventually had to intervene and remove the lead agency authority, is what it’s called under the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, they did respond and intervened, whether it was adequate or not.


MS. JOHNSON:  Right.  They have taken over, and they are trying to enforce regulations at the quarry, but it’s wound up in court.  It’s been tied up in the local court system.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  And we are going to hear from Department of Conservation, right?  So, perhaps they can address that point as well.


MS. JOHNSON:  I’m sure they can.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Please continue.


MS. JOHNSON:  Obviously, the other concern is with the air quality around an active serpentine quarry and the asbestos that’s being generated by the rock crusher.  In 1998, the CARB came in and did air testing.  As a result of the air testing, the quarry was listed on the Toxic Hotspots Monitoring Program, and Proposition 65 warnings were issued.  In 2000, the CARB and the EPA jointly filed suit against the quarry, trying to enforce air quality regulations on them.  That suit resulted in a settlement.  

There was a list of mitigation measures agreed to which were not followed by the quarry, so the Office of the Attorney General went back to the federal court judge and said, The agreement’s not being followed, and at that point, the federal court judge determined that that was a matter of local enforcement and referred the matter back to the county level.  The county, in turn, filed suit against the quarry.  That resulted in another settlement.  The main problem I have with that settlement is the person who drafted the settlement, and is largely in charge of seeing that it’s enforced, had a previous occupation of being a private attorney who was employed by the quarry operator.  

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are you saying as county counsel?


MS. JOHNSON:  No.  He became a judge pro tem for the county.  He’s a county mediation judge.  And I’ve provided this documentation to Ms. Machi.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I apologize.  It’s not been foremost on my mind.


Was there a request to raise a potential conflict of interest and, ideally, a recusal?


MS. JOHNSON:  Nobody did that, but in my mind, my problem with it is, the enforcement is now back at local level, which, if it had been adequate in the first place, would not have gone through the circle of the state and the EPA enforcement.  When I see how they are resolving the situation, by putting the man’s former attorney, a charge of regulating him, I don’t have a lot of confidence that’s going to be done.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  And what were the terms of the settlement?  I’m kind of curious.  Even though you are concerned that there may have been a potential conflict of who oversaw the settlement terms, were the settlement terms themselves inadequate in terms of mitigation?


MS. JOHNSON:  They were nowhere near as stringent as the ones that were decided in the previous case.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Were they mitigation measures?


MS. JOHNSON:  He’s to follow, you know, watering.  There’s no dust to be crossing the property line.  One thing that bothers me about it is, there is dust allowed as long as it doesn’t exceed a certain opacity rating or a certain time limit coming from the crusher.  I mean, we’re talking about invisible asbestos fibers and they are giving him a permit to make visible dust.  Even if the dust is visibly not over the property line, these asbestos fibers very well could be and probably are.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the enforcement is through the county.  So, do you have a county enforcement officer out there on a regular basis?


MS. JOHNSON:  The inspections went to a third-party inspection.  The county is still the ones that I call, if I see dust, to come out and enforce regulations.  I’ve still been filming dust at the quarry, which I also provided a copy of that, and when I was out filming dust again and I saw we’re back to the county level—I wasn’t happy with them before—I sent that to the CARB.  They made a copy of the tape and wrote a letter back to the county, saying, How are you going to address this issue?  Sent them the tape and the letter, and that’s the last I’ve heard of that.  


I just can’t understand.  I’ve been run through the complete gamut of governmental agencies in this situation.  I’m right back to square one, and I really want to know:  Do people have to start dying before this gets taken care of?  Who do I need to call to get this done?

The last comment I’ll make is, in your findings here or your recommendations, it says that the El Dorado County Air Quality Management District should ensure full enforcement of state and county air toxic regulations.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s a U.S. EPA recommendation.


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.  And yes they should.  But based on my experience . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  They are not.


MS. JOHNSON:  Exactly.  And I’ve heard the same type of thing from the other witnesses here, that we’ve just been run in circles.  It’s very frustrating.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I can appreciate your frustration.  I know we’re going to have the county here; I know we’re going to have CARB here.  I mean, we’re faced with those who range from, The science that we have is not appropriate, to, We don’t have enough science.  But whether or not we have adequate science, when you have a court order or a settlement agreement that in and of itself is not being enforced, then that troubles me.


MS. JOHNSON:  Exactly.  And despite all the argument over the science, I think everyone can agree, you don’t want to inhale asbestos.  It’s bad for you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think we should all start from there.


MS. JOHNSON:  So, therefore, you don’t want to make dust.  Let’s get some active enforcement on here.  You know, serpentine isn’t something you want to be around.  It’s not something you’re even allowed to use as road-base anymore.  Why are we still digging it up and crushing it when we’re burying it at the school?  Why do we still have active serpentine mines?  I’ve tried to get additional testing done around this mine, like was done at the schools, but I guess I haven’t called the right person yet.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I know this is an issue that you’ve been living with longer than many. . . . well, many of you have been living with.  It’s difficult for me to try to figure out how we as a state are going to get, hopefully, some bright-line direction and, most importantly, more science to give comfort to some.  I think there’s adequate science to say, as you say from a very pragmatic perspective, you don’t want to inhale asbestos, period.  That’s just not a good thing.  

I’m not sure if you finished with your testimony, but I’m going to be anxious to hear from the county whether they think there’s adequate enforcement.  If you’d care to sit up here—and you can move over here—maybe have an opportunity for the county to address that question—or even CARB.  I mean, everybody’s pointing to someone else as the enforcement agency.  CARB will point to the county; county will point to CARB; or U.S. EPA will make recommendations that there should be some enforcement of some logical standards.  But I want to know where this all stops and who ultimately is responsible.  It’s frustrating because it’s a new issue that I’m immersing myself in.  Well, it’s not new to you, but it’s the last year for me to sort through it.


Have you finished your testimony?


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes, I’m finished.  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t think we have any more testimony on this panel.  I want to be able to ask some questions, and I want you to stay there, but I see Senator Cox wanting to weigh in.


SENATOR COX:  No, Madam Chair.  I thank the witnesses for their testimony.  Appreciate your being here and thank you for being forthright in your testimony and answering the questions that I asked.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Great.  Well, let me now take an opportunity, since I usually like to hold off on questions until the full panel is finished, but let me ask so that I understand—you have a settlement agreement that outlines what is supposed to be done at the quarry next to your home.

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.  And I have an extra copy with me, if you would like it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If my staff has it, they can get it to me.


MS. JOHNSON:  It was in the packet I gave you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And does it have the terms of that mitigation?


MS. JOHNSON:  It’s the actual agreement.  Yes, I’ve provided it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the agreement is entered into between the quarry and the county?


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the county is the enforcement agency?


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  When you call the county, how do they respond to your concerns?


MS. JOHNSON:  Well, they come out and inspect.  It’s not always the same day I call them.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, timeliness is essential.


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.  And that’s, I know, something that’s been frustrating for them as well because it seems like whenever they show up, the dust magically disappears.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What is the average delay?  I mean, what’s the average time between your request for them to come out and their actual . . . 


MS. JOHNSON:  If they were to leave immediately when I call them, it would take them about twenty minutes to get out to the site.  There’s a locked gate at the entrance to the quarry.  When they’re operating, they normally leave it open, but there’s a very long driveway.  I can usually see the inspectors entering, so I’m sure the quarry personnel can also, and that may be part of the problem.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, how long, again, have you lived adjacent to this quarry?


MS. JOHNSON:  Since 1991.  So, it’s about fourteen years.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you have children?


MS. JOHNSON:  No, I don’t.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Have you monitored yourself and your health?


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes, I have been.  I haven’t developed mesothelioma yet, but I am having some airway restriction problems because there’s dust there.  I recently went in to a local doctor, because my other one retired, and told them about this, and they said, Well, we really don’t know what kind of a monitoring program we need to start yet.  They’re going to have to investigate because I brought this up.  This came out on Monday, you know.  It was the week after all the results were released.  They said, Yes, we’ve been aware of that.  We realize it’s going to be a health issue in the area, and we need to find out what kind of monitoring program to put people on.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Now, U.S. EPA, or one of the agencies, mentioned that they’re putting together a group of physicians who are going to hopefully be advisors?

UNIDENTIFIED:  EPA.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  EPA?  Maybe we can find a way for you to connect with them.


MS. JOHNSON:  That would be good.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You may want to be a part of these long-term studies that it looks like they’re going to embark upon.


MS. JOHNSON:  My former physician’s way of handling it was, basically, You have to go in for a lung x-ray every year and see if a spot shows up.  You know, that’s not real comforting.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Exposure to x-rays may not be a wise thing.


MS. JOHNSON:  Exactly.  So, that leaves you with additional concerns.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And by the time they can diagnose a spot, that’s     pretty . . . 


MS. JOHNSON:  Too late.


SENATOR COX:  [Inaudible] . . . ask any additional questions, but would you ask her if she’s __________  hours a day, working for SBC?

MS. JOHNSON:  Currently, I’m gone during the daytime.  The majority of the time I was living there I was working night shift, so I was home, sleeping during the day.  I went on day shift, so we are gone now during the day.  The only time that I’m filming dust is when I’m on vacation.  That’s why the last tape I made was in December, because I took the week off for Christmas.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Your house sounds like a perfect location to do some ongoing, constant exposure levels.


MS. JOHNSON:  And I would love to get that done, but like I said, I just haven’t made the right phone call yet.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Maybe we can make the connections today with those that are here.


MS. JOHNSON:  I would really appreciate that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Lowenthal, questions of any of these residents?  There’s been a whole lot of information.  Would you like to ask any questions?


All right.  And your recommendations were, you know, enough government; now let’s put some enforcement mechanisms in place and/or a little more activity.


Let’s hear from local government as well as CARB and see what their recommendations are.


MS. JOHNSON:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate your time.  I know it’s been a long day.  Thank you all.


Let’s have the next panel come forward.  The next panel is the “The Governments’ Role in Regulation, Identification, Remediation, and Enforcement.”  State agencies are the next three witnesses, and then we have local government, four witnesses, and then public comment.  


Let me ask the first witness, Mr. John Parrish, who’s the state geologist from the Department of Conservation.

MR. JASON MARSHALL:  Madam Chair?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re the first speaker?


MR. MARSHALL:  To my left is Dr. John Parrish.  If I could introduce myself and also explain, maybe, the two hats the Department of Conservation plays.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you are?


MR. MARSHALL:  My name’s Jason Marshall.  I’m the chief deputy director of the Department of Conservation.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And are you going to speak also?


MR. MARSHALL:  I will speak briefly to clarify the distinction between the two roles the department plays here, but then I’ll be turning it over to Dr. Parrish.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  We didn’t have you on the list here.  I guess you’re going to go first?


MR. MARSHALL:  Very briefly, if I may, Madam Chair.


The Department of Conservation houses both the California Geologic Survey, a scientific organization, as well as the Office of Mine Reclamation, a regulatory body.  The State Mining and Geology Board, which you have heard about a bit earlier today, is actually a policy and appeals body and an enforcement body that is under the department’s umbrella, if we may.  It’s an important distinction that I think we need to make.  

We were asked to attend this hearing to provide information about the science, the geology of California, and the geology of ultramafic rock, which is a host rock for the various types of asbestos minerals.


We’d also like to be able to answer any questions you may have about the regulation of mining in El Dorado County or in the state and specifically respond to any particular questions you may want to ask us.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask you about Ms. Johnson’s concern in terms of the Geology Board.  Have they failed to enforce anything in this situation?


MR. MARSHALL:  Absolutely not, Madam Chair.  The Department of Conservation and the Mining and Geology Board have taken the enforcement of the Surface Mining and Reclamation law . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are you familiar with this specific case?


MR. MARSHALL:  I absolutely am.  The case that we’re talking about, the mine—Weber Quarry—is the quarry she’s referring to.  The operator of that mine also operates another mine in the county—Diamond Quarry.  Those, plus a number of other mines in the county—almost a dozen, perhaps more—the  county’s lack of enforcement there was the reason that the Mining and Geology Board did take over El Dorado County’s enforcement of the Surface Mining and Reclamation law.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But then you delegated it back to the county.


UNIDENTIFIED:  The Air Board . . . [inaudible.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


MR. MARSHALL:  We have issued orders to Mr. Brunius, the operator of those mines, and those orders are presently in litigation.  They have been stayed.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you have injunction authority?


MR. MARSHALL:  The injunction the department has sought against Mr. Brunius’s operations has been stayed by the court.  Indeed, presently—on May 26th, I believe the date is—you’ll be able to hear the entire question about how far the department’s authority extends under the Surface Mining law.  It’s being heard by the California Supreme Court on that day.  This is no small matter, and El Dorado County is the place where the department has been tested most with regard to its ability to enforce the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How interesting.  So, this is the counterpart to RCRA, under the federal government—Resource Conservation and Recovery Act?


MR. MARSHALL:  The Surface Mining law specifically requires the cleanup of a mine site, and only mine sites, after mining.  There are regulations about how a mine operates, but those regulations deal very specifically with operations and how that affects the post-mining reclamation.  The Surface Mining law does not deal with the ongoing operation of a mine.  For instance, dust control is not an issue that is regulated by the Surface Mining law because dust control that would take place today, tomorrow, the day after tomorrow, has absolutely nothing to do with how you reclaim a mine twenty, thirty years down the line.  We’d certainly be concerned about dust control at the mine site when it is closed.  It needs to be re-vegetated, and that has a dust-controlling effect.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That active mine operating.


MR. MARSHALL:  That is correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are you finished?


MR. MARSHALL:  Yes.  If I may, Dr. John Parrish is our state geologist.  He’s also quite an expert on the State Mining and Geology Board.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s hear from him then.  Welcome.


MR. MARSHALL:  He served in the past as the board’s . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re going to hear from him because we have to move along.  Thank you.


Welcome, Dr. Parrish.


DR. JOHN PARRISH:  Thank you.  

Madam Chairwoman and members of the committee, I’m John Parrish, the state geologist and chief of the California Geological Survey.  We’ve been asked to make a short presentation—and I will keep it brief since I understand the hour—as to what the Geological Survey in the Department of Conservation has done to map asbestos-bearing rocks in the state.


Generally, we do not map asbestos per se.  That is a mineral that is, until very, very recently, not mappable, except by some very high technology that we are now employing.  But we have extensive geologic maps of the state, and we know the host rocks in which asbestos may be found.  We have been able to extrapolate from our geological maps where those host rocks outcrop and where they would be susceptible to being disturbed by the population as it moves into those areas.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can you tell us where those areas are?  The debate is whether there is, like, six to eight really high concentrations versus 48 out of all of our 58 counties.  


DR. PARRISH:  Well, what you have—and I’ve read about all of those numbers of counties—we count 49 out of 58 counties have exposures of host rock which may be subject to disturbance.

You have in your packets, I think that we handed out, an eight by ten—this large map that you see over before you here.  This map is an extraction from our regional geologic map of the state which just shows the host rocks in which asbestos may be found.  And one of those little eight by tens that you have, we have superimposed.  It looks like a pink blush area on this little map.  That’s the 2000 Census population that we put using GIS techniques onto this map, and it will show that going up into the foothills of the state—the Sierra and foothills—and also along the Pacific Coast range, those green areas being impinged upon by some pink areas.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, repeat that as we go through. . . . guys, it’s under the DOC tab.


DR. PARRISH:  I don’t know that it’s under your tab.  I think we delivered these earlier.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m going to wait until my staff gets back, but I think the topic of that heading is “A General Location Guide . . .”?


DR. PARRISH:  Yes, that’s correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Unfortunately, in our handout, it doesn’t show the coloration.


So, repeat the significance of your GIS mapping and the blush or the pink color.


DR. PARRISH:  The green areas shown on this large state map indicate where the ultramafic rocks are exposed on the surface, and these are the rocks likely to contain asbestos.  And the pink blush that you see on that eight by ten copy of this map represents the 2000 Census for California, which has been superimposed on that.  And it shows that in certain counties, specifically, El Dorado County, Placer County, and some of the coastal counties—Mendocino County, Monterey County—where the green is exposed, you’ll see some pink blush.  That is showing the population being superimposed onto the outcrop areas here.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


DR. PARRISH:  In fact, in the green areas that you see, there’s about 2,200 square miles of exposed host rock in the state, and where we see the pink areas is where the population is moving into the exposed areas, and those are areas that we would concentrate on most as being the areas most likely to be disturbed.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, the relevance of that is we have exposure potentially throughout the state, but we see the overlay of population to exposure in El Dorado County.  But Placer County, El Dorado County—and what’s the third county?


DR. PARRISH:  Some of the coastal counties.  There’s Monterey County, Mendocino County.  We also see Tuolumne and Calaveras Counties are getting some population increases, as the population moves from the coastal and valley areas into the foothills.  So, when we talk about the exposure, we’re saying some areas are more likely to encounter disturbance than some of the more remote areas, and we have tended to concentrate our mapping in those areas where it’s most . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, obviously, the exposure, at least in El Dorado, that is the overlay of concern, is the development.


DR. PARRISH:  Yes.  And El Dorado County was the first county in which we tried to do a detailed work based on the information that we had in-house at the time.  There is the El Dorado County map, which . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Oh.  I know Senator Cox had that up earlier, but I think it’s helpful to have this.  Maybe we could put it on that chair over there.  That’s helpful.

DR. PARRISH:  The blue areas on this map represent the areas of host-rock outcropping where asbestos may be found.  And, of course, a lot of that is in the El Dorado Hills area because that’s the first set of foothills where development has occurred.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Would you mind going over there and standing and showing us?  Because I can’t read all of that.  So, repeat that and tell us of the points of interest—like where El Dorado Hills is on the map.


DR. PARRISH:  What we’re seeing here in the blue areas are the areas where asbestos-bearing rocks most likely are exposed.  These are the ultimately big rocks that you see here.  And El Dorado Hills developments tend to run along these areas.  There’s a lot of development also in here where you see there is no exposure, and we would expect this not to be an area of too much concern.


This represents an extraction from our regional map.  We did do some ground troughing here, and we are using this also as an experimental area where we’re using what’s called avarice mapping, which is airborne, infrared spectrometry mapping where we are verifying where these particular minerals exist.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, tell us what this means in terms of greatest population overlay.


DR. PARRISH:  If you look at the overlays—it’s a little difficult to see on that eight by ten—but you’re generally having the population in the pink area move into this portion of the county, which is the first layer of foothills which is being developed.  That’s the El Dorado Hills area that’s in there.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Just as a point of reference, that red line going through is the Highway 50 corridor, which goes through three counties basically.


DR. PARRISH:  This is just a trend.  It goes through this county; also, it moves up north through Placer County and moves on south through Amador and Calaveras.  This is just where this particular rock group is being exposed.  You can see that it’s linear.  It’s a hit and miss.  What we use this for, and what the county uses this for, is general planning where, if you get close to one of these blue areas, you ought to start looking for asbestos to be present.  It doesn’t guarantee that asbestos will be there, but it’s a good place to start looking.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It would be interesting to see proposed development overlaid.  You know, subdivisions approved as an overlay to that area as well.


DR. PARRISH:  What we are doing now is working under contract with Placer County, which has contracted with the Geologic Survey to work in their county, and a bit with Sacramento County, because out in the Folsom area, of course, you had some of that.  And so, we’re working under contract with those two counties to provide maybe perhaps more detailed maps than this.  This map is at 1 to 100,000.  It will get you down to pretty much city block size, but if you ask planners, they like a different scale.  They like 1 to 24,000 to get down to plot size.  We are trying to produce that size map.  We produce a number of hazard maps in the state—earthquake hazard maps—and they’re all at 1 to 24,000 for planning reasons.  We’ve just not gotten to doing these maps at that particular scale.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  And we love those infamous flood overlay maps that we’ve all been subject to in parts of this region.  So, we know you can give specificity that we sometimes don’t like.


This has helped, but have you completed your presentation?


DR. PARRISH:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for that.


DR. PARRISH:  I do have some samples here I was asked to bring, if you want to see samples of asbestos-bearing rocks.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Go ahead and bring those up here so we can look at them.  We won’t open the bags.


I just recall as a kid when we’d play in the creeks and all of those places where we’d find those really beautiful rocks in Sacramento County before it was developed.  They were really pretty colored rocks.  They’d have veins of pretty colors and chunks.


Thank you.


DR. PARRISH:  They’re from different counties, different areas of the state.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate that.  


UNIDENTIFIED:  This one’s from Napa.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Napa!  Lovely.  It’s very beautiful.  I mean, the color is incredible.  How many kids play with this not knowing what it is?


Okay.  Next witness?  I’m sorry, who’s the next witness?

MS. CAREN TRGOVCICH:  Caren Trgovcich.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Welcome.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  Thank you.  Thank you again, Madam Chair and Members.  I’m Caren Trgovcich, chief of the Statewide Cleanup Operations Division for the Department of Toxic Substances Control.  With me is our chief deputy for the department, Leonard Robinson.  Thank you again for inviting us here to describe the department’s role or regulatory function as it relates to naturally occurring asbestos.

Just by a little way of background, the department’s the principal state agency responsible for the investigation and cleanup of hazardous substances release sites in the state.  We’ve been involved with the investigation and/or cleanup of well over 3,400 sites in this state, and our sites are very site-specific.  They include things like former industrial properties, small businesses, landfills, military bases, schools, and others.  I’m giving you this briefly as a backdrop to be able to put in context our regulatory role.


Our principal regulatory authority is Chapter 6.8 of the Health and Safety Code, and it’s used by the department in the cleanup of hazardous substances release sites; although, many of our brownfield sites, as you might well know, are cleaned up using other authorities as well, such as the Polanco Act and the recently enacted California Land Reuse and Revitalization Act.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m very familiar with that.  I was a staffer when I worked for him on that one.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  Under Chapter 6.8, responsible parties are required to conduct and finance the work required by the department either through voluntary agreements, orders, or enforceable agreements.  Responsible parties are typically the property owner and current and former operators or other parties that may have contributed to contamination at the site.  In a relatively small number of cases, we are unable to identify financially viable parties responsible for the release at the site.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s waive the liability overview.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  I will waive that, but just to be able to put that in context, to be able to understand where our regulatory authority lies, we can regulate naturally occurring asbestos under Chapter 6.8.  So, we could use our authority, our site cleanup authority, to be able to address site-specific releases.  


However, as I just described, the Hazardous Substances Account Act, or Chapter 6.8 of the Health and Safety Code, requires that we compel all viable, financially available parties to contribute to that cleanup.  And so, in this case, it may not be the best of vehicles or regulatory mechanisms.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Tell me why.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  Because we would be required to compel not only ________ parties . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  There’s a whole chain of potentially responsible parties.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  . . . but the property owners themselves, which in this case, because we’re talking about El Dorado Hills here, are homeowners.  So, we would be required to look at all contributing parties, and homeowners/property owners are generally always identified as one of potentially many responsible parties for a site.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  But you could do it up to the limits of their homeowners’ policies.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  We would need to evaluate them like we evaluate any other party:  look at all of their assets, their financial statements; and then, our experts make a determination on their ability to contribute to that response.  So, it may not be the best of regulatory mechanisms.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you penalize those who theoretically/hypothetically may be victims.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  Exactly, which is why we have not pursued this authority in El Dorado Hills or other communities.  What we’ve done principally is twofold:  We’ve either pursued, certainly, our oversight through our schools program—which I’m sure as many are aware, through the California Education Code, back in 2000, a significant new step of environmental review was created for proposed school sites or school sites undergoing further construction—and we are to look at naturally occurring substances as well.  So, that’s a big new hook in the law.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  A new tool.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  Exactly.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s, in fact, how Oak Ridge was able. . . . when they did a significant expansion, that triggered the . . . 


MS. TRGOVCICH:  Actually, our involvement in Oak Ridge began more with the second role which we play, which is technical support and consultation.  At the time, we were addressing them as an existing school, not a new school coming in or expansion—at that time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me go back to the original question.  You could, in fact, go after quarry owners as a PRP or an RP, a responsible party.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  I don’t know the exact answer to that question, but it would need to be addressed principally through the Department of Conservation’s responsibility.  We do not address operating quarries. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But if it was a closed quarry contaminated . . .


MS. TRGOVCICH:  If it was a closed mine site, exactly, then either the department or, depending upon the sources or areas impacted, perhaps even the regional water quality control boards may have some responsibility.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s throw in another few agencies and see who’s not going to . . . 


Okay.  You can continue.


MS. TRGOVCICH:  That was principally what I wanted to cover, was that this Chapter 6.8 tool may not be the best tool in this case.  The schools law certainly is a very strong law in that regard.  And then we do and have provided technical support and consultation where asked.  And part of that function in doing that, we worked with U.S. EPA in obtaining funding from them and generated the Garden Valley study, which you’ve heard several others talk about today, including Melanie Marty with OEHHA.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Appreciate that.


Okay.  We have one other witness on this panel:  ARB.  We have Mr. Scheible.  Boy, you’ve probably gotten an earful about CARB and your role.  Hopefully, you can shed some light on many of the comments that have been made today.


MR. MIKE SCHEIBLE:  Good evening, Madam Chair and Senators.  My name is Mike Scheible.  I’m the deputy executive officer of the California Air Resources Board.


In light of the previous comments made, I suspect you have a question or two for my agency, so I’ll try to make my testimony brief but still do some justice to the extensive things that we have done in the field of trying to abate asbestos emissions and exposures.


We take our responsibility for identifying toxic air contaminates and developing controls that we and local government must implement to reduce risk very seriously.  Asbestos was one of the first of the toxic substances that we addressed.  That was in 1986.  And from that time, we have engaged in a host of activities to reduce the public’s exposures to asbestos.  These include adopting an asbestos control measure which prohibits the use of asbestos-laden materials on roads and streets, playgrounds, parking lots, et cetera.  We did that in 1990.  As the law requires, local districts adopted that and must enforce it.


As we got further information on the asbestos problem and the science—and proved in 2001—we ratcheted down the acceptable amount of asbestos.  Basically, what we’re trying to do is make sure that the naturally occurring asbestos that might come from a quarry doesn’t get distributed to areas where it is used in an exposed capacity.  It is allowed to be used as underlay for a paved road and that type of thing.


We also developed in 2001 a stringent requirement for asbestos during construction grading, quarrying, and surface mining operations.  The purpose of this regulation is to make sure that in an area that might possibly have asbestos—and we were very conservative about what those areas might be that extensive practices are taking place; why the land is disturbed—is to ensure that the asbestos emissions are minimized and have minimum impact offsite and that after the construction is completed, that the land is stabilized so that it doesn’t represent a continuing problem.


We also decided that in a number of areas, that regulatory authority that we possess was probably not the best tool in order to address the issue.  So, we’ve developed quite a series of public advisories on what to do if you think you might have asbestos on your property, in terms of how to avoid your exposure to that.  And we have a large public information program that we’ve worked with the areas of California that have asbestos-related issues.


As you’ve heard before, asbestos is a common occurrence in many areas of California, so we have developed a reg that’s applied statewide. And virtually all of the Central and Northern California counties have to pay attention, at least in some of the areas when they do development, to the regulation and apply it in a way that limits asbestos emissions.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  But is it your opinion that adequate predevelopment measurements were taken, either from CARB or El Dorado County?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  In developing our measures, we did sufficient monitoring to say that . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You did sufficient monitoring at what point?  When you were called in?  Or do you go in there independently?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Around 1998, a number of concerns were raised through the media and other areas about development of the foothills, and that made us re-look at what was the impact of naturally occurring asbestos.  Up until that time, we had been looking mostly at the more traditional areas of brake linings and that type of thing in terms of reducing public exposure.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you were called in by the county?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Media and public concerns, county concerns, and so, we initiated monitoring.  For example, we’ve monitored naturally occurring asbestos for more than a thousand—well, around a thousand samples in trying to get an idea of what the impact was on ambient levels and what type of problems were there.  We became convinced through that that we needed to do two additional things in our regulation.  One, we needed to strengthen our regulation on what level of asbestos-containing material could be shipped from a quarry and used, and we basically regulate that at, if a quarry has more than .25 percent     asbestos . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What about nonquarry ambient measurement?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  The second part is that we looked also in areas and did monitoring in various areas in El Dorado County and other locations to get an idea of what the concentrations were, and we, from that, decided that we needed an explicit regulation to deal with construction and land disturbances in those areas.  We developed both of those regulations in the 2000-2001 timeframe, adopted them, and they are now fully in effect in counties, and we are required to enforce them.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  At what point post-adoption of the regs and the public process have they been operative?

MR. SCHEIBLE:  The first one went into operation 2001; the second in 2002.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the second one, you mean the ambient for construction.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  The second one is the one that requires construction activities in areas that may have asbestos outcroppings, or where the construction could disturb serpentine materials that might contain asbestos to conform to standards in terms of how much dust can be generated; that type of thing.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, as of 2002—is that January of 2002?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  It’s sometime in 2002.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  As of some point in 2002, the residents of El Dorado should have some comfort level that there are standards, that ARB is coming in and monitoring and assuring enforcement?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  There are rules that apply to construction and similar activities—grading activities—that are in place, and the local air districts are required to enforce them.


SENATOR COX:  And are they being monitored, Madam Chair?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s my question.


So, the local enforcement is the air quality management district?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  That’s correct.  That’s the way the law is set up.


SENATOR COX:  It’s your understanding that the local AQMD is monitoring things in the county?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  It’s my understanding that the local AQMD is enforcing the regulations they’re required to enforce.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re going to hear from them as well, right?  Okay.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  And we don’t have the resources to oversee each and every district each and every year, so we do that on a rotating basis when we go in and do programs assessments.  Or, if we receive complaints, we go in and try to ascertain the situation.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Have you received complaints from El Dorado residents?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Yes.  We receive periodic complaints about numerous issues from El Dorado residents, concerning asbestos.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But you’re not able to determine whether or not the AQMD is, in fact. . . . I mean, they may be, but if there is a complaint, do you not intervene?  I mean, how do you handle complaints, fair or unfair, where the residents believe AQMD is not adequately enforcing?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  When we get complaints, we deal with the AQMD, and if we don’t get a satisfactory answer from them about the enforcement, we can ratchet up and then go out and review their activities.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Have you done that all since 2002, to review their activities?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  We have not done a comprehensive assessment since 2002.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Have you gone out at all since 2002 to intervene at all, to monitor whether or not the local AQMD is, in fact . . . 


MR. SCHEIBLE:  I’d have to get back to you to find out specifically our activities there.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m not suggesting there isn’t the will or the desire.  I understand they have some staffing. . . . I don’t know if it’s the county or the AQMD that may not have a lot of staffing to be able to actually adequately monitor, but we’ll hear from the AQMD.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Virtually all air districts have criteria and require dust controls from construction projects of size, and when it’s in an area with asbestos, the controls go somewhat further than the other controls.  So, it’s not just an El Dorado County issue; it’s one that affects all air districts.


SENATOR COX:  But you have a process in place that says if you get a complaint, you ask the local AQMD to respond.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  That’s correct.


SENATOR COX:  And to the best of your ability, do you know whether they have responded?  Have you written any letters of concern?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  I would have to go back and check the record and get back to you on that.


SENATOR COX:  All right.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  I can’t answer conclusively.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask about the task force findings, that the ARB monitoring data makes some assumptions?  Can I ask you whether you’re familiar with the task force?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Which task force?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s the one that was 1998.  It’s referenced in our book.  You know, that’s the interesting thing because there’s been a task force in place in which there were some findings that said that, in fact, “The task force finds that the Air Resources Board monitoring data indicate . . .” the following, and let me ask you if you agree with these findings.  

Are you familiar with ARB making findings and a task force in 1998?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you’re familiar with those findings?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Yes.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The task force was formed in response to then-Senator Leslie, then-Assemblyman Oller, and the El Dorado County officials to the Cal/EPA.  Cal/EPA responded to the request by offering technical assistance and staff and enlisting the help of other state and federal agencies.  It was a volunteer group consisting of public officials and federal, state, and local agencies to provide advice to local officials in El Dorado County regarding asbestos.  The task force is not an official state-appointed entity that can make policy and enforce regs.  So, hopefully, the task force I’m trying to put together will have a little more teeth.

But there were some findings on page B-9.  There was an overview of the air monitoring efforts.  There are findings and recommendations of the task force:  “The task force finds that the ARB monitoring data indicate:  (1) there is not widespread exposure to elevated levels of asbestos in the ambient air of El Dorado County; (2) the general population does not appear to be exposed to significant risks from naturally occurring asbestos; and (3) potential exposure to elevated asbestos concentrations and corresponding increased health risks may occur near certain sources such as unpaved roads and quarries.”


So, do you agree with those findings and recommendations?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m trying to reconcile those findings and the U.S. EPA findings.  I mean, this is very different than the findings of the U.S. EPA.  


Have you looked at the U.S. EPA findings?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Yes.  We are very involved in trying to understand them, and we hope that they help us understand how exposure occurs.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, how do you reconcile their exposure levels and measurements with those findings of ARB?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  We’ve done many types of monitoring in and around areas with naturally occurring asbestos in California.  Many of those we’re trying to just find out what is the typical exposure for typical residents over an extended period of time.  Those turn out to be relatively low.  They’re not at the level of risk that we would like, but compared to the level of risk you get from toxic air contaminants living in Senator Lowenthal’s district, around the port, or living in downtown Sacramento in a high-traffic area, they’re quite low. 


We also have done monitoring, for example, close to a quarry, next to a road, that type of thing.  What we find there is that those exposures are higher.  They start to cause more alarm and tell us that there’s need for mitigation, and we work with other areas to do that.


We have not done anything like what U.S. EPA did, which is trying to actually put monitors on people; people that are doing activities that will bring them very close to high, elevated source levels.  In many ways, we’ve done that with various chemicals, with personal monitors.  We’ve done it on freeways, and we know that if you commute in L.A. for a couple of hours, much of your exposure to diesel exhaust comes from those two hours because the concentration on the freeway is much higher.  So, here we see the science evolving, but as you heard before, we don’t yet have all the information we need to put that in perspective and say, If your general level of exposure is not producing an exceptionally high risk, how much more risk do you get from these other activities?  How many people get them?  How you put them in context.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, let me ask on that point because I think it’s really important.  We’re trying to be very judicious and not be alarmist.  I think even the U.S. EPA acknowledged that their findings are not a good model for risk assessment.  Let me just suggest, however, the type of testing that they did that is a better approximation episodic certainly manages to at least try to measure episodic exposure versus ambient exposure, which I think your model is more of an ambient exposure model.  Is that correct?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  That’s correct.  But I’d also like to point out that we didn’t do the ambient exposure and say there’s not a tremendous problem here; we’re not going to do things about it.  Where we saw opportunities to mitigate risk and lower emissions, we’ve taken them.  We’ve put regulations in place.  Our judgment is that these regulations are highly effective at removing the things that cause some of the asbestos exposures.  In other situations, if you have a situation where there’s asbestos in the soil in an area where children, adults, other people come and get exposed to that soil, then you can figure out the risk, but we would probably be a proponent and say, Well, let’s move to the mitigation.  Let’s do what was done in the school and remove the asbestos from that area and therefore reduce the risk.  Whether we figure out exactly how high it is, it’s something we don’t want to have.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me go back to another point because I don’t want you to feel that you need to defend your testing.  I don’t want to give you that impression.  I think it’s appropriate.  You did ambient measure.  You proposed mitigation.  And for ambient exposure, those mitigation measures may be appropriate.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  And community-wide exposure.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right.  Community-wide exposure.  But I think it’s really important for us to understand.  I think there’s value in the more precise episodic exposure tests that were done because they are very reflective of people working in the garden, children riding a bike, or people walking a trail.  I mean, do you think there’s value in whether it’s ARB or anyone else doing those more precise episodic exposure tests, that testing, to more closely reflect children close to the ground, riding bikes, playing in backyards or in public parks or in schools while wearing testing mechanisms that can capture those day-to-day activities that should occur in every community?  Do you think there’s value in that?  Do you want to weigh in on the method in which they tested the episodic exposure?

MR. SCHEIBLE:  We started out with the premise that exposure to asbestos is bad, undesirable; you want to prevent it to the extent that you can.  Now, how much resources and priority we have to afford that versus all the other things that are bad and we want to reduce exposure to is a matter of how severe is the risk and where are the exposures coming from?  So, the monitoring that tells us that this is a sizeable source of exposure and needs to be addressed is very, very helpful to us.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  So, do you think there’s value in someone measuring exposure of a child playing in a soccer field three days a week or riding a bike on a trail, or not?

MR. SCHEIBLE:  If that adds to asbestos exposure, that’s valuable to know, yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you think that a child riding a bike on an unpaved trail in an area that is known to have asbestos is valuable to measure?  Or do you think that would raise the risk of exposure?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Well, clearly, it raises the risk of exposure if there’s asbestos in the dirt.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, then there might be value in testing it.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Yes.  Or perhaps you just need to test the soil and find there’s asbestos there and say, There’s asbestos there; let’s mitigate it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, that’s fair.


I’m just struck by the difference in your method of measuring exposure and the method of measuring exposure by U.S. EPA, that we all acknowledge may not be translated to risk determination.  But I just think there’s room for discussion about better testing.


MR. SCHEIBLE:  Ultimately, we’ve dealt with EPA on this quite a bit.  We both want to understand what are the exposures and what is causing them?  Once you understand those two things, then you can get to the phase that we all want to get to, which is:  What do we need to do about it, and how do we do it?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox, questions of any of these witnesses?


SENATOR COX:  I have none, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m not driving to Oakland, I’ve decided.  It’s just not going to work.  I assure you that we’re going to get out of here quickly, but the local government has been very patient in their waiting to give their side of the story, which I think is important.


Ms. Johnson, anything you’d like us to ask of any of these witnesses?

MS. JOHNSON:  Well, like I said, the Mining Board has been trying to do their job, but they’re being run into trouble in the local court.  I have written letters to the CARB, trying to get them to come back in to oversee the county.  So, that would be the one question I have, is will you come back in again and make sure that they are going to take care of the problems?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me have you respond to the full committee.  What does it take to have you come in, from a partnership with the county, to help them monitor more closely?


MR. SCHEIBLE:  We’d be happy to work with the county and address this.  We have a long history.  We’ve been to court, and I think we’re all frustrated by the legal process that seems to be involved here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s going to open up a whole other debate here with Senator Cox.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, this is still America.  This is a situation in the courts.  The courts will ultimately resolve this.  It will not be to the satisfaction of one party or another party, but it’s in judicial hands now, and the process has to play out.  It’s my understanding that it’s not a matter that you have the ability to go in and do anything other than you’ve done already because it’s in the judicial process.



SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right, and I agree in terms of that option being available, but now we have an order in this case that doesn’t appear to be enforced.  That’s a dilemma because the enforcement entity is the local county.  That’s troubling.  And CARB.  So, yes, I agree, we have the judicial process that’s available and in this case has resulted in a settlement or terms and conditions of mitigation, and it’s unclear whether or not that’s adequately enforced, and if so, why not, and what can we do to assist in the enforcement of that?

SENATOR COX:  But it’s really the local jurisdiction, and it’s also in the judiciary.  Now, that’s the issue here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  There is one order that’s not being appealed.  I mean, you have an order that the county is supposed to adhere to on that quarry behind your home, right?


MS. JOHNSON:  [Inaudible.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Correct.  So, it’s not tied up in an appeal process.  It just simply is a question of not being enforced, from your perspective.


MS. JOHNSON:  Right.  The most recent one has not been appealed, but I was out making videos of dust after it was signed.  So, my concern is, you can sign whatever piece of paper you want, but if I’m still filming dust coming off the quarry, I don’t think that the regulations are being enforced.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Well, that’s an enforcement issue rather than an appeal.  I appreciate that.  We may take you up and help the residents and the county and having you come in and help them enforce.


Other questions?  Let me thank this panel and Ms. Johnson.  You’re more than welcome to stay wherever you feel comfortable.


Let’s have the final panel come forward.  


Is there much public comment; that people want to weigh in?  Okay.  So, there will be public comment.


Our final panel is the local government response.  They’ve been very, very patient and have sat through a very long hearing.  We have Helen Baumann, supervisor from El Dorado County, District 2; Jon Morgan, El Dorado County Environmental Management Department; and Dr. Vicki Barber, El Dorado County Office of Education, superintendent; and Larry Greene, the APCO for SMAQMD.


Welcome.  Let’s start with the supervisor.


SUPERVISOR HELEN BAUMANN:  Can I just ask your indulgence just for a second?  In listening to all of the testimony, I think it would be very helpful if Jon—Mr. Morgan—and myself went last.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Oh, that’s fine.


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  I think that would probably help with some of the questions I’m hoping you’ll ask.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, I appreciate that.  Then let’s have Mr. Greene go first.  


I’m going to be right back.


SENATOR COX:  I’m perfectly prepared, Madam Chair, to continue.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes, I’m sure you are.  I’m not going to leave him there too long all alone.  [Laughter.]


SENATOR COX:  Go ahead, sir, with your testimony.  Please tell us who you are.


MR. LARRY GREENE:  I’m Larry Greene, and I’m the air pollution control officer at the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District.  


This is sort of a different situation from what we’ve heard before.  In El Dorado County, in the other testimony that the state geologist provided, we were talking about ultramafic rock and serpentine rock.  In our situation in Sacramento County, we have mafic rock, which has less of the chemicals that make asbestos under certain circumstances, and we did not have the long history that you’ve heard previous to this about dealing with asbestos.


Our situation was when we encountered a report from the Department of Toxic Substances Control when they were carrying out their mandate to test schools.  And I think this is going to happen a lot across the state.  They had a report from Lago Vista High School in the City of Folsom.  They notified us that they had positive samples of asbestos, naturally occurring asbestos, and that triggered our jurisdiction under the state ATCM.  What I wanted to provide the committee was how we responded to that situation in cooperation with the developers in Folsom and with the City of Folsom and how I think we have responded to that in a pretty effective manner.


The first thing we did was we notified the City of Folsom that naturally occurring asbestos was present within its jurisdiction and that we would be enforcing the air toxic control measure.  We met with the city staff to outline the requirements.  The city, Elliott Homes, the developer, the Empire Ranch where it was found, they were very responsive to us in this discussion.  I think that all of the interest up in El Dorado County had certainly energized everybody to be sensitive to the fact that we needed to deal with this in a responsive manner.


We held a joint community meeting to inform Folsom residents.  We had about 80 people attend.  It was attended by ourselves, the city, and the developer, and we made presentations and we answered a lot of questions.  We also had the folks from the Air Resources Board there at that meeting.


The program we developed was to reduce public exposure immediately, and we’ve been implementing that cooperatively with the City of Folsom ever since.  It includes these measures:  We sent notices to contractors, outlining the requirements of the air toxic control measure, which include water and construction sites, cleaning up tracked-out construction dirt, and installing vegetative cover at the project completion.  For projects of more than one acre, contractors are required to send a dust mitigation plan to the air district, and we’ve just developed and implemented a fee rule at the district so that a fee comes along with those to pay for our work in reviewing those and subsequent inspections that go out.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, Mr. Greene is just outlining for us the process and procedures relative to the complaint that they had in Folsom, and he’s just delineating what their process and procedure is.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I heard a fee there.  How is the fee assessed?


MR. GREENE:  As I originally mentioned, we did not have a long history of asbestos in the Folsom area.  We have a different kind of rock which has less of the asbestos-forming materials.  We were notified by DTSC subsequent to a school site—they go into new school sites and test those.  They found asbestos there, and that kicked off our measures and our work.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, was this the Folsom High School?


MR. GREENE:  This was the Lago Vista High School in Folsom.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s the second phase of their new high school?


MR. GREENE:  I’m not sure which that is.  It’s a new high school site there.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  When were you called in?


MR. GREENE:  We were called in, in June of 2004.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, thanks.


MR. GREENE:  I was going over the measures that we’ve taken to respond to that.


We went in and we met with the city, we met with the developer, and then we had a public meeting.  We’ve gone over with all of them the requirements of the air toxic control measure, one of which is to require the developers to provide—of over an acre—to provide a dust mitigation plan to us.  We have implemented a fee with that so that they send us the money to pay for that review—and then for subsequent, we have a process for subsequent inspections—so that we will be able to staff on a regular basis that work in Folsom for a period of time.  

You’ve heard that the state geologist put together a map up in El Dorado County.  It’s very definitive, and he’s working to make that so you can see where the asbestos is.  We wanted a similar map in eastern Sacramento County.  Placer district is also doing that.  So, we will have, probably, by late summer/early fall better maps of our region.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  That will be Sacramento and Placer but not El Dorado?


MR. GREENE:  El Dorado’s already got their own work, and they’re getting a map sooner than what we’re getting.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s a GIS map.  It would be the overlay.


MR. GREENE:  Yes.  Because we knew that was already being developed and we now knew we had asbestos in our area, we wanted to be able to provide the citizens and the developers and the city a better idea of exactly where we could expect to find asbestos.  This will cover eastern Sacramento County, City of Folsom, south, angling over to El Dorado County.  So, it will cover all that area south, essentially directly south, and over into El Dorado County.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And all of the El Dorado County area that’s been raised and discussed today will be covered.


MR. GREENE:  The geological formations that we’re looking at, at Copper Hills and the Gopher Ridge, trend into El Dorado County.  So, what you have is you have along the same lines you saw in the original map.  You have mafic rock, which then turns into ultramafic as you get into the higher foothills and the mountain.  But we now know, after talking with the state geologist, that they are now finding that these kinds of rocks do have a tendency to have asbestos in them.  Oh boy, we’re real happy about that.  Now we have another wider, larger area that we have to be concerned with.

We’ve really had a consistent enforcement effort up in Folsom for the ATCM.  It includes regular visits from our enforcement staff to review the conditions at the construction sites.  If we observe track-out, we work with the city to give a notice to comply, and if that’s not followed up on, we’ll write tickets for that and write a notice of violation.  Because we’re limited to the number of inspectors we have for a county the size of Sacramento—there’s many other things that we do—it was important to us that we engage the city staff; and they’re also acting as eyes and ears, as the public always does for us.  We’re working with the water folks there and the city inspectors so that they know what we’re looking for.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s the City of Folsom again.


MR. GREENE:  The City of Folsom.  It extends our staff, and it also keeps them involved in the process of what we’re doing.


We conducted a workshop with the building industry.  The developer up there, Elliott Homes, has developed some really excellent procedures which include street cleaning at the end of every construction day to eliminate track-out.  They use conveyer belts to move material onto their sites, and they use hydromulch in the rear yards after they build a house to keep that steady until the homeowner puts in trees and grass and other things like that.


So, we think all of those are good ideas and best practices that are being used up there to reduce the exposure to the public.


Our experience in using best tools available have shown us that consistent and clear statewide methods are very important.  We would like to see the ATCM reviewed periodically to incorporate the most effective practices, technologies, test methods, and standards.  We think that this is an evolving science, and we need to continue to upgrade the ATCM as time goes on.

I’ll also note that in your bill you’re discussing a task force.  We think that local districts should be involved in that.  We’re the people who get the public complaints and go out and visit the sites.  We’re the people who implement the ATCM, and I think we have the practical experience to say what will work and what won’t work onsite.  And we’re the people that have to work with the developers and the community to find a rational solution to these problems.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think it’s an excellent recommendation, and if it isn’t in there already, we ought to have it.


MR. GREENE:  We’ve talked to _________ before about that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, thank you for giving an overview on Sac County and AQMD.  I’m a little familiar with it from a past life.  I served on it.  Senator, did you?  I don’t think we served on it at the same time, though.


SENATOR COX:  Yes, we did.  Absolutely.  


MR. GREENE:  Two former members of our board.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s right.  And we’re not going to ban the wood-burning stoves, I hope, or wood-burning fireplaces anyway. 


MR. GREENE:  It’s on our radar screen.  We’re going to come to a rational solution there too.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask a question.  What is the comparable AQMD in El Dorado County?  Do they have a county air pollution control officer on county staff?


MR. GREENE:  I can let Jon speak to that, but many of the air districts in the state are county staffs.  When you reach a certain size, you typically will move out and become a separate special district on your own.  

I can tell you that this work in Folsom has eaten up a lot of time from our district.  We’ve put a lot of effort in up there, and without extending to the city staff that’s been very responsive and helpful here—and actually, the developers have been very helpful in this area, the people that we’ve worked with.  We’ve written a few notices of violation and we will continue to monitor, but I think we’re getting pretty good compliance with the folks in Folsom.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It sounds like it.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, let me just refresh your memory, by the way.  You and I were on the respective agencies when we made the AQMD a separate entity in Sacramento County.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What year was that?


SENATOR COX:  We hired Mr. Cavelle.  That was about 1996.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I was departing about that time, but I do remember.  Well, we probably agreed on everything there as well.  [Laughter.]


SENATOR COX:  We did, ma’am.


MR. GREENE:  No comment, ma’am.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  A very good staff response.


Thank you for your presentation and your overview.  I mean, this is a new region and the growth here is rapid, but it’s also sort of relative to the region.  We haven’t talked about Amador and Calaveras Counties at all today, at least not their local representatives, but I think what is discussed and recommended here or not actually has some implications for those counties as well.  You are the model, El Dorado, and Folsom. 


MR. GREENE:  We learned from them, and I think we jumped on this very quickly based on the experiences that they had in El Dorado.  Without that being there, we probably would have been behind the power curve too, but we knew it was a problem; we knew it was an issue.  We jumped right on it, and I think we’ve been able to stay ahead of the issue in the public’s eyes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And it sounds like you’ve got a good partnership with the city as well as the developers.


MR. GREENE:  And that’s been important.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Good.  And you’ve engaged city council to be a partner in it and very supportive of your efforts.  Thank you for your presentation.

Who is next?  The superintendent?  Welcome.


DR. VICKI BARBER:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You may begin.


DR. BARBER:  Good evening, Madam Chair and Senator Cox.  It’s a real pleasure to be here, and thank you for the opportunity to address you this evening.


I’m Vicki Barber.  I serve as the El Dorado County superintendent of schools, and I am speaking on behalf of our local agency working group, which includes our school districts throughout the county, as well as the El Dorado Hills Community Service District and our El Dorado Irrigation District.  We’ve worked very, very closely with the county throughout the process.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How many students in your county?


DR. BARBER:  We have approximately 30,000 students in K-12 throughout the county, which borders Sacramento and goes up to the State of Nevada.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I thought the population of the county was 30,000.

DR. BARBER:  No.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thirty thousand children in your overall district.


DR. BARBER:  Right.


We’ve been actively engaged in this issue of naturally occurring asbestos within El Dorado County for the past two years.  Initially at the Oak Ridge High School site within El Dorado Hills, the El Dorado Union High School District was required to expend over $1.6 million to mitigate an issue that was, and we believe still is, ill-defined.


The issues that we are addressing here are similar to those that were dealt with when the Congress enacted the O’Hara regulations in the early 1980s.  The regulations that were enacted were the result of schools that were being dealt with inconsistently, with some schools being required to mitigate indoor asbestos issues, spending millions, while others were not being required to take any action.


As you’ve heard, NOA is present, I learned today, in 49 counties.  I’ve been quoting 44 for a number of months, but 49 counties throughout California and 20 states, and yet, no other community in California has been forced to spend the millions of dollars that our school district was forced to spend to mitigate NOA. 

Throughout this entire process, we have advocated for a coordinated, accountable, accurate, and scientifically based approach by state and federal agencies in their efforts to deal with and control and mitigate possible health risks from NOA.  During the past two years that we’ve been actively engaged in this issue, we have raised several questions about the identification and mitigation of NOA.  We would specifically request that in your efforts at the state level you consider the following points.

First, we believe it is essential that we are able to define the level of health risk from NOA exposure.  We need to have definitive studies in a nonoccupational risk area from NOA that identifies that health risk.  Figures that have been presented by public health indicate that El Dorado County does not have any greater number of pulmonary cases than would be expected for our population base in comparison to other areas in California.  This accentuates that need for an analysis of health-risk data for areas comparable to El Dorado Hills and El Dorado County at large.


Number two:  We also need to have clearly established testing procedures and methods that will provide reproducible results and standards by which those results can be measured.  It’s one thing if we can have tests that, in fact, are reliable, but if we don’t know the standards by which we’re measuring those, then that is of little assistance to us.


Number three:  We need risk information that gives us some perspective on how this risk would compare to other risks in our lives.  We all understand that risk is a part of all of our lives, and we would certainly do anything reasonable to minimize it.  But we also need to keep it in perspective.  You heard earlier today some information relative to risk in an urban setting from air pollution of industrial sites.  So, the question comes:  Do I have a greater risk from air pollution in urban settings or from NOA in the areas where that is, in fact, present?

Our fourth request:  As noted several times, NOA is present in several areas of the state and certainly in other states in the nation, and as such, we need to have state and federal agencies conduct a thorough and thoughtful analysis of other regions, states, and settings to help establish a better perspective on the risks of NOA and the effective mitigation measures that can be implemented.  We believe it’s important to do this prior to the convening of, in fact, an international panel to help us take a look at this issue.  Otherwise, an international panel, as recommended by the U.S. EPA, will only focus on El Dorado Hills data—and, in fact, it becomes a case study—rather than looking at a broad spectrum of how this data works throughout the state.


And finally, we believe that mitigation measures need to be addressed within the context of resources.  No agency, public or private, has caused the existence of NOA within El Dorado County.  The cost for responding to this issue should not be thrust on local agencies that do not have adequate resources to respond to it.  We believe this is a state and national issue.


We take the reports we have received seriously and are taking prudent action to respond.  We care deeply about the health and welfare and safety of all of our students, our staff, and the community at large.  We’re deeply committed to maintaining public health and safety and promoting the quality of life and economic vitality of our community.  We applaud the efforts being demonstrated today, and particularly Senator Ortiz and Senator Cox, whose efforts to broaden this issue and to have a comprehensive and coordinated approach implemented are particularly appreciated.  


We thank you for the opportunity to share with you this information today.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


I have some questions and comments, but I’m going to wait, unless Senator Cox wants to weigh in now.


SENATOR COX:  I don’t.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  I’ll hold my comments or questions until later.  Thank you.  By the way, thanks for being here all day.


DR. BARBER:  No problem.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Sometimes it’s only us that need to be here all day.  We appreciate when others do that.


Are we going to hear from Supervisor Baumann?  Welcome.


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair, Senator Cox.  We certainly do appreciate the opportunity to come before you and share some of the concerns that we have, that I see Senator Ortiz struggling with.  They’re the same concerns that the county has, and we certainly do appreciate your interest in this.


My name is Helen Baumann, and I am the supervisor for the 2nd District in El Dorado County.  I’m here today representing the entire board of supervisors.  My constituents do include families that live within El Dorado Hills.  I’m also a registered nurse.  I practiced intensive care nursing for over twenty years, and I also have served as a member of a school board—Pioneer Union School District.


I would first like to state that the health of our residents is the single most important issue for the board of supervisors.  We have taken, are taking, and will continue to take every opportunity we have to protect the health of the people of our county.  Now we look to you and our fellow agencies, the state and the federal levels, for support in addressing the critical unanswered questions dealing with naturally occurring asbestos.

El Dorado Hills is certainly not the only community in California facing the need to deal with the issue of NOA.  NOA has been identified, and we keep tossing this number around—I do believe it’s 48 other counties in California—in unknown quantities, presenting unknown levels of risk.  No county in our state is doing more than El Dorado County to respond in an effective and responsible way to the occurrence of NOA.  We appreciate the fact that your focus is on El Dorado County because the issue has been highlighted here by the recent activities of the U.S. EPA and ATSDR.  We agree with you that the issue of NOA is deserving of even more attention to further analyze the known facts, to conduct responsible decisions, and to address and be prepared in a coordinated response.


We also appreciate the work that the federal and state government have done to further define the extent to which NOA is present in our community.  We particularly appreciate their suggestions on activities the public can take to help protect against NOA exposure.  This is the type of partnering we welcome as our community joins together to address the issues associated with living with NOA—issues we have in common with, again, at least 48 other counties.


Mr. Morgan and I are here today, along with Dr. Barber and in representing the CSD, to inform the joint committee on what El Dorado County has been doing to address NOA over the years.  It is not a new problem for us.  El Dorado County is a growing community of professionals and families that moved here for its natural beauty and active lifestyle.  Our community is highly educated, well informed, and takes a great deal of pride in our natural environment.


Regional health studies show that El Dorado County has not had a higher incident of lung cancer cases than the surrounding counties, and that the incidence of mesothelioma—a cancer linked with asbestos exposure—is not elevated.  While we are cognizant of the latency period associated with certain asbestos-related diseases, there has been ongoing development in El Dorado Hills for over fifty years.  In addition, as in many other rural counties, the use of unsealed private roads and driveways that may contain asbestos has been a historical practice.


Also, I’d like to point out that within the boundaries of El Dorado Hills, we have not approved a single development since the mid to late ’90s.  There hasn’t been any additional developments approved.  The developments that are going forward now all have vested agreements.  And so, we’re very actively working with those developers who do have their vested agreements to make sure that we are protecting our citizens as best we can.


NOA is a statewide and national issue.  Our efforts will benefit the other 48 counties in our state which must also wrestle with this issue, but we lack the resources to take on the issue alone.  We must rely on support from our federal and our state colleagues and this joint committee.


Our message to the committee is that we encourage and welcome your assistance and support.  We are a strong community, but again, we don’t have the resources that the large urban areas of California have.  We certainly do not have the resources and expertise of the state and federal agencies.  We will continue to work with our federal and state partners towards finding meaningful answers and solutions to this issue, but their assistance and support, and yours, is absolutely crucial.  


Ultimately, we recognize that what the experts know about NOA is significantly outweighed by what they don’t know.  Nevertheless, we in El Dorado County are acting swiftly, decisively, and responsibly, marshalling and focusing all of the resources available to us to protect the health of our residents.

Again, thank you for the opportunity to address you.  


I would now like to introduce Jon Morgan, director of Environmental Management, and he’ll, I’m sure, add quite a bit of detail on exactly what the county is doing, has been doing, and plans to do.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  Let’s hear from Mr. Morgan.


MR. JON MORGAN:  Thank you very much.  I’m Jon Morgan.  I’m the director of Environmental Management and the executive officer of the Air Quality Management District.  I spent the first twenty-four years of my life in Southern California and the last twenty-six in El Dorado County.  My entire professional career has been with El Dorado County.


We take the responsibility of protecting public health, safety, and welfare of our residents very seriously.  Since 1998, and prior to that, the county has been actively enforcing state and county dust and NOA regulations that are among the strictest in the nation—and more to come.  Included in these regulations is the requirement that a California registered geologist knowledgeable about asbestos-containing formations inspects and oversees a project area for the presence of NOA, using appropriate test methods which, as we all know, are evolving.  If NOA is found or if the project is located in areas likely to contain NOA, the project proponent must follow stringent state and county dust control requirements—and again, becoming more stringent—including obtaining county approval for an asbestos mitigation dust control plan that describes how the project proponent will control dust.  

To ensure that any and all projects have contingencies for projects that encounter NOA or serpentine formations not otherwise mapped—because the Department of Conservation did provide us just one spectacular, great map; great work from Dr. Churchill and others at the Department of Conservation, and we really appreciate that map—we’ve prepared an NOA prescriptive standard to which all building permit holders are bound.  So, when you take a building permit out, if it’s a developer or a self-builder, they sign on the dotted line that you shall follow this protocol and/or suffer the consequences thereof.  Substantial penalties can be imposed under state law, up to $50,000 per day, for any developer or proponent who violates these requirements.  

The county has aggressively enforced these requirements.  We do lack the resources, as many people have observed; so do the other umbrella and parent agencies of our department.  We are the first county that’s been in the middle of enforcing the two new asbestos ATCM’s Section 93105 and Section 93106 of Title 17, and we recently just entered into a stipulated judgment with a local quarry owner who was not using proper dust control measures.  I’ve spent about half my life in the last six months in court . . . 

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is this the quarry that Ms. Johnson lives next to, that there’s an order?


MR. MORGAN:  Yes, Senator.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And it’s your assertion that you are indeed enforcing it?


MR. MORGAN:  Well, there’s multiple dynamics going on with that situation because Sierra Rock, the property owner, and the neighbor are in litigation themselves, and then we have our own enforcement issues.  We’ve had a lot of litigation filed against us for our ability to enforce 93105 and 93106, but after the last two years of litigation, we have come to a settlement for $350,000 in civil penalties against Sierra Rock, and more to come.  In doing that enforcement action, we worked as a partner with the California Department of Justice and the CARB Enforcement Section.  So, we did do our work with them in partnership and did our inspections and our inspection warrants as a partnership, along with law enforcement, because it incrementally got very challenging.

With feedback from our federal and state partners’ regional air district CAPCOA—CAPCOA is very important to us because they are our association of the 35 air districts.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m very familiar with CAPCOA these days, on another measure I’m carrying.


MR. MORGAN:  Larry and I are very active in that group; especially Larry.  The county’s in the process of further strengthening our local dust control regulations which will be brought forth before our governing body within the next, approximately, 45 days.  We’re working with fed EPA, the Air Division, and      other . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Will you repeat what the relevance is of CAPCOA to your situation in El Dorado?


MR. MORGAN:  Over the past couple of years, we recognized, like it or not, that El Dorado County has been the starting ground for NOA enforcement and issues, and CAPCOA has agreed through the various air pollution control officers to help spearhead consistency among the 35 air districts.  It’s an important feature that obviously increasingly became more important.  So, again, we’ll be bringing back before our governing bodies—Helen and the other four board members of the air district—our new proposed dust control rules.  We do believe they will be the most stringent in the state; probably to some people’s dislike as overregulation, but I think in light of this public focus, I think the public expects it and demands it.

With the map that the Department of Conservation/California Geologic Survey produced, we intend to work with our county surveyor and implement a GIS system that people can access visually through satellite mapping and so forth where the asbestos or serpentine deposits are so there’ll be no longer any doubt where things are and where they aren’t.


In July 2004, the board of supervisors adopted a general plan which has subsequently been ratified by the El Dorado County voters through Measure B.  Contained in the general plan is a section devoted to the adoption and enforcement of regulations that protect against geological hazards, including NOA.  The new air quality CEQA guidelines are an integral part of our new general plan.

We, in February of 2002, working with our affiliate air district—working with the Yolo-Solano Air Quality Management District, the Sacramento District, the Feather River Air District—we all jointly prepared CEQA guidelines for all air quality thresholds, not just dust.  So, we’ve got a very aggressive . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’ve got a lot of information; it’s very general, so I want to not lose it.  Can you tell me what in the general plan is on point regarding NOA mitigation?  Is there something specific in there, or are you incorporating by reference the ATCM standards?


MR. MORGAN:  All of the above.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  As to the general plan, what does your general plan say regarding addressing NOA?


MR. MORGAN:  We have our dust control and NOA ordinance, and we prospectively reflect that in the general plan document and any changes or changes by state or federal government that may evolve.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, dust control is the one mitigation measure for development or construction?


MR. MORGAN:  It’s one of a whole bunch.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the whole bunch, are they also specified in the general plan?


MR. MORGAN:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you have a copy of those mitigation measures specifically?


MR. MORGAN:  As reflected for NOA in the general plan?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Correct.


MR. MORGAN:  Well, I can provide them but not right this second.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Could you recite them to the committee?  I want to get a tangible, specific—What is the county doing in new development in those situations?—so I get a handle of how that relates to the recommendations by the ATCM and the Folsom mitigation measures.  I mean, we have a whole slew of general recommendations, and I want to know specifically how you’re implementing it in El Dorado County.

MR. MORGAN:  Well, we’re reflecting the existence of our ordinance and, again, any prospective changes that may occur at the state or federal level.  So, that is the focus of the geological . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, tell me what your ordinance says.


MR. MORGAN:  Our current ordinance has standards and recommendations for preventive measures.  The ordinance states that you shall not disturb NOA formations at all costs, unless you absolutely have to.  If you have to and/or you run into a formation by accident or by act of God, that you immediately hire a California geologist to help oversee the project thoroughly.  That also includes air quality monitoring, which are the standards that we have been seeking for a long time that are very important, to figure out what triggers a public health dividing line or controversy.  Those are all reflected in the general plan.  So, the general plan statements are more global in terms of geological hazards from earthquakes and so forth, but we’ve inserted a whole host—and I can’t recite them right at this moment—but five or six conditions of the NOA.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  It would be helpful to give specifics.  That’s the purpose of the committee hearing.  So, maybe we can have you forward. . . . I mean, do we have a copy of those provisions?


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  Senator, I haven’t had an opportunity to look at all of the information that you’ve accumulated, but it’s my understanding that it is within the information.  Again, I haven’t had an opportunity to look through all of that.


We do have within the general plan, which was adopted in July of 2004 . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is it under the El Dorado County tab?  And where under El Dorado County?  Is it the Prescriptive Standard — Fugitive Dust Prevention and Control and Contingent Asbestos . . .?  


UNIDENTIFIED:  Mm hmm.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s Section 2:  Asbestos Hazard Dust Mitigation?


This says “reports.”  Is this the ordinance?  I just want to make sure that these are indeed in your general plan.


MR. MORGAN:  Well, there’s a lot of sections that are tabbed in El Dorado County.  You’ll see our Real Estate Transfer Disclosure Statement.  That’s adopted by ordinance and a burden of all property owners.  You’ll see the Prescriptive Standard as it exists today, or as promulgated in April 2000.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, the disclosure in the real estate transfer; like there may be asbestos.

MR. MORGAN:  Yes.  We require that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s required by the state.  Those statutory requirements are not local.  Everybody has to do that.


Prescriptive Standard — Fugitive Dust Prevention and Control and Contingent Asbestos Hazard Dust Mitigation Plan, El Dorado County, et cetera.   “The following is the Prescriptive Standard,” et cetera, and plan applicable to, et cetera, “El Dorado Building Permit for dwelling . . .”


Is this, in fact, part of the general plan ordinance?


MR. MORGAN:  These are a part of the insertions into the general plan, narrative in text.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  We have an ordinance here:  The Naturally Occurring Asbestos and Dust Protection Ordinance, Chapter 8.44, El Dorado County Ordinance, effective June 12th of ’03, which . . . 

MR. MORGAN:  Was like the fourth revision.  So, that’s the most current.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m just trying to get a sense of. . . . Supervisor Baumann mentioned that most of the development had been done by the late ’90s.


MR. MORGAN:  I think she said approved.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Approved.


MR. MORGAN:  They’re partial splits.  The actual subdivisions were . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And we know how long it goes from approval to actual development.


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  El Dorado County has not had land use authority since 1998.  So, there have been no additional subdivisions approved.


SENATOR COX:  Because they didn’t have a general plan.


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  When our general plan was issued.  What we have done, we’ve not only made sure in the adoption of the 2004 general plan that the mitigation measures and how we would proceed with those measures were included in the general plan—and again, that’s a general text within the plan—but it calls out what developments have to do to mitigate in known asbestos areas or to mitigate if they should subsequently come across asbestos.  We don’t simply rely on the maps.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask a question because I just want to get a sense of how much development was approved prior to the adoption of this and actually developed.  So, of the percentage of development over the last fifteen years—it’s fair to say ten to fifteen years there’s a good percentage of growth—were all of those approved and mostly developed prior to the adoption of this ordinance?


MR. MORGAN:  The subdivision maps were approved in the mid-’80s.  And the activity as you go up Highway 50, crossing the county line, you’ll see a whole lot of brown houses and so forth?  Those were pre-split parcels, and they’re the ones that are complying or . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How much of El Dorado Hills was developed and built prior to 2004?


MR. MORGAN:  We’ve been at a pace, based on the statistics I’m aware of, of about 2,500 building permits a year.  So, about 2 percent growth a year.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Again, how much of El Dorado Hills was developed—approved and developed—prior to this ordinance being adopted?  Seventy percent of what is in El Dorado Hills?


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  Well, we began adopting the ordinances in 2001, right after I was seated on the board.  We have still adhered to those ordinances.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  From 2001, coming forward.


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  From when they were adopted.  Now, the development, when you question the development, the development . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  When was the ground torn up to build houses in El Dorado Hills, the bulk of it?


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  It began in 1960, around the 1960s.


MR. MORGAN:  It was formed as a garbage district in 1962.  That’s why the CSD was created, and it evolved into . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All I want to know is:  How much of El Dorado Hills was actually built or in the process of being built prior to the latest version of the ordinance?  And even 2001, I think.  The window time between 2001 and 2004, when these asbestos mitigation measures had been put in place and built into your local ordinance and your practices, there was a good number of homes that were built prior to that.  Is that fair to say?


MR. MORGAN:  Fair to say.  The first version of the ordinance, of the NOA ordinance, was passed in April of 1998.  So, over that past eight years, I’ll probably guess 15,000 housing units, more or less.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, it’s fair to say, whether there was a risk or not—and we’re going to debate whether or not there’s an adequate way of measuring risk and whether or not these modelings are even appropriate—but it’s fair to say the bulk of development in El Dorado Hills occurred prior to this ordinance being adopted and revised and strengthened.


MR. MORGAN:  At least the land splits.  The subdivision map acts, yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, the splits, the construction, the roads that go in there to create roads to get to them, and the infrastructure all occurred at a time when we didn’t have a lot of information, and may not.  Whether there’s a risk or not, we didn’t have these current standards in place that you’ve now adopted in your general plan to mitigate.


MR. MORGAN:  Fair enough.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes.  I think that’s important, and I think there’s a legitimate argument that this community has been built out over many decades—early development in the foothills—and there’ve been people living there and we’ve had exposure.  The question is the pace of it and the disruption.  So, I think that’s important.  And I think the ordinance has gone through various levels of increasing protective elements between 2001 and 2004.

MR. MORGAN:  Well, most of my job is enforcement, so we’ve encountered, as we’ve implemented and enforced the ordinance, voids and holes and ways for people to go around them, so we plugged those holes pretty well.  And so, our next move and last move is our big fugitive dust provision.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  I interrupted you.  Did you complete your presentation?  I want to go into questions, but I want to make sure you had a chance to finish.


MR. MORGAN:  I’m also there, but I just want to take on a couple of key issues.  We are establishing an NOA hotline, which is 888-FYI-4NOA.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We have a hotline?


MR. MORGAN:  Mm hmm.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, go ahead.


MR. MORGAN:  Which is evolving, and we intend to have it both be public education and enforcement and general dust complaints.  So, people will press 1 if you have a complaint, press 2 for this, press 4 if you have an emergency.  It tries to cover all the possibilities.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It is in place now?


MR. MORGAN:  It’s online, but we’re in the middle of creating the narrative and doing the prompts and so forth and then making sure—and this is the part I want to finish with.  We’ve recognized that there’s a high prevalence of public awareness, and we want to take advantage of the fact that we have a force of county inspectors—the ag inspectors, the building inspectors, the code enforcement inspectors, the health inspectors, which is my team, our solid waste technicians who pick up litter, the human and social services field staff; anybody who goes out in the field—and we’re hoping to try to embrace our local agencies, like EID, to help shepherd and help be our eyes and ears for people that may be observed or at least accused of not following dust control practices.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you’re kind of cross-training other staff to be responsive.


MR. MORGAN:  They’re out in the field anyway, so we’re going to give them their OSHA training.  We’re going to give them their eyes and ears training to a limited extent, within the ability of them already being out there, because they already have primary functions which aren’t fugitive dust.  But they’ll be extra eyes and ears, and then, they’ll have phone numbers to call us and take it to whatever level we need to take it to.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Did you want to add other . . .?


MR. MORGAN:  No, that was my speech.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Appreciate that.  I have a few questions of all the witnesses, but let me allow Senator Cox to open.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, let me just say, I think we ought to be certainly encouraged that as you’ve heard the testimony today, or at least we’ve heard the testimony today, that it appears that specifically the school district as well as El Dorado County have attempted to be proactive in this particular issue, as they found that they’ve had variances.  It looks to me like they tried to plug the holes, and I think that’s what local government’s supposed to do.  It looks to me like that’s what they’re doing.  Is it enough?  Maybe they need to do more, but that develops as we go along.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate that.  Let me just sort through a lot of notes in a very long day, and let me just thank you for coming and providing some insight as to what the county is doing—certainly Mr. Morgan’s shop—and what the county office of education is doing.  And Supervisor Baumman, I appreciate you being here.


There were a couple of things that were shared here, and I want to ask whether we can come to some agreement on some issues.  I know Dr. Barber mentioned, and Supervisor Baumann also illustrated. . . . well, there are 49 counties that actually have potential exposure levels.  I think your comments were, no other county office of education has had to pay one point—what million?


DR. BARBER:  One point six million.  It was our school district, the El Dorado Union High School District.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  To mitigate.


DR. BARBER:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And I think Supervisor Baumman’s concerns were that the NOA exposure is occurring in other communities.  Can I at least ask you to consider the presentation by Department of Conservation that illustrated the unique nature of your county with the development and the disruption?  I mean, other counties may indeed have veins running through of these types of asbestos, but they’re not seeing disruption of that.  Therefore, when it’s there and left alone, that doesn’t cause as much alarm.  Can you at least acknowledge that maybe your school district is the school district that is first faced with this new development phase in areas in which exposure occurs; therefore, it is indeed different?

Let me also ask:  Would you rather the county had not spent the one point whatever million?  I mean, do you think it was inappropriate or unnecessary to spend that?


DR. BARBER:  Let me respond to your first statement with respect to the convergence of construction and the presence of NOA.  We’ve had communication with our builders exchange and BIA.  The building permits that are pulled within El Dorado County, and particularly within El Dorado Hills, in contrast to other communities, even those close by us in other foothill counties, whether you look at Placer County, whether you look at the Folsom area, whether you look at Calaveras, by no means are we unique in having that convergence.  Or, if you look at the development that’s occurring in the Riverside and San Bernardino areas that also have existence of NOA.


We, first of all, contest the assertion that we are unique in having the convergence of construction happening and NOA being present.  There are many other communities throughout California that would meet that criteria, in our opinion.  All you have to do is look at building permits being pulled to be able to attest to that.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


DR. BARBER:  With respect to your second question, there’s nothing that is more important than the health and safety of our students and our staff, and so, obviously, we did move ahead in terms of when we received the requirement essentially and the information from U.S. EPA to spend the $1.6 million.  We should also acknowledge that EPA came in and actually spent an additional almost million dollars, and we’re very appreciative that it did not seek reimbursement from us in terms of that additional expenditure.  

But the questions do still sit there as to whether or not even the tests that were relied upon are accurate; in fact, indicated they relied on soil tests.  Now we have data that says, in fact, soil tests are inconsistent; they are not reliable.  If you look at the information from the most recent kinds of testing that was done activity-based, you find above the soil that was tested in areas where a nondetect ___________ was on the soil a high level or exposure level being shown in terms of the air above it.


So, we are clear that naturally occurring asbestos doesn’t only occur on school sites or public sites in El Dorado Hills.  This is an issue that needs to be dealt with throughout the entire community.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me just say that I appreciate you saying that because you’re saying if it’s necessary on school sites and not to be necessary as well where other exposure is occurring with day-to-day activities—the episodic exposure that we spent a bit of time.


DR. BARBER:  Absolutely, but there clearly are questions.  If you look at some of the test results that came in the most recent U.S. EPA and you find results above a basketball court—which has, clearly, pavement on the outside—and you find air above a soccer field next door and you find the same air test that indicates the same level of exposure, then does that, in fact, indicate to you that we should be paving over everything?  Because it didn’t make any difference in terms of the air above that basketball court.


So, there are just a number of questions that we believe need to be responded to.  And clearly, we, as you, are stewards of taxpayers’ money, and we need to ensure that, in fact, it’s effective mitigation, that it is responding to an actual issue, before we spend millions of dollars.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think we’ve acknowledged there’s a gap between risk assessment and risk management, but I think it’s difficult for me to hear you say that the type of testing they did with masks, imitating at a child’s level riding a bike, playing in a soccer field, that that data about the level of exposure of where a child might be—on a trail—that we shouldn’t rely on that and err on the side of protecting children particularly.


DR. BARBER:  If that’s the impression I’ve given you, that’s in error.  We’re not saying that we shouldn’t, in fact, use that data, but we would say that it is not a complete set of data.  There was need to have further information.  We have no cancer risk that’s been identified in El Dorado Hills.  I’ve lived there for twenty-seven years.  So, you have to acknowledge that there are questions with respect to the health risks and whether or not that, in fact, has been shown in this kind of a setting.  Clearly, as you heard testimony before, we’re not a Libby, Montana.


Secondly, we have had serious questions regarding the reproducibility of test results.  As we’ve seen tests in terms of soil samples that have been given previously and then actually retested split samples from the same area, we’ve come up with very different results from U.S. EPA-approved labs.


Thirdly, if you look at the results from those recent reports, just questions come to mind as to how we’re, in fact, going to work with that, and finally in terms of the resources as we deal with that.  It’s not to say that we won’t spend whatever we need to spend to ensure the safety, but we will need partners.  We will need assistance in terms of being able to do that.  Schools do not have an unlimited amount of resources to spend $3 million on every site without some assistance.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate that, and it is a challenge.  But let me just remind you, urban school districts that have no resources—and some would argue less resources than your school district where you’re in a growth phase—have an obligation to comply, and they’re taking on the burden as well.  So, I don’t know that we see the likelihood, and would welcome Senator Cox joining me in creating a fund and new revenues to help you.  So, we’ll put you to the challenge there.  I’m not sure how you feel about what’s happening on the federal level.  I mean, that appears to be problematic for your community.  It appears to not allow your community to draw down on what is being proposed in Congress.

DR. BARBER:  Well, actually, our most recent conversations with Senator Feinstein’s office . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  On the amendment.


DR. BARBER:  She has added language to specifically address naturally occurring asbestos and specifically to address the issues within El Dorado County.  As you know, El Dorado County schools are very high achieving.  We have been very successful.  We have an incredible track record in terms of how our students do.  Part of our issue would be is if all schools throughout California are going to be treated equally in this regard and they’re all going to be required, if they, in fact, are in naturally occurring asbestos areas, to do the same kind of mitigation that our schools would be required to do.  Because, if you look at DTSC’s maps, you can see a large number of schools throughout California that are clearly in naturally occurring asbestos areas; and yet, we’re not aware of any other school that’s being faced with the same kind of testing, the results, or the potential on mitigation.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, it’s interesting, because I haven’t seen the overlay of DTSC’s maps with schools on NOA.  I have seen and I’m familiar with other school districts with exposures.  I’m having a little bit of debate with CAPCOA regarding exposure to emissions through an oil drill at a high school, and they’re subject to mitigation and paying for it, as well as schools that have lead.  I mean, schools that have all of these other naturally and not naturally occurring exposures, they’re footing the bill.  It may not be NOA, but they’re paying a lot of money to comply.


You may be one of the few NOA schools—I haven’t seen the DTSC overlay.  I would go back to find out whether these are new-growth areas that have seen student population growth at the rate that we’re seeing in this region.  So, that may be a fair criticism of you being treated differently on NOA.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair?  I do think it’s important that we treat all of the affected areas the same.  It is a matter of fairness.  The document that your staff very capably put together points out, for example, that in Santa Clara County, they took some 98 samples—the ARB, by the way.  Asbestos ambient monitoring showed chances per million at 85 chances per million.  If you take a look at Monterey County, 17 chances per million.  Oak Ridge High School, 5 per million.  And at the same time we’ve asked them to spend a million—one or two or three; whatever the number is—and yet, we have similar situations in other areas that don’t seem to be doing the same.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, let me just suggest that 98 versus 224—excuse me, the total potential cancer risk levels of El Dorado and Oak Ridge per million—is this ambient?


SENATOR COX:  This is asbestos ambient monitoring from 1998 to 2003.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, that’s a legitimate question, but I don’t know that ambient. . . . I mean, ambient is legitimate.  Maybe you can share with me what the air district is doing in that region.  And then there’s the question of whether or not the episodic exposure was more compelling on the U.S. EPA coming in and calling for mitigation measures that were far more expensive and whether we’ve seen data in Santa Clara on episodic exposure.


DR. BARBER:  But with all due respect, that is part of the question:  Why hasn’t activity-based testing been done in Santa Clara County, in Monterey County, and Placer and Nevada Counties, all of which have higher readings?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think Placer and Amador and Calaveras are the next wave.  Let’s be very clear.  I suspect that given the nature of the geology and the nature of the community—informed—you know, people who have invested quite a bit in really wonderful communities.  I mean, that may speak to the activism.  Unfortunately, those wonderful parents who’ve chosen to live there also are very active and maybe ________.  


Can you give me a sense of what’s going on in Santa Clara?


MR. GREENE:  Well, I would say across the state in the other air districts, we have a dearth of methods to look at the ambient air.  The ATCM talks about soil test, and that’s what we use and that’s what we use when we apply that.  But we would like a valid test method to use for the air; something that we could use across the state and would be reasonably transferable and doable.  And we would also like to have better risk numbers so we would know that when we get to a certain level there, if there’s a problem below that, it’s okay.  There’s a lot of work that needs to be done.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  But what is unique about Santa Clara?  If Santa Clara County has a potential cancer risk, was is their source of NOA?


MR. GREENE:  I believe that Santa Clara has naturally occurring asbestos, and that’s the foothills . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is it because they’re totally developed?


MR. GREENE:  No.  I think that area down there has, over time, had some pretty high levels of asbestos in the foothills area.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But are they developing where those veins are?


MR. GREENE:  I know in Livermore, some of the areas down along 101, that there are some very high levels—Kings County and such—that’s been known over time.  I can’t say where the development is going on there, but I think development’s going on across California in a lot of different places.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m just curious to see why Santa Clara?—if, in fact, the location of where the NOA is located, whether or not it’s in areas that they’re not developing and therefore there’s no action.  That’d be my question.  I mean, exposure does not equate to risk of cancer until you disrupt and make it viable.  That may be the distinction, and I don’t want to misstate that.  I don’t know.  I’m hoping I can get some insight from others.  The very presence of it doesn’t make it equally treatable, like in your region.  I think the question is whether you disrupt it; where the veins are.  That may be the issue and may be the disconnect.  The overlay maps may not look like what they do in this region.


DR. BARBER:  Absolutely, but the page that you’re referring to, and that Senator Cox indicated, are from samples collected from air.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Ambient air.


DR. BARBER:  So, that’s clearly indicating it is in the air.  This isn’t just in terms of where does it reside and sit within a rock formation?  This is in terms that it is in the air and is in over a period of time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And it may be coupled with industrial.  I don’t know.  It’s hard to say, given the nature of that growth over there and traffic patterns and brakes.

SENATOR COX:  I only raised the issue, Madam Chair, to be certain that we at least consider the aspect of being certain that what we do, we have to be fair to all of those that are affected.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s fair.  I’m sorry—Supervisor Baumann, you wanted to weigh in?


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  No, I was just trying to weigh in on some of the comments Dr. Barber was making.  

I think it’s important for you to hear the counties say how serious we take this issue; and we do take it very, very seriously, and we have for a number of years, ever since the science began to unfold.  It’s continually unfolding, and El Dorado County has been on the forefront and has been way ahead of any other county in the state, and probably in the country, on how we’ve been approaching the issue of NOA.  

Three years ago, John Morgan, Supervisor Dupray, and I traveled to Libby, Montana and spent three days there in that environment, understanding exactly the issues.  I alone spent an entire day with Dr. Black in understanding, again, some of the issues they were facing in Libby, Montana.  Taking that information—and again, as the science unfolds—we don’t know, and we’re struggling with the exact same questions that you have, Senator.  The exact same questions.  

But I have a county where we do have development that is going forward.  We’re not some rapid, out-of-control growth area.  We are not.  Seventy-five percent of our available land is in timber.  We have other very aggressive agricultural districts.  And so, where we’re developing and where you see it, it is concentrated in a very visible area.  And we do know that we have issues of NOA in that area, and we are addressing those.  We have been.  We are.  We are keeping as much ahead of the issue as we can.  We work in cooperation very well with our own regulatory agencies, and we are working very well with the federal agencies.  Supervisor Dupray and I sit on a joint JPA with Folsom, and Folsom is turning to El Dorado County for guidance on how to handle the issue.  And you don’t know; it’s not a blanket—and obviously, you do know that, Senator—it’s not a blanket covering our entire county.  There are areas where we need to be careful.  We don’t just assume because it’s mapped somewhere that NOA may be present there.  We have geologists on site whenever that issue arises, and our development community has really been put to task to try to stay ahead of this game.  

Again, we take it absolutely seriously, and we are very, very eager to have the science catch up with some of the issues.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  On that point, and I think it’s important:  Have you ever issued a fine?  

SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  Yes.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I mean, what have you done when, in fact, there’s been a violation of what you now have in place?  Have you issued fines/penalties?  Because I want to reconcile that with the concern.  I mean, you heard the residents and the constituents here.  

SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  Absolutely.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  They felt like there wasn’t enough.  I think it’s fair to say that they were pointing the finger at the county, particularly on Ms. Johnson’s lack of enforcement.  It goes to the question:  How many enforcement officers do you have specifically on the air quality enforcement measures?

MR. MORGAN:  We have a total of nine district peer staff.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How many of them are enforcement?


MR. MORGAN:  Our enforcement, we have between three and four, depending on their task, and we have two engineers who all they do is source permitting.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, somebody called and said, They’re cutting, they’re grading, they’re not hosing down.  They’re not complying with all the ordinances you put in place.  They call you and you have two enforcement officers to get out there—one of two—to determine whether, in fact, they’re complying with the ordinance?

MR. MORGAN:  We could always do it better.  We have two on-call people on at any one time.  They are HAZMAT specialists; they do emergency response.  So, they do the potpourri of complaints which come in at off-hours.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, what’s the average turnaround time from complaint to an enforcement officer going out to observe and enforce?


MR. MORGAN:  Well, for example, during the no-burn season, which is about a month from now . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No—specifically on grading for development.


MR. MORGAN: 
We’re working in partnership with our local Department of Transportation because they have a slew of inspectors and they call in and say, We need an inspection here because there’s a dust slug.  Do we have enough people?  No.  But we’re trying to reinvent ourselves to be . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, what’s the average turnaround time from a call of a complaint to somebody going out, whether it’s one of your cross-trained other employees?


MR. MORGAN:  It could be minutes to hours.  It’s not the following week because, with technology, everybody has a cell phone and we’re always in the field.  We have our health inspectors who are in the field.  If we get a really aggressive complaint, not just a—Can you check one of these days?—we respond accordingly.  We fine anywhere from $350,000 to. . . . one developer we fined $10,000 for blasting and not doing any dust control.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  How many fines have you imposed and what’s the total?


MR. MORGAN:  We had 77 complaints that we tallied last year.  We probably fined 10 percent of them.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What’s the range of the fines and penalties?


MR. MORGAN:  On a no-burn day, it’s $500 automatically.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Specifically on NOA development/construction.


MR. MORGAN:  For dust it ranges $1,000.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How many of those have you actually imposed?


MR. MORGAN:  A dozen.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, about $12,000?


MR. MORGAN:  Mm hmm.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  


MR. MORGAN:  Obviously, there’s bigger expectations for us to be more enforcement-oriented, and we’re working with . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And are you able to put that money back into the program to hire more enforcement officers, or does it go in the general fund?


MR. MORGAN:  No.  No, our air district is purely the air district.  What we do, we roll our monies back into the air district.  We’re also working with the Environmental Crimes Task Force of the California DA’s office, who has been very aggressive in our county from a whole host of fronts that are non-NOA, and  they’re . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask you on NOA.  I want to hear what NOA enforcement actions are.


MR. MORGAN:  I just want to stress that we’re evolving to become better and better at our enforcement because we could be better at it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I just think that if you’re understaffed, which I get—I mean, these are expensive positions and you’re cross-training, which makes a lot of sense.  I’m not going to criticize that because I think that should be the direction that you do; you cross-train.  I just think it seems like if, in fact, there’s an opportunity here to aggressively assure and provide a confidence level to the constituents, there might be a way to better adjust resources.  Twelve thousand dollars in twelve instances appears to be relatively minor when you look at the cost-benefit analysis of a developer or a grader.  I mean, there ought to be higher levels of penalties assessed.  In the whole spectrum of violations, we should err in the absence of clear-cut science on the side of enhancing the enforcement activities.

MR. MORGAN:  Fair enough.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you’re sitting next to your supervisor, so I know you’re limited in what you can say.


MR. MORGAN:  Can I bring one really important scientific issue up?  There are 82 PM2.5 mass monitors . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you have a cap on your penalties, not to exceed $22,500?  If you have a multimillion development or a home . . . 


MR. MORGAN:  It’s per day.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  For each violation.


MR. MORGAN:  Yes.  Air districts can be very aggressive and it’s per day.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How does that mirror your penalty caps in Folsom?

MR. GREENE:  We’re into the same state measures that they would be, looking at the fines.  You start at $1,000 a day.  You can go to $10,000 to $25,000 to $50,000, and that depends on intent, whether people are criminal.  There’s a whole range.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, wait a minute.  Let me make sure I understand.  Are they precluded from civil and criminal penalty under the exception under the law that I’m trying to change?  [Inaudible answer.]  Okay.


MR. GREENE:  We’re not a DA, but we offer many cases to the DA.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me give you greater tools.  I’ve got a bill that I think there’s an opportunity for you to negotiate a civil settlement if they’re huge violations, but you ought not to be precluded when it rises to the level of deliberate, intentional criminal violation of environmental laws to also go after them criminally.  CAPCOA has no comment, right?


MR. GREENE:  We think we’ve offered a floor for that.  We’re working on that.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Sorry to deviate.


SENATOR COX:  When is that bill coming up?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, it’s already missed you.  Don’t go away.


SENATOR COX:  I want to be sure to be there.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m sure you will be.  I think you may have already weighed.  He already voted against it.  Okay, well.

SENATOR COX:  Be a developer and go to jail.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, no, no, no.  This is actually air exposures—people who violate exposure.  It’s not a developer.


Okay, with that, closing comments from anyone?  I have a lot of questions, but it’s been a long day.


SUPERVISOR BAUMANN:  Senator Ortiz, I would truly appreciate hearing in whatever format you have what your questions are.  Again, I want to stress the point that El Dorado County has been very aggressive, and we are even being more aggressive in taking the issue very seriously and moving forward with different policies and ideas.  And we do turn to the community and we do listen to what they say, and I certainly do appreciate their diligence in standing behind this.


One of the ideas that did come from this—and I don’t want to downplay it; it is a very important concept that we’re just now starting to move out, and it is utilizing other agencies within the county to help us monitor dust.  We already have an agreement from our irrigation district, which is a separate entity from us.  I know the schools have agreed to engage.  The county has agreed to forward the training on that issue to make sure those individuals have the training.  We’re working with our planning department, our building department, DOT.  I sat on one of the sites where I was receiving complaints from to see exactly what the county was doing and the water trucks that are available.  


So, we are taking the public’s comments very seriously, and we certainly do appreciate your efforts.  I certainly hope that we have an opportunity to address all of those questions.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I look forward to that.  We’ll see where the legislation goes.  We reiterate our offer to work with you, and certainly, the recommendation to include the air district representation is essential.  I’m sure that we’ll have ongoing discussions.  We’ll forward the questions rather than raise them in public.  So, I appreciate your time, and I’m committed in the time that I have left to extend that opportunity.


We do have public comment, but thank you all.  We have Bonnie Holmes-Gen from the American Lung Association and any others who want to come forward.

Go ahead, Bonnie.  You know the drill.


MS. BONNIE HOLMES-GEN:  Thank you so much, and thank you for your patience.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Oh well.  I have the fun job of being the chair of the committee.  I think this is the committee in which Senator Cox has stayed throughout all of these long hours.


Welcome.


I know the Lung Association signed up, but we’ll go ahead and start with you.


MS. VICKIE SUMMERS:  I wasn’t going to talk, but since I’ve sat here the whole day . . .

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I saw you taking notes.


MS. SUMMERS:  I’m Vickie Summers from El Dorado Hills, and my girlfriend, Kathy, and I came, and we’ve been going to every single meeting for the last few years.  And we’ve been on the Internet for about, I don’t know, hundreds of hours, so we know that in 1986, they started enacting legislation in Fairfax, Virginia to water down and use all sorts of dust mitigation there.  We noticed that’s in the packets.  We thought that was good.  We didn’t know why our county hadn’t been doing that since they were aware that naturally occurring asbestos was happening for so long.


I’ve talked with practically everybody—ATSDR, U.S. EPA . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How long have you lived there?


MS. SUMMERS:  Twelve years.  I have a child at Oak Ridge and a child at Jackson.  So, not only have they been supposedly exposed, but I also had 268 homes put behind me in the year 2000, and the dust was so bad that my husband and I had to use shovels to get it off my pool cover.  I have one of those built-in pool covers, and it was so bad that we had to use shovels.  I continually phoned John Morgan and the whole office, and they would refer me to the Department of Transportation.  I actually went out there with boots and sat on the bulldozer and told those guys that they had to water it down.  At the time, I really didn’t know anything about asbestos.  Quite honestly, I didn’t know; I just thought it was just dust.  And so, I know that there are some enforcement issues.


I’m one of the ones who, at the last meeting on Friday night, came up with    T-shirts that said, “See Dust?” and I had the 800 number.  Well, when I phoned the Air Resource Board and I talked to Marcella McTaggart, she wasn’t even aware that there was a state hotline for violations.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think this is a county hotline that they’re . . . 


MS. SUMMERS:  No.  I’m talking about the state has a hotline, but the county was not aware that they even had a hotline.  So, we printed those on shirts just for fun and wore those to the meeting.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Have you tested that state hotline?


MS. SUMMERS:  Yes, I did.  It’s an answering machine.  I haven’t seen any violations.  Actually, I have seen some improvement in the county, and I’m actually thrilled to death.  They’re watering down the baseball diamonds.  They’re watering down all sorts of areas that I’ve never seen before.  So, I have seen some improvements.


I’ve talked all over the world to doctors, and some of them I couldn’t understand because I didn’t speak different languages.  But, in New York, there’s Dr. Jeffery Abraham, and of course, Bruce Case from McGill University.  Both of those men did autopsies on local residents’ dogs.  And this is just going through the Internet and findings things out.  They had horrible, horrible high levels of tremolite asbestos in these dogs’ lungs, and they were residential dogs.

SENATOR COX:  In New York City.


MS. SUMMERS:  Yes, in El Dorado Hills.


SENATOR COX:  No.  Where were the dogs from?


MS. SUMMERS:  From El Dorado Hills.  They were donated, and they did these lung burden studies on them, and they found these high levels.  Well, that concerned me because I’m a mom, you know.  My little one has been there since he was born.  I mean, we sat on the soccer fields.  And so, we’re here because we’re concerned.  We’re just concerned moms.  We don’t have any political agenda or anything like that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, tell me what you think has been helpful today or that you’d like to see done further.


MS. SUMMERS:  Okay, here’s what I want.  I want lung burden studies done.  If they can do them on dogs, I want them to do it on more dogs.  I want those euthanized dogs that they have in county pounds . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Rachel?  I want my staff here so we can have her take down your recommendations because I can’t read my own handwriting.


So, there’s a recommendation . . . 


MS. SUMMERS:  Again, this is just from a mom’s point of view.  I’m not an expert in the field.  I’ve only been doing reading for a month-and-a-half, okay?  Twenty-four seven.  I don’t sleep much anymore because I’m worried.  But I’m worried about other risks in California, too, so I’m trying to weigh the risks.  And I don’t want to go to another county because they’ll probably have it too.  But one of the things that I’m concerned about is that we need to be doing some type of studies on lung burden analysis to see how much tremolite asbestos versus the chrysotile, which is in many of the other counties.  I think El Dorado Hills is semi-unique; although, I really don’t know because I’ve been in the Internet and I can’t find out what other counties have tremolite asbestos.  I know it’s found in ultramafic rock,  but I really don’t know.  Again, I’m just an English teacher/mom.


But anyway, so lung burden analysis studies, I think, if they took autopsied dogs and we started looking at the their lungs.


Second, I would hope that we would do lung burden analysis on cadavers; people who’ve been long-term residents there who have died; that they would donate their science.  In fact, I’m a biker and so is Kathy.  We’re on the Bodacious Biking Babe team, and I have said—and I wrote this in a will.  My father’s an attorney.  I said, If I die on a bike ride, I want my lungs autopsied, because I’ve lived there for twelve years with lots of dust.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You guys were on the ALA—the Lung Association ride.  Were you at the three-day ride?

MS. SUMMERS:  Yes, and you can join our team.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I was there last year, and that’s why I’m going to ask them:  Is this why we changed it this year?  It’s now in Donner/Tahoe.  But yes, you guys won.  I was there.  I did the three-day ride.

MS. SUMMERS:  So, not only human cadavers.  I’d like long-term residents, if they’re having any type of lung biopsies due to the fact that maybe they have some type of lung cancer or something like that.  We can test those.


I want some answers.  I know the EPA has done a great job, but you know what?  I think they were being conservative, which they had to be.  They were basing it on chrysotile asbestos—the 1 in 10,000.  I need to know because my child was a sport athlete there at Oak Ridge.  I want to know:  Is it 1 in 10,000, or are we going to use the Bierman and Crump model for tremolite asbestos?  I want to know what that is.  Is that going to change the levels to 1 in 100?  I’m concerned about this, and I know, obviously, Feinstein is too if they’re going to set aside $40 million just for El Dorado County alone.  I want it mapped.  I want to know answers, and I want it quick because I have to decide:  Am I going to move?  Where am I going to move to?  And this is bothering me a lot.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Any other recommendations?  

MS. SUMMERS:  If Kathy Hurd . . . [inaudible].


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.  Welcome.

MS. KATHY HURD:  Thank you.  My name’s Kathy Hurd.  I’m another mom, as she mentioned.  


I have to think that none of us would have spent this afternoon going into evening together if developers were not allowed to build on top of veins.  We live, with a map that we’ve now seen, right adjacent to these veins.  There’s ones within a mile ahead of us—Bass Lake Road.  They know it’s on El Dorado Hills Boulevard.  I’m sure there’s developers in this audience today.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think so.


MS. HURD:  I’m not a developer, but it just seems like we’ll have to become a Libby, Montana before it’d be a law that they cannot build.  I understand you might have a thousand acres.  I’m just assuming they do geological maps before they build.  They have to know it.  We’ve known for decades.  This is what I’ve learned in hours on the web because you don’t know about asbestos until you live in something like this.  They’ve known for decades that it’s been carcinogenic in products.  Do you not think that it’s carcinogenic in the ground?  So, if you build around it instead of right on top of it, you can still have your 2,000 homes—Empire Ranch, Serrano—but stay away from the damn crack where it goes.  What’s it going to take to make that a law?  That’s what I want to know.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  I hate to do this, but the local land use body is your board of supervisors.  Have you voiced the concerns there, in a public setting like this?


MS. SUMMERS:  Well, not in a public setting.  I’ve phoned Rusty Dupray’s office numerous time, and they continually tell me that the EPA samples are all faulty.  That’s the answer that I got.  I phoned Senator Cox’s office.  They were very good.  They wrote down my concerns and suggested, actually, that I come to this hearing.  So, I was very happy with that.  I have spoken with Rachel.  I’ve heard about your bill.  That’s why I’m here.  We’re trying to do our homework because we’re trying to make some big decisions for our families.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right.  And the local land use authority is with the locals, unless we see state law that is mitigating, whether it’s development or . . . 


MS. SUMMERS:  Well, we’re going to stay on top of it.  We’re not disappearing.  We’re going to stay there until we get some answers, hopefully.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Did you finish your testimony?


MS. HURD:  No, there’s one more.  Also, people could say, Why don’t those chicks just leave?  If you don’t live there, you don’t know how great it is, and you don’t want to leave and then look back and go, Ooh, I didn’t have to leave, but I never knew that because I never knew what the risk factor is.  And I know it’s all evolving; they’re learning it all now.  But we don’t want to leave unless we have to, and I know that that’s going to bring down values and all of that.  It’s really frustrating.


But the other thing is, let’s suppose that the mitigation on the new areas, which is the CSD and the schools, let’s suppose that acts quickly.  We put in two feet of dirt, or whatever it’s going to be.  Could we ask the state for money to test the ambient air to see what it’s like to just live there, if they’ve cleaned it?  Because now they say Oak Ridge High is fine.  So, if they go ahead and clean up the new areas and they’re fine, how much of it is still just from dust in the air?  Because I asked last year at the meeting to EPA, which no one could give an answer, is how far does it travel?  How far does the fibers travel?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think it depends.  It depends whether it’s freshly graded and there’s a wind or there’s constant disruption or not.


MS. HURD:  But you can see all the factions today, battling over who’s going to come up with the money.  I know the school district does not have the money.  Obviously, they shouldn’t have to keep paying for it.  I’m sure there’ll be a bond or a tax, which is fine—we’ll all pay for it—but I’m sure . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Did you hear that, Mr. Cox?


MS. HURD:  I’m sure of it.  But if that happens—if they quickly clean all this up, like they did Oak Ridge—what is it still in the ambient air to live there?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Unfortunately, we don’t know, and that’s the difficulty.  The question is more testing; more narrowly tailored testing.  This is a new model.  Most of the data is on industrial exposure versus NOA.  In this region, it may not be the greatest growth, but it is the one that has gotten the most attention—El Dorado Hills.  The real area of next concern is, I think, Placer County, given the geology as well as the growth rates.  And I think Amador and Calaveras are not immune.  

So, it is unique at least in this region when you couple growth with the geology.  We don’t know yet, and I apologize that we can’t give you those hard and fast answers.  Hopefully, others will be here longer than I will to finish the data gathering and the brightline guidelines.


MS. HURD:  Hopefully, some progress can be made that they can’t build on top of the veins.  We would not be sitting here, I don’t think.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I don’t want to weigh in to the speculation of whether or not that’s the case, but I suspect your home was. . . . I mean, it’s a question of once your home is built and you’re there.  That would have meant, ideally . . . 


MS. HURD:  Well, put it this way.  I’m like the third generation to grow up from the Bay Area, and California’s nothing but fault lines.  Bear Mountain is the only one that has ultramafic rock, but if they can keep building since the ’20s the whole California. . . . I mean, it goes to figure that more people would be sick with this right now.  It’s been our state rock forever. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But the interplay and the convergence of the unique nature of this type in a quickly moving area where the land is also being moved by development, I think this is sort of that next surge.


SENATOR COX:  Look, here’s the good news about this, is that every day we appear to be learning more.  You heard testimony by at least the county folks and the EPA that they were taking extraordinary steps to get this under control.  Now, will it be soon enough?  I don’t know the answer to that.  I don’t know that anybody knows the answer to that.  You ought to at least take some comfort of the fact that people are working on it to try to get a solution to the problem.

MS. HURD:  I do, except in the meantime, my kids are guinea pigs, you know?  So am I.


SENATOR COX:  This isn’t going to change tomorrow or the next day or the week after next.  I mean, it just isn’t going to happen that way.  That’s just not the way things work.  And so, it’s a situation that, honest to goodness, if you have to know tomorrow or the next day, the answer is, it isn’t going to happen.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, let’s hope we can at least put some mechanisms in place to gather the information that we think needs to be developed.


SENATOR COX:  I concur.  We certainly need more data.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  With that, let me ask—are there other witnesses here with public testimony?


Yes.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Bonnie Holmes-Gen with the American Lung Association of California.  I have a few very brief comments.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask you first:  Is this why we changed the bike trip?


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  I cannot reveal that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Because we rode through Amador and El Dorado Hills last year.  So, I’m glad—we’re going to Tahoe/Donner?


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Yes.  I think it’s just a change of venue.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I told my staff:  I’m not riding through Amador or El Dorado anymore.  Ione’s okay, though.



Go ahead.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  On behalf of the American Lung Association of California and the American Lung Association of Sacramento Immigrant Trails, of whose bike trek you’re talking about, we are extremely concerned about this problem of naturally occurring asbestos in El Dorado County.  We’ve been closely monitoring the situation, and we’ve been advocating for the types of aggressive air monitoring and personal exposure studies—the episodic monitoring that you’ve been talking about—that’s finally being done.  We believe that this type of monitoring is critical to understanding the public health risk, as you’ve identified clearly in the hearing, as distinguished from the general ambient monitoring.


We congratulate you on having this hearing and bringing all of the federal, state, and local agencies and other parties to the table.


My few brief comments are that, number one, we do believe additional health studies are needed to better understand exposures and the potential for the development of asbestos disease in individuals that are living in El Dorado and other areas.  


You’ve actually heard my testimony from this lovely person here right next to me.  So, let me just say that the American Lung Association submitted a request early last year—and I know other individuals and I think even the County of El Dorado submitted a request for the Agency for Toxic [Substance] Disease Registry (ATSDR)—to conduct a full health assessment of the effects from exposure to naturally occurring asbestos.  Of course, ATSDR has been responsive, and they’ve conducted this health consultation.  That’s kind of step one.  But the next step is to do this more extensive public health study that goes beyond the consultation.  The more extensive study could include the kinds of expanded health assessment that you’ve been just hearing recently.  It could include medical screening of individuals that have been exposed to high levels of naturally occurring asbestos or high-risk individuals.  It could include the kinds of biological studies that you’ve heard just mentioned to get a better understanding of the level of asbestos fibers in the lungs of exposed individuals through autopsies.  There’s other types of studies that can be done—during lung surgeries and that sort of thing.  

And also, there could be these types of alternative methods of assessing asbestos exposure, such as the quantification of asbestos fibers in the lung tissues of deceased animals.  Some of that work has been done, and the levels that have been found have been alarming.  So, that’s, I think, a productive avenue for further research to get a better sense of what kinds of levels of fibers are we seeing in the lungs of animals anyway.  Animals are a different breathing zone, but they’re still certainly very close to the ground, but there certainly is some indication there of how it’s affecting human beings also.

So, we definitely see a need for additional health studies.  We think it’s prudent to conduct additional aggressive air monitoring, both in other areas of El Dorado County and in other populated areas of the state where amphibole asbestos occurs and is being disturbed.  And so, we think it would be important to continue this episodic monitoring.  That is the only kind that can really determine what the level of the problem is, the level of exposure.  That was developed, really, in Libby, Montana, and it was used at the World Trade Center.  It’s the best and the best science that we have right now.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask that you share those recommendations with my committee staff so we can incorporate those potentially in the criteria that could be used to guide the task force?


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Certainly.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate that.  You don’t have to do it now.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  I’d be happy to do that.


We do think there is a strong need for the state to exhibit stronger leadership in evaluating public health impacts of naturally occurring asbestos and in working with local governments and the residents to try and address these problems.  And your bill, of course, I think will make a big difference as a strong step in that direction.  I think, as you’ve found out, this issue has kind of fallen between the cracks of various agencies.  No one agency has really jumped in and taken leadership, and we need to have that leadership at the state level.  So, we strongly support your bill and other efforts to get that state leadership.


We can’t overemphasize the need to take precautions.  Local and state agencies need to take all the measures they can to really stress to the public the importance of taking precautions to protect their families—the kinds of dust control measures we’ve talked about.  And beyond that, as you’ve discussed, we really just need to step up on our enforcement efforts at the state level and the local level.  We need to figure out ways that we can strengthen enforcement and get more resources and more emphasis on enforcement of these dust control measures, because they are critical.  I mean, it’s critical to get the dust down so we don’t have these exposures and we’re not going to have these long-term public health effects.

So, I think those are my basic comments.  And I thank you for a very interesting session, and we look forward, as the Lung Association, to being involved in this issue and to help devise some solutions and next steps on this problem.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for your very helpful recommendations.  We’re listening intently.  We may expand the task force membership to include an unnamed air quality lung association.  Thank you, Bonnie.


Welcome again.


MS. JOHNSON:  Hi.  Toni Johnson again.  Let me say thank you for the time and interest that you’re spending in this.  It’s been a long battle for me, and I feel like I’ve finally found someone who’s listening.  So, thank you very much.


You had asked the representative from CARB about getting complaints, so I brought you copies of the most recent letters I’ve written them.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re going to make sure that we get a copy of those, with a cover letter to CARB, and ask them to formally respond to each of those.


MS. JOHNSON:  I’ll hand these to you.


And the other thing, if you could possibly get a response to, is this December 15th letter—2004—about the asbestos getting into the water supply.  I’ve drawn an arrow next to the paragraph that mentions that.  I don’t know if the county officials are still here.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is it your letter to the county?


MS. JOHNSON:  No.  It’s a letter from the Mining Board, who does the mining inspections, to the county—as the local enforcement agency—that they found this condition that needs to be addressed.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, Mr. Morgan?  I assume that that would be a response from your shop?


MS. JOHNSON:  Have you seen this?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s make sure we get a copy, and we’ll share that with Mr. Morgan.


SENATOR COX:  If you will give us a copy, we will certainly address it, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Certainly.  


MS. JOHNSON:  I’ll let him see it so he can see what I’m talking about.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ll allow him to look at that, but we’ll get it and we’ll share it.


SENATOR COX:  In view of the fact she lives in the First Senate District, we’ll certainly take a look at it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Good, because I think she deserves whatever response from the county.  I think that’s important.  That was December of ’04?


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, we’re looking at how many months of no response?


MS. JOHNSON:  Well, I wrote a letter to them and made phone calls, and the response was they had done nothing at the time of my last phone call.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s alarming if a state agency says we’re seeing exposure in water and the county has that enforcement authority and they have not responded to what appears to be a significant risk.  So, hopefully, we’ll get a response to that as well, and your representative can be a part of that.


MS. JOHNSON:  Thank you.  I appreciate it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Any other comments, Ms. Johnson?


MS. JOHNSON:  I thought I heard Mr. Morgan say something about the county code regarding serpentine is don’t disturb it unless you have to.  Did I hear that correctly?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t recall hearing that.  


UNIDENTIFIED:  [Inaudible.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  He did say that.


MS. JOHNSON:  Well, then why are we mining it and spreading it around?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you want to comment on the ongoing mining activities of serpentine?


MR. MORGAN:  John Morgan.  I can’t speak to the SMARA—Surface Mining Regulation Act—and the authorities that are remaining for serpentine.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you’re preempted by state and federal law in enforcing ongoing . . .?


MR. MORGAN:  Yes, because the use of serpentine for nonroad surfacing is still allowed by law.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, I think her concern was that you had said that if you don’t have to disturb.


MS. JOHNSON:  Right.  If we don’t want to disturb the naturally occurring asbestos, why do we have an ongoing mining operation in naturally occurring asbestos?


MR. MORGAN:  I do not necessarily disagree with her.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes, but you have to understand, they may have enforcement of the settlement agreement that’s in question, or the agreement for them to mitigate.  They have local mitigation authority, but they can’t stop the mine.  But your challenge and your problem is that you don’t feel that they’re even enforcing.


MS. JOHNSON:  Who can?  I mean, it only makes sense.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Stopping the mine?


MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.  If it’s bad for you to breathe the stuff, why are we still producing it and taking it places?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think it’s the U.S. Geological. . . . or is it state or . . . 

UNIDENTIFIED:  Some counties did ban it.

MS. JOHNSON:  See, that’s my problem.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But I don’t think an ongoing, preexisting mine.  I think there may be a taking issue there.


But let me just suggest that I think you still have a legitimate concern with Mr. Morgan—with the county—and the enforcement of at least the mitigation measures that have been entered into through the lawsuit, that agreement of how they mitigate is enforced by the county.  That still is an outstanding issue from her perspective, and that is within your jurisdiction.


MS. JOHNSON:  Let me point one thing out.  Under county code, they can stop this mine, because this mine, if you remember, was determined as a vested operation.  And if you look at the county code, Chapter—I believe it’s 17.20—Any vested operation that is determined to be a danger to public health shall immediately be terminated by the Planning Commission, I believe it’s how it’s written.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re going to go ahead and get that provision and that question and that issue of local authority to terminate.  I’m happy to get a legal opinion on that from our attorneys, and I think they should get one from their attorneys as well.  


MS. JOHNSON:  It’s county code under “Termination of a Nonconforming Use.”  I’m sure you have a copy of it.


MR. MORGAN:  I’m not a SMARA guy.


MS. JOHNSON:  No.  This isn’t a SMARA issue at all.  It’s vesting.  


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, we can’t resolve this issue here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But it raises a legitimate issue.  She’s done her homework, and she’s lived next to this.  Let’s see whether we can at least . . . 


SENATOR COX:  And let’s gather up the data and find out whether or      not . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Feel free to share that with my staff and Senator Cox’s office as well.


MS. JOHNSON:  Okay.  I’ll send you copies of that, and I’ll leave these copies—here?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ll have the sergeants get them.


Last speaker.


Thank you, Mr. Morgan, for coming forward.


Welcome.


MR. LANCE McMAHAN:  Thank you.  My name is Lance McMahan.  I’m a registered civil engineer in the State of California.  I’ve been working on the asbestos issue since, roughly, 1998, when the Sacramento Bee broke its story.  

My first encounter with, shall we call it, naturally occurring asbestos or asbestos that’s been dug up was immediately adjacent to Oak Ridge High School where Terry Trent, who’s not here, showed me the veins of high purity tremolite and actinolite that run north-south through El Dorado Hills.  I later learned that those veins assay out at over 90 percent purity.  


As I said, my first encounter was to pick up a piece of this material and have it dissolve in my fingers into the air.  Yes, it was actually a very scary event.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s not a good thing to do.


MR. McMAHAN:  No.  I don’t think I’m going to do it again either.  But then, the scarier part of it was watching the kids on their bicycles do brodies not twenty feet from where I was standing in the dirt.  And then, of course, Oak Ridge High School was immediately to my left, and the community center where my children spent a few summers was, of course, right behind me, across Harvard Way.  The vein which I encountered runs, as I said, from one end of the county to the other and then, of course, points beyond.  In fact, it happens to go through Folsom Lake.  It’s not a well-known fact but it is true.  

From there, it was a bit of a learning experience.  I’ve been to many meetings.  I’ve gone to San Francisco for the evaluation that EPA requested scientists to look at and decide just how toxic the amphiboles were compared to chrysotile.  And when they said it was two orders of magnitude more toxic than the chrysotile for inducing mesothelioma, it had to make you wonder:  Exactly how accurate are the risk assessments that are being done?  And, of course, to find a 90 percent-plus purity vein running through your neighborhood was very, very scary.  

I asked the county board of supervisors at a meeting at Oak Ridge High School if they would find the money to at least put up some sort of retaining wall or shock treat or do something to prevent direct access to the high purity veins that were running through the area, and the answer I got back was basically, fundamentally “No.”  They weren’t interested in going down that route.

I continued to work with other agencies—the State of California Air Resources Board.  They have installed regulations which, in a sense, are geared toward construction.  There are limits on activities.  Again, from the time you break ground until the time you finish your excavation and construction work and turn the property over to the homeowner, there are no long-term restrictions.  For example, when they’re done with their work, they’re required to cover the ground with six inches of clean soil or plant grass or otherwise landscape the property, but there’s nothing to require the owners to maintain those engineering controls in place.  That is a flaw of also the El Dorado County ordinance.  It, too, is geared towards allowing construction to take place but not to do the long-term maintenance of that remedy once you’ve done it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask you to try to conclude and give us some direction and maybe outline what it is that might add to our lack of information or direction?


MR. McMAHAN:  Yes, I certainly could.


SENATOR COX:  Is it your point that after the house is sold, that the homeowner is not responsible to maintain the grass and the landscaping and bark?  What’s your point with that?


MR. McMAHAN:  Actually, that wasn’t my point at all.  In a sense, they are, shall we say, responsible, but they may not know that that . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, whether or not deed restrictions of subsequent owners to maintain or not cut into would enhance the general ordinance in the county perhaps?


SENATOR COX:  Isn’t that covered under the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure Law?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No.  The disclosure just simply says if you reasonably believe that there’s asbestos on your place, you have to disclose it.  It doesn’t say you have a duty to.  Someone could come in and grade their backyard and cut into their own property and expose.  So, there’s no enforcement there, is his point.  It’s simply when you sell that you then have to disclose whether you reasonably believe asbestos to be there or not there.


MR. McMAHAN:  Correct.  There are no requirements to maintain the remedy in place, which is a standard element of CERCLA, as well as the state Superfund law; that if you go in and do a remedy on a site, for example, and you don’t clean up to (quote) “unrestricted use,” you must have land use restrictions in place which cause whatever the remedy is—the cover, the cap, the whatever—to be maintained in perpetuity with a land use . . .

SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s like a deed restriction.


MR. McMAHAN:  It’s very much like a deed restriction and with a covenant with whatever the enforcement agency is to maintain that deed restriction in place.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, that’s the rub.


MR. McMAHAN:  That is missing from all of the regulations that are currently in effect.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, that’s by way of advice or information to further illustrate areas we might want to go.


SENATOR COX:  I personally think that that’s up to the local board of supervisors or city council to, in fact, move on that.  That’s not really a state issue.


MR. McMAHAN:  It is nonetheless a fatal flaw in terms of . . . 


SENATOR COX:  Well, let’s see what Mr.  . . .


MR. McMAHAN:  And also, the state Air Resources Board has its own set of regulations.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m going to ask for Mr. Morgan to comment, and then we’ll let you conclude.


MR. MORGAN:  Lance’s comments are one of the holes they’re trying to plug.  In our deed restrictions, if you do move in a way or you bury it or otherwise find it, it is required to be mapped and put into the deed restriction—pretty much, I think, parallel to what Lance is trying to say.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  But that’s in the works with the county.


MR. MORGAN:  No.  That’s the one we adopted in 2003.  Prospective deed restrictions:  You must isolate it and map it and understand where it is on your property so as not to disturb it.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you have a duty not to disturb it—also in the deed restriction?


MR. MORGAN:  Correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Maybe we can share a copy of that with Mr. McMahan.  But we may want to give you the specificity that he says is in the ordinance.


MR. McMAHAN:  This has actually come up.  I sponsored a community advisory group—or founded one in concert with the U.S. EPA about six months ago, and the regular attendee has been Marcella McTaggart.  The issue of deed restrictions has actually been brought up at each of the meetings in the last few months.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask you to try to conclude?


MR. McMAHAN: 
I can do that. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I apologize.  I know you’ve been patient.


MR. McMAHAN:  It’s quite all right.


I did want to say that (quote) “asbestos is, in a sense, everywhere.”  The valley that we sit in here for this meeting is derived from the mountains that are up here, okay?  So, the question is:  If you had sufficient technology, you might be able to detect it here in the alluvium.  Up there, the veins run 90 percent pure.  They are available to anyone who wants to walk over and pick them up.  Okay?


The other thing is in terms of risk evaluation that someone touched on earlier.  I want to highlight it for you.  And that is, your ability to do an epidemiological study is extremely compromised by this shifting and increasing population.  So, it may be very difficult, if not impossible, to draw any strong correlation between living on deposits in El Dorado Hills versus other areas.


And then, the other thing I just want to mention is there are a number of state agencies which are, in a sense, responsible for dealing with issues of NOA.  They include the Department of Real Estate, for example; the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, which is, of course, responsible for CEQA and put out guidance.  Their own guidance doesn’t really look at the long-term effects.  It only looks, again, at the short-term effects.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Mr. Finney?  Hopefully, you can advise us on your former employment in the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research in your new capacity as a PR person for the county.

MR. TAL FINNEY:  [Inaudible.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Oh, outside counsel.  I was trying to figure out what contract you guys had.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, let’s ask Mr. McMahan here to conclude.


MR. McMAHAN:  I think I’ve probably made about every point I can tonight.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I appreciate you being really patient, giving us some guidance and some further additions to our task force parameters.


MR. McMAHAN:  Well, thank you for foregoing your trip to Oakland.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, may I thank you for conducting this hearing.  I appreciate Senator Lowenthal’s participation.  I certainly want to thank, Madam Chair, all of those who testified.  I believe, in fact, we have received valuable information.


It is my judgment, however, that we have not received sufficient data to reach a definitive conclusion relative to the risk of naturally occurring asbestos.  I believe that we need to do more relative to NOA before we begin mandating particular issues.  I think we have to be cognizant of how it affects the entire State of California and not just the communities in El Dorado County.


And again, thank you very much.  If you will share, by the way, all of the documents that you receive, particularly any that are from residents of the First Senate District, we would appreciate it.  We’d appreciate the opportunity to go to work on it first.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Senator Cox.  Of course we will share, as we always do.  I like handing off other representatives’ constituent work, so we’re more than happy to share that and give that to you.

Let me just provide some closing comments.  Let me thank the senators that weighed in, as well as Senator Cox.  It was a very long hearing.  I think it’s 5½ hours.  It may be the marathon hearing.  So, I thank all of you who have been a part of this.


Let me just say that we’ve gotten a lot of information, a lot of direction, a lot of valuable opinions regarding where we next go.  I believe that there’s enough information that suggests we ought to be very, very cognizant; not just El Dorado County but any other county that presents this unique combination of development coupled with, particularly, an amphibole source of naturally occurring asbestos.  In fact, El Dorado County’s ordinance may be a model for other regions.  I think our next wave of concern is Placer County.  I think Amador, Calaveras.  

I, on the other hand, think that we ought to have a lot more emphasis on collecting more data; more narrowly tailored data.  We might not arrive at a perfect risk assessment model, but I think that the information that shows a linkage between asbestos exposure and cancer and asbestosis as well as lung cancer and related diseases, it’s not debatable.  The question is whether or not certain activities are exposing families, individuals, particularly children, at episodic exposure levels, enough to translate into the 1 to 10,000.  Maybe that’s an accurate assessment of number of cancer deaths per population, but I absolutely believe we have an obligation.  And it’s not about one county versus another.  I think it’s an opportunity.  The information is before us.


I’m not going to presuppose what the outcome is, and I think many fear it’s an anti-development position, and it doesn’t have to be.  I mean, the question is:  How do you mitigate development that will and should occur?  But let’s do it with a lot of science, and let’s err on the side of protecting residents.  I think that’s everybody’s intention.  We may disagree on who pays for it, how much it’s going to cost, how closely we monitor it, but I don’t know that we can ignore this reality. 

The fact that our Cancer Registry may not show outliers, to me is not a comfort level.  I think we’re at the very front end of a curb of population growth coupled with the region that may not show itself for another ten years to twenty years.  I would think the county would embrace some of the recommendations regarding animal lung studies.  We can certainly have veterinarians and pathologists come in and say, Well, animal studies don’t equate to human risk, but I think it’s a good start.  


So, let me just suggest that it’s going to take all of our resources and all of our commitment.  In fact, I think if there’s a need to look at state resources, as limited as they are, for some very targeted data gathering as well as mitigation. . . . well, I don’t want to go so far as a mitigation measure, but I think the risk assessment model ought to be an opportunity for the state to help and develop that model and help pay for it for some of these long-term longitudinal studies.


With that, let me just thank everybody that’s been here.  It’s been a long afternoon.  I hope that we can provide some assistance and some direction as we move forward on this issue.


This committee is adjourned.  Thank you.
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